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Introduction

The Group Structure of IGlI
Holdings and its
Subsidiaries resembles a
group of penguins,
leveraging support to each
other for sustainable and
profitable growth.
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Progressing

Nurtured by 1GI Holdings,
subsidiary companies within
the Group are progressing
under its support and guidance.

-
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Boosting
Performance

Expertise, value added
services and focus ensure
profitable and sustainable

growth of the Group.
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|Gl Holdings Limited is a
Company built on a culture of

ethics, transparency and
professionalism.

Mission
Shareholders:
Consistently delivering above

market average return on
capital.

Employees:

Providing the environment
necessary to be employer of
choice.

Community:
Compliance with the highest
ethical and moral standards.
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Credit Rating (PACRA)

Long Term

A1+

Short Term

Long Term AA (Double A) Very high credit rating.

AA Rating denotes a very low
expectation of credit risk. This
indicates very strong capacity for
timely payment of financial
commitments. This capacity is
not significantly vulnerable to
foreseeable events.

Short Term A1+ (A One Plus) Obligations supported by the
highest capacity for timely
repayment.
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Core Values

Underlying everything we do and everything we believe in is a set of core
values. Values are reasons which we regard as higher than our
self-interest. These guide us to deal with every aspect of any issue we
might encounter in our personal and professional lives. These values help
us grow inside & outside, personally and as an organization.

a) We provide care through empathy, fairness, trust and openness;

b)  We care for the communities in which we exist; we are conscious of the impact of our activities
on our environment;

c) We strive to improve our lives and the lives of others; we care for and grow people; and

d)  We care for all our customers; we succeed when our customer succeeds.

RespeCt a) We treat others the way we want to be treated ;
b)  We value legitimate relationships based on mutual trust and respect;
'@‘ ¢) We are humble in all our dealings; and
*00p) d)  We respect our organization.

Lead We believe in possibilities; nothing is impossible;

a)
e o o ¢© b) We take leadership position in all our markets;
M\J’\?\ c) We aspire to build authentic leaders who say what they mean and mean what they say;
\ \ \ \ d)  We live by our values and, appreciate and recognise the same in others; and
)

We add value daily and look for future. We are committed to making a great organization.

a) Our actions are ethical and credible. We ensure transparency and fairness in all our dealings;

b)  We are respectful in our interactions with others and maintain the highest moral standards even in
the most difficult situations;

c) Our commitment to honesty is evident in our appreciation and welcoming attitude towards candid
feedback; and

d)  We remain thankful with ourselves, our people, our organization, our customers and our community
in all of our dealings.

a) We are passionate and courageous in pursuing our dreams;
COU rage b; The othgr side of fear is freedgm; we vglue fregdom;
() c) We have the audacity to look at new challenges adjust our sails accordingly ; and
J’ d)  We stress upon suspending self-interest for the greater good.
Values to us:
They are: They are not:
1) Fundamental beliefs of our organization; 1)  Description of the work we do;
2)  Not to be compromised by any individual; 2) Strategies we employ;
3)  Principles that direct our relationship with our customers and 3) Just to be hung on the walls; and
stakeholders; 4)  Cosmetic.

4) Basic elements of how we go on about our work;
5)  Operating philosophies that guide our internal conduct; and
6) Helpful in distinguishing wrong behaviors from the right ones.
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Ms. Faryal Jooma (Chairperson)
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Code of Conduct

The "Values" and "Principles” that IGI Holdings Limited has developed over the years are adhered to by all employees within IGI Holdings
Limited and its subsidiary companies [“IGI"]. Following are some salient features of the code of conduct:

All employees should be aware of and consider the potential impacts of their work on the environment. Play their part to reduce and

minimize all kinds of polluting emissions. Use resources efficiently and reuse and recycle materials whenever possible to minimize waste.

IGI ensures compliance with all applicable regulations and voluntary commitments wherever we do business. IGI conducts business
transactions with the best interests of the Group and community in mind. IGI shows zero tolerance for corrupt activities of any kind,
either in its own operations or when working with partners.

Taking or giving bribes is strictly prohibited. IGI ensures compliance with the relevant anti-bribery laws. It is also IGI's policy to require
all our stake holders working for, or representing, any of the Group Companies, in any capacity, including business partners,
suppliers, vendors, consultants, financial advisers, agents, to comply with these laws and practices.

In conducting its business IGl is inspired by acts in accordance with the principles of loyalty, faimess, transparency and eficiency.

IGI expects all employees to be free from actual or potential conflicts of interest. All employees of IGI shall avoid conflict of interest
while conducting IGI's business and ensure that their judgment is not influenced whenever there is a prospect of direct or indirect
personal gain.

The employees of IGI should not take advantage of the Company's information or property for personal gains. Any employee of IGI
shall not disclose or reveal any information which is confidential in nature or any such information which may benefit the employee
directly or indirectly.

IGI employees shall not trade or pass on inside information at any time to any other person, inside or outside IGI.

IGI is committed to the highest possible standards of openness, transparency and accountability in all its affairs. The intent is to
promote a culture of honesty and opposition to fraud in all its forms.

IGI expects its employees to show courage in all their dealings and conduct by working with the highest professional and ethical
standards.

IGl is committed to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal business conduct. In line with this commitment and IGI's
commitment to open communication, this policy aims to provide an avenue for employees to raise concerns with reassurance that
they will be protected from reprisals or victimization for whistle blowing.

Every employee of IGI needs to maintain a professional relationship with suppliers, customers and other stakeholders.
IGI recognizes the value of striving for a balanced work force and is committed to the principles of equal opportunity, equality of

treatment and creating a dynamic environment where diversity is valued as a source of enrichment and opportunity. All phases of the
employment relationship — including recruitment, hiring, training, promotion, compensation, benefits, transfers, layoffs and leaves of

absence are carried out by all managers without regard to any race, color, religion, gender, age, ethnicity, national origin or disability.

All IGI employees shall personally contribute to promoting and maintaining a climate of common respect in the workplace. No
employee in |Gl shall work under the effect of alcohol or drugs, or substances with similar effect.

No employee of IGI shall provide any assistance or funding (including charity or donation) to proscribed individuals/ entities as notified
by the concerned government, laws and regulations or by UN Security Council Sanctions Committee.

IGI's physical and intangible assets, as well as its proprietary information are the key to IGI's success. They should be used only to
achieve business goals and should be protected to preserve their value. Any use of IGl's assets or proprietary information by any
employee in other business or personal activities is forbidden.
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Corporate
Sustainability at Gl

IGl is conscious of its responsibility towards the society and the environment.

Since Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is a continuous process, we have strived to ensure sustainability for our stakeholders
through numerous initiatives encompassing:

+ Corporate Social Responsibility;
+ Compliance; and
+ Optimization of Resources.

Corporate Social Responsibility

IGl believes in giving the youth of Pakistan confidence, opportunities for learning and success. Our subsidiaries offer paid internships
all around the year to students from diverse colleges and universities to apply their knowledge practically and gain hands on
experience which can enable them to secure rewarding opportunities not only at IGI but in the external job market as well.

We take our contribution towards national economy seriously and always discharge our obligations in a transparent, accurate and
timely manner.

Environmental Sustainability
Pollution reduction and waste management measures have been defined and are implemented to ensure that they have a minimal
impact on our environment. Our waste management process is based on reduce, reuse, recycle and disposal philosophy.

IGI gives due care to energy conservation. All departments and employees of subsidiaries are conscious and implement power
conservation measures, not only during, but after business hours as well.

IGI has also enrolled in Green Office Program initiated by the World Wide Fund For Nature (WWF) and is currently in process of
implementation of Environmental Management Plan devised by WWF.

Business Sustainability

IGl has built a reputation for conducting business with integrity, in accordance with high standards of ethical behavior and in
compliance with laws and regulations that govern our businesses. |Gl carefully checks for compliance with the Code of Conduct by
providing suitable information, prevention and control tools and ensuring transparency in all transactions and behaviors by taking
creative measures as required.
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Board of Directors

Sxed Babar Ali
©

airman) Director
since 1954

Other Engagements

Ali Institute of Education
Babar Ali Foundation

Coca Cola Beverages
Pakistan Limited

Gurmani Foundation
Industrial Technical &
Educational Institute
National Management
Foundation

Nestle Pakistan Limited
Sanofi-Aventis Pakistan Limited
Syed Maratib Ali Religious &
Charitable Trust Society
Tetra Pak Pakistan Limited
Tri-Pack Films Limited

The Layton Rahmatulla
Benevolent Trust (LRBT)

Pro Chancellor

Lahore University of
Management Sciences (LUMS)
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Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan

Director since 2000

Other Engagements
Abbott Laboratories
Pakistan Limited

Attock Refinery Limited
Attock Cement

Pakistan Limited

IGI General Insurance Limited
IGI Life Insurance Limited
Karandaaz (Pvt.) Limited
Packages Foundation
Pakistan OQilfields Limited
Sustainable Development
Policy Institute (Member
Board of Governors, SDPI)

Syed Yawar Al

Director since 1999

Other Engagements

Amjad & Afzal Foundation
(NGO)

Dairy & Rural Development
Foundation (NGO)

HY Enterprises (Pvt.) Limited
IGI Investments (Pvt.) Limited
IGI Life Insurance Limited
Nestle Pakistan Limited

Pak Afghan Joint

Business Council

Pakistan Business Council
Pakistan Dairy Association
Pakistan India Joint
Business Forum

Prime Genetics (Pvt.) Limited
Wazir Ali Industries Limited

Syed Shahid Ali

Director since 1980

Other Engagements

First Treet Manufacturing
Modaraba

Global Arts Limited

Global Assets (Pvt.) Limited
Gulab Devi Chest Hospital
Hi- Tech Alloy Wheels Limited
Liaquat National Hospital
Loads Limited

Multiple Autoparts Industries
(Pvt.) Limited

Packages Limited

Renacon Pharma Limited
Specialized Autoparts
Industries (Pvt.) Limited
Specialized Motorcycles
(Pvt.) Limited

Treet Battery Limited

Treet Corporation Limited
Treet Holdings Limited
Treet Power Limited



Syed Hyder Ali Ms. Faryal Jooma
Director since 1989 Director since 2015

Other Engagements Other Engagements
Ali Institute of Education Jooma Law Associates

Babar Ali Foundation

Bulleh Shah Packaging

(Pvt.) Limited

Flexible Packages Convertors
(Pty) Limited

IGI General Insurance Limited
IGI Investments (Pvt.) Limited
IGI Life Insurance Limited
International Chamber of
Commerce Pakistan

Lahore University of Management
Sciences (LUMS)

National Management Foundation
Nestle Pakistan Limited
Packages Convertors Limited
Packages Foundation

Packages Lanka (Pvt.) Limited
Packages Limited

Packages Real Estate

(Pvt.) Limited

Pakistan Centre for Philanthropy
Sanofi-Aventis Pakistan Limited
Syed Maratib Ali Religious &
Charitable Trust Society
Tri-Pack Films Limited

World Wide Fund for Nature

Ms. Faryal Sadiq

Director elected in 2020

Mr. Tahir Masaud

Chief Executive since 2014

Other Engagements

IGI General Insurance Limited
IGI Investments (Pvt.) Limited
IGI FSI (Pvt.) Limited
Packages Foundation
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Key FinanCial Data (Ten Years at a Glance)

2020
Dividend income 1,110,000
Gross premium *
Balance Sheet
Paid up capital 1,426,305
Reserves 7,764,863
Shareholders equity 14,291,633

Investments-at book value 15,847,249
Investments-at market value 22,244,103
Fixed assets 947
Total assets-at book value 16,327,633

Underwriting provisions *

Profit and Loss Account

Underwriting profit *

Investment income 1,110,000
Profit / (loss) before tax 974,845
Taxation 30,517
Profit / (loss) after tax 944,328

Cash Flow Summary

Operating activities (42,724)
Investing activities 961,508
Financing activities (934,298)

Cash & Cash Equivalents  (1,125,314)

241Gl Holdings Limited

2019

1,107,950

1,426,305
7,764,863
13,774,006
15,744,638
17,859,267
1,384

16,001,770

1,107,950
911,542
14,813

896,729

(63,563)
279,735
(923,339)
(1,109,800)

2018

2,180,501

1,426,305
7,764,863
13,305,805
14,820,667
16,686,398
2,044

15,186,697

2,180,501
1,839,889
39,842

1,800,047

(141,518)
2,254,779
(2,538,206)

(402,633)

2017

82,385

530,782

1,226,895
7,366,574
13,366,157
14,977,048
19,388,017
2,981

15,468,504

2,923
83,803
(248776)
(2,382)
(246,394)

78,043
(914,846)
1,480,620

22,312

2016 2015
(Rupees in ‘000)

1,898,895 1,041,828
2,820,043 2,343,705
1,226,895 1,226,895
7,366,574 8,102,711
13,612,551 12,260,735
15,658,683 12,325,078
72,865,651 54,774,293
262,298 220,743
19,449,039 14,650,626
1,990,067 1,464,778
323,137 256,411
2,128,713 1,445,480
2,067,126 1,531,753
633,251 238,707
1433875 1,293,046
(186,179) 34,479
(1,048,288) 1,277,366
393,808 (1,328,060)
(621,505) 219,154

2014

882,904

2,139,673

1,226,895
8,470,780
11,579,146
12,196,544
57,483,450
240,178
14,490,090

1,361,433

208,195
940,878
942,101
119,300

822,801

23
(134,210)
444,856

235,369

2013

680,328

2,035,289

1,115,359
8,749,620
10,928,233
11,252,448
41,428,682
222,085
13,227,423

1,278,317

104,616
691,351
556,232

74,165

481,067

155,276
667,840
(260,305)
(75,509)

2012

230,192

1,846,856

1,115,359
8,972,692
10,673,722
11,246,453
25,732,615
163,797
12,942,307

1,207,028

232,399
559,231
613,856

11,326

602,530

177,039
268,042
(616,604)
(638,320)

2011

272,241

1,747,015

1,115,359
9,530,371
11,179,366
11,517,673
18,578,665
165,115
13,470,805

1,363,873

207,782
378,402
440,385

6,929

433,456

(18,106)
266,935
(319.720)

(466,797)



Key FinanCial Data (Ten Years at a Glance)

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

INVESTMENT / MARKET RATIOS

Earnings per share (Rs.) 6.62 6.29 12.63 (2.01) 11.69 10.54 6.71 431 540 3.89
Market value per share (Rs.) ~ 203.44 204.00 201.18 292.89 307.89 236.57 270.58 164.38 96.28 44.00
Break up value per share (Rs.) ~ 100.20 96.57 93.29 108.94 110.95 99.93 94.38 97.98 95.70 100.23
Price earning ratio (Times) 30.73 3243 15.93 (145.84) 26.34 2245 40.35 38.11 17.82 11.32
Price to book ratio (Times) 2.03 2.1 2.16 2.69 2.78 237 287 1.68 1.01 0.44
Dividend yield (%) 2.46 147 2.98 1.37 2.60 2.54 1.1 1.52 312 11.36
Dividend payout (%) 75.53 47.69 4751 - 68.45 56.93 4473 57.96 55.53 128.66
Dividend cover (Times) 1.32 2.10 2.1 - 1.46 1.76 2.24 1.73 1.80 0.78
Investment yield (%) 4.99 6.20 13.07 043 2.92 2.64 1.64 1.67 217 2,04
Market capitalization (Rs. M) 29,017 29,097 28,694 35,935 37,775 29,025 33,197 18,334 10,739 4,908
Cash dividend per share (Rs.) 5 3 6 4 8 6.00 3.00 2.50 3.00 5.00
Cash dividend (%) 50 30 60 40 80 60.00 30.00 25.00 30.00 50.00
Stock dividend per share (Rs.) - - 15 - - - - 1.00 - 1.50
Stock dividend (%) - - 15 - - - - 10.00 - 15.00
PROFITABILITY RATIOS

Return on equity (%) 6.82 6.62 13.83 (1.86) 15.19 12.49 8.14 5.08 5.75 3.94
Return on assets (%) 5.78 557 11.85 (1.59) 737 8.83 5.66 3.64 4.66 3.22
EBITDA to gross premium (Times) * - - - - 0.77 0.69 0.50 0.49 (0.19) 0.08
Underwriting profit to gross premium (%) * - - - 4.32 11.46 10.94 9.73 514 12.58 11.89
Proft before tax to gross premium (%) * - - - - 73.30 65.36 44.03 27.28 33.24 2521
Proft after tax to gross premium (%) * - - - - 50.85 55.17 3845 23.64 32.62 24.81
Cost / income ratios (Times) 0.23 0.27 0.09 0.85 041 0.36 0.56 1.01 0.94 0.56

LIQUIDITY / PERFORMANCE RATIOS

Equity / Total assets (%) 87.53 85.60 87.61 86.41 69.99 83.69 79.69 82.62 8247 82.99
Financial leverage 0.12 0.15 0.12 0.13 0.20 0.01 0.07 0.03 0.06 0.05
Paid up capital / Total assets (%)  8.74 8.86 9.39 7.93 6.31 8.37 8.44 8.43 8.62 8.28
Incurred loss ratio (%) - - - - 50.54 52.27 56.84 71.87 62.08 62.24
Total liabilities / Equity (Times) 0.14 017 0.14 0.16 043 0.19 0.25 0.21 0.22 0.20
Cash flow from operations

to gross premium (Times) * - - - - (0.07) 0.01 0.00 0.08 0.10 (0.01)
Total assets turnover (Times) - - - - 0.14 0.16 0.15 0.15 0.14 0.13
Fixed assets turnover (Times) - - - - 10.75 10.62 8.91 9.16 1.28 10.58

*This represents numbers pertaining to insurance business previously carried out by the Company which has been transferred to IGI
General Insurance Limited (its wholly owned subsidiary) through court sanctioned Scheme of Arrangment w.e.f. January 31, 2017.
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Key Financial Data

Market Price Per Share Return on Equity
(Rupees) (Percentage)
08,0
15% 14%
201 204 203
7% 7%
T - T T I T l
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2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Shareholder's Equity at Book Value

(Rupees in Million)

14,292
13,613 13,366 13,306 13,774

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
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Whistle Blowing Policy

IGI Holdings Limited and its subsidiary companies (the Group) are committed to high standards of ethical, moral and legal business
conduct. In line with this commitment and the Group’s commitment to open communication, the whistle-blowing policy of the Group
encourages its employees to raise concerns and reassure that they will be protected from reprisals or victimisation for
whistle-blowing, to improve the Group’s policies, controls and working environment.

Risk Management Policy

-3

-

As a holding company, IGI Holdings Limited enhances the corporate value of the Group by aligning risk management with Group wide
strategic objectives and management policies, while tailoring operating subsidiaries' risk management to the types of risk inherent in
their respective lines of business.

IGI Holdings adopts all necessary supplemental measures to ensure effective risk management, after confirming that each operating
subsidiary has independently and responsibly established its own risk management structure to achieve its own management
objectives.

IGI Holdings has control over IGI General Insurance Limited, IGI Investments (Pvt.) Limited, IGI Life Insurance Limited, IGI Finex
Securities Limited and IGI FSI (Pvt.) Limited, while IGI Investments oversee its affiliates in which itself has investment positions.
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Board Committees

The Board has formed the following sub-committees to comply with the relevant provisions of the applicable Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

* Audit Committee * Human Resources and Remuneration Committee (HR&RC)

Audit Committee
The Committee meets at least four times a year.

The names of current members are:

Ms. Faryal Jooma (Independent Director and Chairperson)
Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan (Member)

Syed Yawar Ali (Member)

Syed Hyder Ali (Member)

Ms. Igra Sajjad (Secretary to the Committee)

IS

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include the following:

a) Determination of appropriate measures to safeguard the Company's assets;

b) Review of annual and interim financial statements of the Company, prior to their approval by the Board of Directors, focusing on:
* Major judgmental areas;

+ Significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

+ Going-concern assumption;

+ Any changes in accounting policies and practices;

+ Compliance with applicable accounting standards;

+ Compliance with regulations and other statutory and
regulatory requirements; and

* All related party transactions.

c) Review of preliminary announcements of results prior to external communication and publication;

d) Facilitating the external audit and discussion with external auditors of major observations arising from interim and final audits
and any matter that the auditors may wish to highlight (in the absence of management, where necessary);

e) Review of management letter issued by external auditors and management's response thereto;

f)  Ensuring coordination between the internal and external auditors of the Company;

g) Review of the scope and extent of internal audit, audit plan, reporting framework and procedures and ensuring that the internal
audit function has adequate resources and is appropriately placed within the Company;

h)  Consideration of major findings of internal investigations of activities characterised by fraud, corruption and abuse of power and
management's response thereto;

i) Ascertaining that the internal control system including financial and operational controls, accounting systems for timely and
appropriate recording of purchases and sales, receipts and payments, assets and liabilities and the reporting structure are
adequate and effective;

) Review of the Company's statement on internal control systems prior to endorsement by the Board of Directors and internal
audit reports;

k) Instituting special projects, value for money studies or other investigations on any matter specified by the Board of Directors, in
consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and to consider remittance of any matter to the external auditors or to any other
external body;

[)  Determination of compliance with relevant statutory requirements;

m) Monitoring compliance with the best practices of corporate governance and identification of significant violations thereof;

n) Review of arrangement for staff and management to report to Audit Committee in confidence, concerns, if any, about actual or
potential remedial and mitigating measures;
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0) Recommend to the Board of Directors the appointment of external auditors, their removal, audit fees, the provision of any service
permissible to be rendered to the Company by the external auditors in addition to audit of its financial statements, measures for
redressal and rectification of non-compliances with the Code of Corporate Governance. The Board of Directors shall give due
consideration to the recommendations of the Audit Committee and where it acts otherwise, it shall record the reasons thereof;

p) Ensuring that risk mitigation measures are robust;

q) Ensuring that appropriate extent of disclosure of company'’s risk framework and internal control system is given in the Directors
Report; and

r)  Consideration of any other issue or matter as may be assigned by the Board of Directors.

Human Resources & Remuneration Committee (HR&RC)
The HR&RC assists the Board in fulfilling its obligations relating to human resources, establishing succession planning and to
develop the senior management of the Company.

HR&RC meets at least once a year.
The names of current members are:

Ms. Faryal Jooma (Independent Director and Chairperson)
Syed Yawar Ali (Member)

Syed Shahid Ali (Member)

Syed Hyder Ali (Member)

Mr. Tahir Masaud (Member and Chief Executive)

Mr. Muhammad Adnan (Secretary to the Committee)

IS el

The terms of reference of the HR&RC include the following:

a) Recommendation to the Board for consideration and approval a policy framework for determining remuneration of Directors
(both Executive and Non-Executive Directors and members of senior management).

The definition of senior management will be determined by the Board which shall normally include the first layer of management
below the Chief Executive Officer level;

) Undertaking annually a formal process of evaluation of performance of the Board as a whole and its Committees either directly
or by engaging external independent consultant and if so appointed, a statement to that effect shall be made in the Directors’
Report disclosing therein name and qualifications of such consultant and major terms of his/its appointment;

) Recommending Human Resource Management Policies to the Board;

) Recommending to the Board the selection, evaluation, development, compensation (including retirement benefits) of Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit;

e) Consideration and approval on recommendations of Chief Executive Officer on such matters for key management positions who

report directly to Chief Executive Officer;

f)  Where human resource and remuneration consultants are appointed, they shall disclose to the Committee their credentials as

to whether they have any other connection with the Company;

g) Considering and making recommendations to the Board in respect of the Board’s Committees and the chairmanship of the
Board Committees; and

) Keeping the structure, size and composition of the Board under regular review and for making recommendations to the Board
with regard to any changes necessary.

(=3

o O

=3

Annual Report 2020

29



Shareholders Information

Registered Office Share Registrar Office:

7th Floor, The Forum, FAMCO Associates (Pvt.) Ltd.
Suite No. 701-713, G-20, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S,

Block-9, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Near Hotel Faran, Nursery,
Karachi-75600, Pakistan. Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.
Tel : 111-308-308, Fax : 92-21-35301772 Tel : 92-21-34380101-5
Website: www.igi.com.pk/holdings Fax : 92-21-34380106

Listing on Stock Exchanges
The equity shares of IGI Holdings Limited are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX).

Stock Code
The stock code for dealing in equity shares of shares of IGI Holdings Limited is IGIHL.

Investor Service Centre

The shares department of IGI Holdings Limited is operated by FAMCO Associates (Pvt.) Ltd. Registrar Services. It also functions as
an Investor Service Centre and has been servicing nearly 3,498 shareholders. The Investor Service Centre is managed by a
well-experienced team of professionals and is equipped with the necessary infrastructure in terms of computer facilities and
comprehensive set of systems and procedures for conducting the Registration function. The team is headed by Mr. Ovais Khan at
the Share Registrar Office and Ms. Igra Sajjad, Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company.

The shares department of IGI Holdings Limited has online connectivity with Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited. The
shares department undertakes activities pertaining to dematerialization of shares, shares transfer and transmission, issue of
duplicate/ re-validated dividend warrants, issue of duplicate / replaced share certificates, change of address and other related
matters.

For assistance, shareholders may contact either the Registered Office or the Share Registrar Office.

Contact Persons:

Mr. Taha Naqvi Mr. Salman Rauf

Phone: 111-308-308 Phone: 92-21-34380101-5

Email: taha.naqvi@igi.com.pk Email:salman.rauf@famco.com.pk
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Services Standards

IGI Holdings Limited has always endeavored to provide investors with prompt services. Listed below are various investor services and
the maximum time limits set for their execution, subject to receipt of the complete set of required documents:

For request received either through post or over the counter

Transfer of shares 15 days after receipt
Transmission of shares 15 days after receipt

Issue of duplicate share certificates 30 days after receipt
Updation of IBAN No 15 working days after receipt
Change of address 2 working days after receipt

Well reputed and experienced firm of the share registrar services has been entrusted with the responsibility of ensuring that services
are rendered within the specified time limits.

Statutory Compliance

During the year the Company has complied with all applicable provisions, filed all returns/ forms and furnished all the relevant and
prescribed information.

Dematerialization of Shares

The equity shares of the Company are under the compulsory dematerialized category. As at December 31, 2020, 31.03% of the equity
shares of the Company have been dematerialized by the shareholders.

Members holding shares in physical form are encouraged to convert their physical shares into Book-Entry-Form (CDC) pursuant to
the requirements of Section 72 of the Act.

Dividend Announcement

The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed cash dividend of 50% (Rs.5/- per share) (2019: a total of 30% cash dividend
i.e. Rs. 3/- per share) subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting (AGM).

Book Closure Dates

The register of Members and share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from April 22, 2021 to April 29, 2021 (both days
inclusive).

Dividend Remittance

Dividend declared and approved at the Annual General Meeting will be paid on or after April 29, 2021, but within the statutory time

limit of 15 working days:

(i) For shares held in physical form: to the shareholders whose names appear in the Register of Members of the Company after
entertaining all requests for transfer of shares lodged with the Company on or before thebook closure date.

(ii)  For shares held in electronic form: to the shareholders whose names appear in the statement of beneficial ownership furnished
by CDC as at end of the business on book closure date.

Withholding of Tax & Zakat on Dividend:

As per the provisions of Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, Income Tax is deductible at source on dividend payable by
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the company at the rate of 15% for the persons appearing in Active Tax Payers list (ATL), wherever applicable, and at the rate of 30%
for the persons not appearing in ATL.

Zakat is also deductible at source from the dividend at the rate of 2.5% of the face value of the share, other than corporate holders or
individuals who have provided an undertaking for non-deduction.

Investors' Grievances

To date, none of the investor or shareholder has filed any letter of complaints against any service provided by the Company to its
shareholders which is unresolved.

Legal Proceedings

No case has ever been filed by shareholders against the Company for non-receipt of share(s) / refund.

General Meetings & Voting Rights

In accordance with the Section 132 of the Companies Act, 2017, IGI Holdings Limited holds a General Meeting of Shareholders at
least once a year. Every shareholder has a right to attend the General Meeting. The notice of such meeting is sent to all the
shareholders at least 21 days before the meeting and also advertised in at least one English and one Urdu newspaper having
nation-wide circulation in the Country.

Shareholder having a holding of at least 10% or more above of voting right may also apply to the Board of Directors to call for a
meeting of shareholders, and if Board does not take action on such application within 21 days, the shareholders may themselves call
the meeting.

Proxies

Please refer notes to the Notice of Annual General Meeting for details related to proxies.

Web Presence

Updated information regarding the Company can be accessed at the Company’s website, www.igi.com.pk/holdings.

The website contains the latest financial results of the Company together with Company's profile and information regarding its
subsidiaries.

Circulation of annual report through email

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide SRO 787(1)/2014 dated 8th September, 2014 has allowed companies to
circulate annual balance sheet, profit & loss account, auditors report and directors reportalong with notice of annual general meeting to
its members through e mail. Members who wish to avail this facility can give their consent to Company Secretary at his email address.

Further, in accordance with SRO 470(1)/2016 dated May 31, 2016, through which SECP has allowed companies to circulate the annual
audited accounts to its members through CD/DVD/USB instead of transmitting the hard copies at their registered addresses, subject to
consent of shareholders and compliance with certain other conditions, the Company has obtained shareholders’ approval in the
Extraordinary General Meeting held on October 8, 2018.

Moreover, if a shareholder requests for hard copy of Annual Audited Financial Statements, the same shall be provided free of cost within

seven days of receipt of such request. For convenience of shareholders, a “Standard Request Form for provision of Annual Audited
Accounts” have also been made available on the Company’s website www.igi.com.pk/holdings.
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Categories of Shareholding

As at December 31, 2020

S. No. Shareholders Category No. of Shareholders  No. of Shares Percentage
1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their spouses and
minor children 22 42,795,755 30.00
2 Associated Companies, Undertakings and related parties 6 54,544,217 38.24
3 NIT and ICP
4 Banks, Development Financial Institutions,
Non Banking Financial Institutions 12 6,473,460 454
5 Insurance Companies 7 2,099,959 1.47
6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds 18 2,012,776 1.41
7 Shareholders holding 10% or more 7 81,592,830 57.21
8 General Public :
a. local 3,236 25,616,765 17.96
b .Foreign
9 Others 131 9,087,618 6.37
Total (excluding : shareholders holding 10% or more) 3,432 142,630,550 100.00
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Key Shareholding Information

Shareholding information as at December 31, 2020 required under reporting
framework is as follows:

. Number of Number of
Shareholder’s category shareholders \ shares held

Associated Companies, Undertaking and Related Parties (name wise details)

BABAR ALI FOUNDATION 15,529,116
INDUSTRIAL TECHNICAL AND EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTE 23,982,060
PACKAGES LIMITED 15,033,041
TOTAL 54,544,217
Mutual Funds (name wise details)

CDC - TRUSTEE ABL STOCK FUND 3,500
CDC - TRUSTEE AKD INDEX TRACKER FUND 6,616
CDC - TRUSTEE ALLIED FINERGY FUND 56,900
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL - STOCK FUND 392,600
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL EQUITY FUND 134,000
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL MULTI - ASSET FUND 12,200
CDC - TRUSTEE HBL PF EQUITY SUB FUND 24,500
CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST 62,556
CDC - TRUSTEE NBP FINANCIAL SECTOR FUND 183,000
CDC - TRUSTEE NBP STOCK FUND 321,100
CDC - TRUSTEE PICIC GROWTH FUND 308,200
CDC - TRUSTEE PICIC INVESTMENT FUND 254,900
CDC - TRUSTEE UBL ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 18,000
CDC - TRUSTEE UBL DEDICATED EQUITY FUND 2,000
CDC - TRUSTEE UBL RETIREMENT SAVINGS FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND 31,800
CDC - TRUSTEE UBL STOCK ADVANTAGE FUND 200,900
TOTAL 2,012,772
Directors and their spouse (name wise details)

MRS. AMINA HYDER ALI 340,325
SYED BABAR ALI 27,048,613
MS. FARYAL JOOMA 115
MS. FARYAL SADIQ 100
SYED HYDER ALI 8,692,402
SYEDA NIGHAT ALI 376,565
MRS. PERWIN BABAR ALI 3,355,238
SYED SHAHID ALI 1,534,974
SHAMIM AHMAD KHAN 7,251
SYED YAWAR ALI 1,440,057
MR. TAHIR MASAUD 115
TOTAL 42,795,755
Public Sector Companies and Corporations 1 1,409,902

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking Finance Institutions,
Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modaraba and Pension Funds 34 10,586,195

Shareholder holding five percent or more voting rights in the
company (name wise details)

BABAR ALI FOUNDATION 15,529,116
INDUSTRIAL TECHNICAL AND EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTE 23,982,060
PACKAGES LIMITED 15,033,041
SYED BABAR ALI 27,048,613
SYED HYDER ALI 8,692,402
TOTAL 90,285,232
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Pattern of Shareholdin

As at December 31, 2020

No. of Shareholder
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50,001
55,001
60,001
65,001
70,001
75,001
80,001
85,001
95,001
100,001
110,001
115,001
125,001
130,001
135,001
140,001
150,001
160,001
180,001
190,001
195,001
200,001
220,001
225,001
250,001
255,001
280,001
305,001
320,001
330,001
335,001
345,001
375,001
390,001
455,001
490,001
555,001
665,001
690,001
765,001
870,001
1,110,001
1,155,001
1,310,001
1,340,001
1,405,001
1,500,001
1,530,001
4,995,001
9,415,001
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Shareholdings

To

100

500
1,000
5,000
10,000
15,000
20,000
25,000
30,000
35,000
40,000
45,000
50,000
55,000
60,000
65,000
70,000
75,000
80,000
85,000
90,000
100,000
105,000
115,000
120,000
130,000
135,000
140,000
145,000
155,000
165,000
185,000
195,000
200,000
205,000
225,000
230,000
255,000
260,000
285,000
310,000
325,000
335,000
340,000
350,000
380,000
395,000
460,000
495,000
560,000
670,000
695,000
770,000
875,000
1,115,000
1,160,000
1,315,000
1,345,000
1,410,000
1,505,000
1,535,000
5,000,000
9,420,000

Total Number of Shareholders

32,958
108,680
144,903
867,655
841,535
640,358
391,442
451,638
435,581
566,014
186,023
254,166
242,795
472,553
341,117
186,816
201,592
147,475
153,976
415,310
177,175
200,000
100,774
115,000
356,430
251,031
532,644
547,998
140,500
154,470
488,319
183,000
191,874
200,000
403,874
225,000
230,000
761,894
258,750
282,785
613,450
321,100
331,670
338,905
696,977
376,565
392,600
460,000
493,655
560,000
667,202
692,500
767,383
872,850

1,110,927
1,157,825
1,313,875
1,343,103
1,409,902
1,500,528
1,534,946
5,000,000
9,419,494
44,259,562
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Pattern of Shareholding (Total)

As at December 31, 2020

Shareholdings

No. of Shareholder From To Total Number of Shareholders

1,727 1 100 42,659
555 101 500 135,700
252 501 1,000 183,434
441 1,001 5,000 1,068,910
149 5,001 10,000 1,087,222
76 10,001 15,000 895,622
25 15,001 20,000 445,583
21 20,001 25,000 472,559
20 25,001 30,000 541,043
20 30,001 35,000 662,687
5 35,001 40,000 186,023
8 40,001 45,000 340,009
5 45,001 50,000 242,795
11 50,001 55,000 575,956
7 55,001 60,000 396,276
3 60,001 65,000 186,816
4 65,001 70,000 270,106
2 70,001 75,000 147,475
2 75,001 80,000 153,976
5 80,001 85,000 415,310
3 85,001 90,000 262,622
1 90,001 95,000 92,525
5 95,001 100,000 490,694
2 100,001 105,000 202,664
3 110,001 115,000 345,000
3 115,001 120,000 356,430
2 125,001 130,000 251,031
4 130,001 135,000 532,644
4 135,001 140,000 547,998
1 140,001 145,000 140,500
2 150,001 155,000 307,470
1 155,001 160,000 158,269
3 160,001 165,000 488,319
2 170,001 175,000 344,669
1 180,001 185,000 183,000
1 190,001 195,000 191,874
3 195,001 200,000 591,254
2 200,001 205,000 403,874
1 220,001 225,000 225,000
1 225,001 230,000 230,000
3 250,001 255,000 761,894
2 255,001 260,000 517,006
1 260,001 265,000 260,170
1 280,001 285,000 282,785
1 290,001 295,000 292,425
2 305,001 310,000 613,450
1 320,001 325,000 321,100
1 325,001 330,000 328,312
1 330,001 335,000 331,670
2 335,001 340,000 678,360
2 345,001 350,000 696,977
1 375,001 380,000 376,565
1 390,001 395,000 392,600
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Pattern of Shareholding (Total)

As at December 31, 2020

Shareholdings

No. of Shareholder From To Total Number of Shareholders
1 455,001 460,000 460,000
1 490,001 495,000 493,655
1 555,001 560,000 560,000
1 665,001 670,000 667,202
1 670,001 675,000 673,275
1 690,001 695,000 692,500
2 715,001 720,000 1,437 495
1 765,001 770,000 767,383
1 825,001 830,000 826,505
1 850,001 855,000 854,375
1 870,001 875,000 872,850
1 1,110,001 1,115,000 1,110,927
1 1,155,001 1,160,000 1,157,825
1 1,220,001 1,225,000 1,222,688
1 1,310,001 1,315,000 1,313,875
1 1,340,001 1,345,000 1,343,103
1 1,405,001 1,410,000 1,409,902
1 1,500,001 1,505,000 1,500,528
1 1,530,001 1,535,000 1,534,946
1 2,235,001 2,240,000 2,238,318
1 2,420,001 2,425,000 2,424,693
1 4,995,001 5,000,000 5,000,000
1 5,255,001 5,260,000 5,255,247
1 5,570,001 5,575,000 5,573,737
1 7,160,001 7,165,000 7,164,636
1 9,415,001 9,420,000 9,419,494
1 14,975,001 14,980,000 14,975,406
1 23,980,001 23,985,000 23,982,060
1 27,045,001 27,050,000 27,048,613

3,432

142,630,550
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Share Price / \lolume

Volume of Share price on PSX (Rs.)
shares traded Highest Lowest Closing

January 245,700 203.99 217.88 185.50 203.99
February 460,600 200.05 227.74 188.00 207.50
March 155,000 208.50 211.00 128.93 141.58
April 1,698,400 141.58 250.01 141.58 24748
May 1,195,900 243.00 245.01 222.00 225.58
June 3,790,900 220.01 231.99 174.16 180.96
July 4,930,100 185.00 220.50 181.50 212.22
August 6,201,200 214.88 232.80 202.00 223.98
September 3,710,300 225.00 248.98 215.00 218.97
October 1,092,400 213.00 219.99 186.00 198.32
November 1,505,900 191.15 208.00 185.00 193.29
December 1,203,000 192.00 210.00 192.00 203.44

Pakistan Stock Exchange

PSX
7,000,000 - - 300.00

6,000,000 - 250.00

5,000,000
L 200.00

Volume

4,000,000

Price (Rs.)

L 150.00
3,000,000

L 100.00
2,000,000

1,000,000 | L 50.00

0

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

I Volume of Shares Traded Closing Share Price
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Corporate Calendar 2020

Audit Committee and
Board of Directors
meetings to consider
annual accounts of the
Company for the year
ended December 31,
2019.

1st
E-Credit of 30% cash
dividend to the
shareholders for the year
ended December 31,
2019.

29th
Audit Committee and
Board of Directors
meetings to consider
quarterly accounts for the
three months’ period
ended March 31, 2020.

Audit Committee and
Board of Directors
meetings to consider half
yearly accounts of the
Company for the six
months’ period ended
June 30, 2020.

Annual General Meeting of
shareholders to consider
and approve annual
accounts of the Company
for the year ended
December 31, 2019 and
dividend announcement.

21st
Corporate Briefing Session
to brief the investors and
analysts about the
Company’s current financial
performance and outlook.

Audit Committee and
Board of Directors
meetings to consider
quarterly accounts for the
nine months’ period ended
September 30, 2020.
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Chairman’s Review Report

| am pleased by the performance of IGI Holdings Limited for the year ended December 31, 2020. The Company
is operating as a holding company and derives value for its shareholders from its subsidiaries namely; |Gl
Investments (Private) Limited, Gl General Insurance Limited, |Gl Life Insurance Limited and IGI Finex
Securities Limited.

Dividend income constitutes major source of income of the Company and as a result, its income pattern follows
dividend distribution pattern of the subsidiaries.

The composition of the Board of Directors is a mix of varied backgrounds and rich experience in the fields of
business, finance, laws and regulations. The Board provides strategic direction as well as guidance to the
Management. The Board also ensures compliance of regulatory requirements by the Management. As required
under the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 the Board evaluates its own
performance through a mechanism developed by it, while |, as the Chairman evaluates the performance of
each director.

The Board is assisted by its Committees. The Audit Committee reviews the financial statements and ensures
that they fairly represent the financial position of the Company. It also ensures effectiveness of internal controls.
The Board has also constituted a Human Resource and Remuneration Committee which handles the matters
pertaining to planning and development of human resource and remuneration. Each subsidiary has its own
board of directors and respective committees.

| pray to Allah that the Company and its subsidiaries continue momentum of growth in the future.
For and on behalf of the Board
oor -
-~
Syed Babar Ali

Chairman
Lahore: March 18, 2021
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Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

The Directors of IGI Holdings Limited (“IGI Holdings”) take pleasure in presenting the annual report of your Company, together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020.

IGI Holdings is operating as a holding company and derives value for its shareholders from its subsidiaries namely |Gl General
Insurance Limited, |Gl Life Insurance Limited, IGI Investments (Private) Limited and IGI Finex Securities Limited. Dividend income
constitutes major source of income of the Company and as a result, its income pattern follows dividend distribution pattern of the
subsidiaries.

COMPANY PERFORMANCE REVIEW
2020 2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

Operating revenue 1,110,000 1,107,950
Operating income 852,532 803,832
Profit before taxation 974,845 911,542
Taxation (30,517) (14,813)
Profit after taxation 944,328 896,729
Earnings per share (in rupees) — basic / diluted 6.62 6.29

Operating income has grown by 6% to Rs. 853 million during the year as compared to Rs. 804 million earned during 2019 with
profit after taxation of Rs. 944 million against profit after tax of Rs. 897 million during 2019.

During the current year, impairment loss which was recognised in previous years, amounting to Rs. 101 million has been reversed
in respect of Company’s investment in IGI Finex Securities Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary. Key assumptions behind this
reversal include increase in trading volumes in Pakistan Stock Exchange, upward revision of commission rates and increase in
market share of IGI Finex Securities Limited.
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APPROPRIATIONS

The Company has generated a profit of Rs. 944 million during the year. Accordingly, the Directors have recommended cash dividend
of 50% (i.e. Rs. 5 per share) (2019: 30%, Rs. 3 per share). Therefore, the Company has appropriated Rs. 713.1 million (2019: Rs.
427.9 million) for the payment of final cash dividend.

RISK MITIGATION

The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee of the Board regularly review risks faced by the Company in terms of impact and
probability of occurrence. The senior management team, led by the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for risk mitigation
measures. The Company’s ability to continually assess market conditions and its timely response enables the Company to manage
risks effectively.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND LIQUIDITY
The Company actively manages and monitors matching of its asset positions against its commitments, together with diversification
and credit quality of its investments.

Being a holding company, dividend income is its major source of income. The same is utilized for creation of value for shareholders
through future investments and maintaining reasonable payouts to shareholders after meeting financial commitments.

INTEREST RATE RISK
Variable rate long term financing is hedged against interest rate risk by holding prepayment option, which can be exercised upon any
adverse movement in the underlying interest rates.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In accordance with provisions of Section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and the Companies (Related Party Transactions
and Maintenance of Related Records) Regulations 2018, your Company has:

1) established a policy of related party transactions duly approved by the Board;
2) set up conditions for the transactions with related parties to be categorized as “arm’s length transactions”; and
3) submitted details of related party transactions to the Directors for approval.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE REGULATIONS

The Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (Regulations) issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) are applicable to the Company and related provisions have been fully complied with. A statement to
this effect is annexed.

MATERIAL CHANGES

There have been no material changes since December 31, 2020 and the Company has not entered into any commitment, which
would affect its financial position at the date except for those mentioned in the audited financial statements of the Company for the
year ended December 31, 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors of IGI Holdings comprises eight directors including the Chairman and CEO:

Category Total number of directors

Male 6
Female 2
Composition

Independent directors 2
Non-executive directors 5
Executive director/CEO 1
Female directors (included in independent directors) 2

Mr. Tahir Masaud, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, is a deemed director as envisaged in Section 188(3) of the Act.
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The names of the directors as at December 31, 2020 are as follows:

Syed Babar Ali Chairman, Non-executive director

Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan Non-executive director

Syed Yawar Ali Non-executive director

Syed Shahid Ali Non-executive director

Syed Hyder Ali Non-executive director

Ms. Faryal Jooma Independent director

Ms. Faryal Sadiq Independent director

Mr. Tahir Masaud Executive Director/CEO
The Board has formed an Audit Committee and a Human Resource and Remuneration Committee (HR&RC) with the following
composition:

Audit Committee e e e

Ms. Faryal Jooma, Chairperson Ms. Faryal Jooma, Chairperson

Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan, Member Syed Yawar Ali, Member

Syed Yawar Ali, Member Syed Shahid Ali, Member

Syed Hyder Ali, Member Syed Hyder Ali, Member

Mr. Tahir Masaud, Member

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Board has approved a Directors’ remuneration policy. The objective of this policy is to have a transparent procedure for fixing the
remuneration of Directors including remuneration for extra / technical services provided by non-executive Directors. Revision in the
remuneration shall, from time to time be determined by the Board of Directors on recommendation of HR&RC.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK
The Directors of your Company state that:

- The financial statements prepared by the Management of the Company fairly present the state of affairs of the Company, the
results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity;

- Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained;

- Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting estimates
are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

- The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirement of the Act and International Financial
Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan. Any departures therefrom have been adequately disclosed and explained;

- The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored;

- There is no doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern;

- There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the Regulations;
- Summary of key operational and financial data for the last six years is annexed in this annual report;

- Where any statutory payment on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges is outstanding, the amount together with a brief
description and reasons for the same is disclosed in the financial statements;
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- Significant plans and decisions, such as corporate restructuring, business expansion and discontinuance of operations, have
been disclosed along with future prospects, risks and uncertainties, if any;

- |Gl Holdings and its subsidiaries strive for implementation of measures to improve health, safety and creation of a better and
safe workplace environment for their employees and surrounded community.

- |Gl Holdings and its subsidiaries are committed to the causes facilitating provision of education and health to the
under-privileged members of the society. The donations to such causes are made in accordance with the approvals by the
respective Boards;

- The Board of Directors of the Company has an approved mechanism for annual evaluation of its performance as well as that of
its Committees, as required by the Regulations.

- The Board is in compliance with the requirements of the directors training program as stipulated in the Regulations.
- Trades in the shares of the Company carried out by the Directors and their spouses during the year are mentioned below:
Directors & spouses

Mrs. Perwin Babar Ali purchased 69,900 shares
Syed Hyder Ali, Director purchased 50,000 shares
Ms. Faryal Sadig, Director purchased 100 shares

The CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and Executives have not traded in the shares of the Company during the year.
- Information about taxes and levies is given in the notes to the financial statements.

- The Board held four meetings during the year, attendance by each director therein was as follows:

Director Name Attendance

Syed Babar Ali

Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan

Syed Yawar Ali

Syed Shahid Al

Syed Hyder Ali

Mr. Hasan Askari (resigned on March 10, 2020)
Ms. Faryal Jooma

Ms. Faryal Sadiq (elected during the year)

Mr. Tahir Masaud (CEO)

FNUN Y I PN I NG NCY I N Y NS

The Board granted leave of absence to those directors who could not attend the Board meetings.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year and attendance by each member was as follows:

Director Name Attendance

Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan 4
Syed Yawar Ali 4
Syed Hyder Ali 4
Ms. Faryal Jooma 4
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The HR&RC held one meeting during the year. Attendance by each member was as follows:

Director Name Attendance

Syed Yawar Al 1
Syed Shahid Ali -
Syed Hyder Ali -
Ms. Faryal Jooma 1
Mr. Tahir Masaud 1

The Committee granted leave of absence to those members who could not attend the meeting.

AUDITORS

The Auditors, Messrs A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire at the conclusion of the 67th Annual General Meeting.
Being eligible, they have offered themselves for re-appointment and the Board based on the recommendation of Audit Committee
has endorsed their re-appointment.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
A statement of the pattern of shareholding of certain classes of shareholders as at December 31, 2020, whose disclosure is required
under the reporting framework, is included in the annexed shareholders’ information.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

COVID-19 has impacted the economy and businesses in general. Since |Gl Holdings is a holding company, the businesses in which
our subsidiaries operate have not been directly affected by these impacts. We expect that our subsidiaries will deliver consistent and
profitable growth in the future as well.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
We would like to thank all of our stakeholders for their faith in us, which has helped us to achieve progress.

For and on behalf of the Board

b AN

Syed Babar Ali Tahir Masaud
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
Lahore: March 18, 2021 Lahore: March 18, 2021
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies

(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

|Gl Holdings Limited
For the year ended December 31, 2020

IGI Holdings Limited (the Company) has complied with requirements of
the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019 (the Regulations) in the following manner:

1.

Male
Female

The total number of directors [including Chief Executive Officer
(deemed director) is eight (8) as per the following:

Six (6)

Two (2)

2. The composition of Board is as follows:

Name of the Member

a) Audit Committee:
Category

Ms. Faryal Jooma Chairperson / Independent Director

Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan Member / Non-executive Director
Syed Yawar Ali Member / Non-executive Director
Syed Hyder Ali Member / Non-executive Director

Name of the Member

b) HR and Remuneration Committee:

Category

Category m Ms. Faryal Jooma Chairperson/ Independent Director
Independent Female Directors | Ms. Faryal Jooma Syed Yawar Al Member/ Non-executive Director
Ms. Faryal Sadiq Syed Shahid Ali Member/ Non-executive Director
Non-Executive Directors Syed Babar Ali Syed Hyder Ali Member/ Non-executive Director
Mr. Shamim Ahmad Khan Mr. Tahir Masaud Member/ Executive Director
Syed Yawar A". 13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed,
Syed Shahid Ali . ) .
) documented and advised to the committee for compliance;
Syed Hyder Ali
Executive Director (CEO) Mr. Tahir Masaud 14. The frequency of meetings of the committees was as per following;-
3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director Audit Committee Quarterly
on more than seven listed companies, including this Company; HR and Remuneration Committee (HR&RC) Yearly
4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured 15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function which is
that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and
the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures; is conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company;
5. The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall 16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they
corporate strategy and significant policies of the Company. The have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control
Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is Pakistan, and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan,
maintained by the Company; that they and all their partners are in compliance with the
6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and Ir}te;rr:gnonal F:detraslcl))n c:LAﬁco?tr] t?ntsf(éF;\ ?1) gu;d/-(\allnes c;n ?Odi
decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the Board / g E. t|cs as dathoﬁteh y dethns ' urte 0 fti e;e Iccolun daf‘ stho
Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the aj dllts Z:earr:ot aa clo?;, arr;Iativee p(szErsseo pafenltrm dgg\)/gnvtfenltnanz
Companies Act, 2017 (he Act) and the Regulations; non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial
7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the
and, in his absence, by a director elected by the Board for this Company;
purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act . . .
and these Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and 7. Igf St::gjr:oz;;:i:?; OIOthi)mrizznso?;:?c':;ﬁx;h t:fcr?epf:aviﬁ
circulating minutes of meeting of the Board; accordance with the Act, the Regulations or any other regulatory
8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for requirement and , the auditors have confirmed that they have
remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and the observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;
Regulations; 18. We confirm that all requirements of the Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,
9. At present, out of eight (8) Directors on the Board, four (4) 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied with;
D|r<.3c.tors (including t.h © (.;EO) have acquired the DI!’ECtOI’S Explanation under Regulation 6: The Board of the Company
Training Program Certifications whilst the other four (4) directors ) . ) :
are exempt from the requirement of Directors’ Training Program; comprises of eight (8) Directors and the computation for the
' determination of the independent directors under Regulation 6
10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, (based on one-third of elected directors works out to be 2.67.
company secretary and head of internal audit, including their During the year, two (2) Independent Directors were elected by
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and the shareholders in terms of Section 166 of the Act, who possess
complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations; requisite competencies, skills, knowledge, and experience to hold
11. Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the office as independent directors, therefore, does not warrant the
financial statements before approval of the Board: appointment of a third independent director.
12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given

below.-

e
Syed Babar Ali
Chairman
Lahore: March 18, 2021
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Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

_a

pwc AFFERGUSON&CO,

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of IGI Holdings Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of IGI Holdings Limited
(the Company) for the year ended December 31, 2020 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36
of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance
with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not
required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and
controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate
governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions.
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related
party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020.

"’Sﬂﬂgfb

A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Date: March 31, 2021

A.F.FERGUSON &CO., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC network
State Life Building No. 1-C, I.I. Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-74000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (21) 32426682-6/32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/32427938/32424740; <www pwc.com/pk>

= KARACHI| = LAHORE = ISLAMABAD
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pwc AFFERGUSON&CO.

INDEPENDENT AUDTTOR'S REPORT

To the members of 1G] Holdings Limited
Report on the Andit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opindon

We bave audited the annesed unconsolidated financial statements of IGT Holdings Limited {the
Companyl, which comprize the unconsolidated statement of financal position az at December 31, 2030,
end the unconsolidated statement of profit or less, the voconsolideted staterent of profis or loas and other
compreliensive income, the unesnsobidsted statement of changes in eguity, the unconsolidated statement
of cash flows for the vear then ended, and ootes o the oneonsshidated financial statements, incheding a
summary of significant seccunting pelickes and other explanatory information, and we state thot we have
obtained zll the Information and explanations which, to the best of our knowladpe and balief, weres
netessary for the porposes of the awdit,

In our opinion and to the best of our informaticn and according to the explanations given to us, the
uneonsclidated statement of financial pesition, the wneonsclidated staberment of profit or loss, the
uneeadibated staternent of profic or loss and ather comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement
of chanpes i ety and the onoonsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes formimg part
thoreod conform with the acoounting aod reporting stundands as spplicable in Pakistan and give the
Irformation regquired by the Companies Act, 2017 (XX of 2oa7), In the manner so required and respeciively
give 4 trae and r:lrﬂew-nf'rhutateutthtﬂumpm#uﬁujmmst Decamber 31, zozo and of the profit und
other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash Nows for the year then ended,

Basis for Opinion

We mnducted our audit Incaceordance with International Standards on Aaditing ([5As] as applicalde in
Pakistan, Dur responakbilisies under those standards sre further described in the Audirors Responsibilities
Jor tha Audit of the Uneonsolidated Finaneial Strtemente section of our report, We are| endent of the
Compuny in aceardanee with thie Internationnl Ethics Standards Board for Acooantants” e of Bthics for
Professional Accormmtorits as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Aceountants of Pakistan (the Code) and
we haswe folfilled our ether ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audil
evidence we have abtained i sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basls for our opingomn,

Eey andit Matters

B amdit matters ate thoss matters that, in our professional jodpment, were of most significancs in our
audit of the unconanlidated fnincial statements of the current peried, These matters were addressed in
the comtext of ooy andit of the vneonsalidated finansal statements as a whale, and in forming cur opimion
theresn, und we do ool provide g separate cpinkon on these matiecs,

Following is the Key Audit Matter:
SN, KeyAuditMatter | Haw the matter was addressed in our ndit
i Assessment of recoverable amount of
investmient in (G Finex Spourities Limited

[Feler ixobe 6.1.9 G the annesed unconsolidated
financal satemenrs)

b wespict wf the w 'y estment in 1G] Dur sedin procedures induded the following:
H-'HEH Ber Emit o _th:lﬂ'ﬁ' pamied . {Tndersond andd reviewed The maraprment’s propsss
sibwidinry of the &WFNHQ;-;:WIHL the urtenl . fop gescssment of pecovernble amonnt of investment

yuar, the nanagement debernine] Ll ; Y
recoverable amourt of its investmonk in [G] Finex, 1] Fincx Securitios .

Meo

i A, E. FERGESON & 0D Chartered Aocounfandd, @ meriber fire of the PurC neliork
Sivite e Aeilefing Weo =0, L0 Ofamdvigar Ruod, PO Box grab, Korochi-Fgooo, Pakisiha
Tol: +ga (2] 5oamhEHe-6/ 3242677 1- 57 Fom =08 (0] 3200 5005 a7 38, 2400 Faa T < unenp, pussoarmy pk

S EARLCH] sLARMDRE = | SLAMAELD
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Securitiet LJ.Tm'I-u& a.l'l.d mm:d .=.n tm]uim-mr i
less of Rz 101420 milllen recogpised in the
previoda years. In determining the reeovernhls
amound, the manegemint e oeed cortain bey |
amumpimns. Key asumplions indude traling
volumes handled by 1G] Finey Seewritles Limited,
avorape sommilzsion rake, growth i isading
| wvolumies, vt b inemime ntiss, returns oo fods

dlejlayid, dizcount rate, lEnmimal growth micobe. A
|sigrificant chamge in the assumptions used may
ftnpact the valie of investment.

The detecminatioa of fecoverabhe amoant of
trvestment m [G] Fine Secoritees Limibsd rentams

a shpnificant area of fodgment and estimation
Becamse of the significarics of the impact of these
jielgments f ssumations, we cossidered the aren of
asmesninent of pecoveralile af amoint of ivesinenl «
a5 i ey padil matter

_Hmﬂ-q Mﬁrwﬂ

AFFERGUSON&CO.
: i

i Wﬂ'ﬂ'ﬁ.} ﬁﬂ" .'"I'..l
Ievndved aor vabhetion sp-:nu.]-t.s to AR 1 in
i rming eor audis prm!durm i this acen.

fusrarot whither the impadrment festing process s
appropriaely designed and captured the relevant |

valanton inpuis.

Tested the completeness and acouracy of the. datn |
uzed i the valaatzan model,

Asseaeed the reasonableness of the koy assumphons
usxl by the momagemen] soch 3a irading vohimes
Binmidhad bie 1031 Fioes Sesuktes Limiisd, svweiags
commizsinn rate, gromwth i troding volume, cost in |
income rating, referns on funds deploved, dissoand |
rate, torminal provwth rate ofc,

Checked fhat the disclosurss relating to the
assessment of recoerable amount of vestment in

161 Finex Secnrities Limibed wers i accordance with
tha applicable Anonenl reporting framasark,
| |

Information Other than the Unconsolidated and Consolidated Financial Statements and
ﬁm]lluﬂsl:pnrh: Thereon

Management 1s responsiple for the other mformetion. The other informstion comprises the isformation
{neluded in the Anpual Beport, but doss not inelnde the uneopsolidatad snd consolidated financial
statements and our anditor's reports thereen

Chuar opimion on the uneonsobidated financial statements does not sover the ather informeation and we do
nok express wmy form of assuramce conchuiwn thereon,

In connection with ourandit of the onconsolidated Anancial staternents, our respensibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the ather information i matarially ineonsistent with
the anconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materinfly misstated. If, based on the werck we have performed, we eonclude that there i 2

misstatemant of this other information, we are reguirsd 1o report that et Wi have nothing o repart [n

this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Finnncial
Staleanenis

Mansgement s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the oneonsclidated financial
statements in aceordance with the accounting and reporting stundards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2007 [XIX of 2017) and for such miernal control sis manigement
determines is necessary to enable the prepacation of unconselidated finnncial staterments that are free from
matetisl misstatement, whether doe to fread or érror,

In preparing the unconsolidated financizl stalements, munagement b responsible for wssessing the
Company's ability to continue as a goang convern, disclosing, as applicable, matters rolated to going concem
and osig the gomng comearn bhasis u% poccuntng unless managsment either intends o Bguidate the
Company or o ccase operotions, or has o reslistic altermstive bl to do s,

Bunrd of direetors ave responsible for overseting the Company’s finandal reporting process.

Mo
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pwc AFFERGUSONE&CO,

Auditor’s Responsibilitles for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statemenis

Dr ohjectives ate to obtain reasonable assurance abowt whether the uneonsclidated finincial statements
a% & whobe are free rom materisl msstatement, whether doe to fred or emor, ad G issue an audilor's
report that includes our opinion. Ressonable assucance (s a high level of assurance, but 5 1ot o guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with 15A2 a2 applicable in Pakistan will always detect & material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from frowd or ercor and are considerad materinl if,
individunlly or in the aggregate, they could reascnably be cxpected to influence the cconomie docisions of
ugers taken on the basis of these unconsclidated financial staternents,

Az part of an audit in eecordance with [SAs as applicable in Pakistan, wo exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throaghout the andit. Ye also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsclidated financial statéments,
whether due to frond or eoor, desige and peeform awdsl procedures responsive-to those rigks, and
nheain audit evidencs that is sufficient ond appropriate 1o provide a basiz for our opimion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fravd = higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud niay invelve sollusion, forgery, intenticnal omissions, misrepresentations, or the pvarride of
Linkernal eomtbrinl,

= [htain ap uoderstanding of nternal controel relevant ta the audit in order to design audit procedures
Lhat e sppropriale o the drowmstances, bub pot for the purpose of expressing an eplsion an the
effectivenese of the Compamy’s internal control,

=  Evaluate the appropristeness of accounting policics vsed und the ressonablepess of accounting
estimates and related dischosurss mads by manageiment

s  (onclode on the appropriateness of management’s ose of the going concern basis of accounting and,
hagael an the andit evidence obdained, whether § material opceriainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant dowubt on the Compary’s ability to continue a3 & going coneern, If
we corchede that 5 matecial uncertainty exists, we ace reguiced (o draw allention in oo auditors report
to the related disclosures in the anconsolidated Bnancial statements or, 7 such disclosures are
nadequate, to modify our opinion. Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtiined ap to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, fature events or conditions may eanse the Corwpany to cease to
cntinue as g going cmear.

= Fnlunte the overall presentation, strueboe and coptent of the onoonsslidated financal statements,
including the disdosures, and whether the unconsolidated foancial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in 2 manner that achbeves fur presentation.

We commuuicate with the board of divectors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
Liming of e amdit and significent godit fudings, ncluding acy significant deliciencics in internal control
khat we ideatity during oar audit.

We also prowvide the board of directors with a staternent that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirenients regarding independence, and o communicate with them all relationships and ather motters
that may ressonahly he thought to bear on o independsnee, and whers applicable, related safeguards.

Froom Athe matters communicated with the boaed of divectors, we determine those matters that were of mast
significance (n the audif of the imeonsolidated financinl stotements of the eurrent period and are therefors

the kev audit matters. We describe these matters in our anditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public discingure ohout the matter or when, in extremnely rons circumstancss, we determine that a matter

showld not 5e communicated i our repart beenise Be advierse corsequences of doing se would ressonably
be axpected 1o outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

o
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Report on (Mher Legal and Regulalory Reguirements
Basesd on ooraudat, we further report that i oo opinian:

a] proper books of acconnt have been kept by the Coimpany as requinsd by the Companies Act; 2017 (XTX
af 2017

B} the nneonsolldated statement of Mnenclal positon, the unconsolidated strement aof prafit or loss, the
wnermsalidated statement of profit or koss and other comprehersive income, the unconsalidated
statement of changes in equity and the unconsalkdated smatement of cash flows tegether with the notes
thereon bave been drawn vy in conformily with the Companies Aet, 2o1; (XX of 2o17) and ane in
agresment with the books of account and returns;

o} imvestmenis made, cxpenditors ineumed and guarnnbecs exkended during the yoar were for the purpose
of the Compamy's business; snd

O] pakat deduetible ot source under the Zaket and Ushr Ondinanes, 1080 [XVIIT of 1080 ), wad dedueted
iy the Cormpany and deposired in the Cenreal Zakat Fund established under sectinn 7ofthat Ordinance.

The epgapement partner on the aodit sesultiong in this iadependent anditor's report s
Noman Ahhas Sheikh,

t’:’ﬂﬂ?m

AF Fer ™ n.
CherteradBoconn tants

Karachi
Dinted: Maceh g1, 20
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Unconsolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2020
Note

ASSETS (Rupees in ‘000)

Non-current assets
Fixed assets

- Property and equipment 4 947 1,384
- Intangible asset 5 - -
Investments - net 6 15,847,249 15,744,638
Long-term deposits 1,768 1,738
Deferred taxation - net 7 21,086 43,958
15,871,050 15,791,718
Current assets
Loans and advances 8 7,400 7,400
Deposits and prepayments 6,513 6,832
Dividend receivable 150,000 -
Other receivables 9 213,561 219,485
Taxation recoverable 46,724 54,972
Bank balances 10 32,385 11,363
456,583 300,052
TOTAL ASSETS 16,327,633 16,091,770
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorised share capital
200,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
(2019: 200,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each) 2,000,000 2,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 11 1,426,305 1,426,305
Reserves 7,764,863 7,764,863
Deficit on remeasurement of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (10,242) (11,433)
Unappropriated profit 5,110,707 4,594,271
Total equity 14,291,633 13,774,006
Non-current liabilities
Long term loan - secured 12 300,000 600,000
Current liabilities
Short term loan 13 1,157,699 1,121,163
Current portion of long term loan - secured 12 300,000 300,000
Unclaimed dividend 28,749 28,464
Trade and other payables 14 249,552 268,137
1,736,000 1,717,764
Total liabilities 2,036,000 2,317,764
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 16,327,633 16,091,770
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 15

The annexed notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

y
| &
n: SAvkba,,
Chief Executivel'Ofﬁcer Chief FiAancial Officer Director
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Unconsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For The Year Ended December 31, 2020

Dividend income

Other income
Total income

General and administrative expenses

Finance costs
Total expenses

Reversal of provision against investments - net

Recoveries against bad and doubtful loans
and advances / lease losses - net

Profit before taxation
Taxation - net

Profit after taxation

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

Note

16

17

18
19

20

21

2020 2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

The annexed notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

T
L

Chief Executivel'Ofﬁcer

Chief FiAancial Officer

1,110,000 1,107,950
1,397 3,585
1,111,397 1,111,535
(66,463) (97,597)
(192,402) (210,106)
(258,865) (307,703)
852,532 803,832
101,420 92,720
20,893 14,990
974,845 911,542
(30,517) (14,813)
944,328 896,729
(Rupees)
6.62 6.29
Director
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Unconsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income
For The Year Ended December 31, 2020

Note 2020 2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

Profit after taxation 944,328 896,729
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss
Surplus / (deficit) on remeasurement of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income 1,191 (636)
945,519 896,093

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

'Aw&\ : S A kbar,

Chief Executivel'Ofﬁcer Chief Fiaancial Officer Director
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Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For The Year Ended December 31, 2020

Balance as at January 1,2019
Impact of adoption of IFRS 9
Balance as at January 1, 2019

Profit after taxation for the year
ended December 31,2019

Other comprehensive loss for the year
Total comprehensive income for the
year ended December 31,2019

Transactions with owners directly
recorded in equity

- Final dividend for the year ended December 31,
2018 atthe rate of Rs. 3 per share approved
onApri 26,2019

Balance as at December 31,2019
Proftt after taxation for the year ended
ended December 31,2020

Other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the
year ended December 31,2020

Transactions with owners directly
recorded in equity
- Final dividend for the year ended

December 31,2019-Rs. 3 per share
approved on May 21,2020

Balance as at December 31,2020

Issued,

Capital Reserves Revenue reserves

The annexed notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

{im
=

Chief Executivel'Ofﬁcer

subscn:ibed Premi Oth Deficit on remeasurement of ,
it I T TS
oomprehenswe income
(Rupees in ‘000)

1,426,305 434,051 33267 - 7207545 4114637 13,305,805

- (10,797) 10797
1,426,305 434,051 33267 (10,797) 7207545 4125434 13,305,805
- - 896,729 896,729
(636) - (636)
(636) - 8%T8 896,093
- (B89 (42789
1,426,305 434,051 33267 (11433) 7207545 459271 13,774,006
94,328 94,328
1191 1,191
1191 4,328 %5519
. - (4278%) (427892
1,426,305 434051 33267 (10242) 7207545 510,707 14,291,633

f,d-uu%
. .
Chief Financial Officer Director
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Unconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For The Year Ended December 31, 2020
Note

(Rupees in ‘000)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation 974,845 911,542
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 4 262 573
Finance costs 19 192,402 210,106
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 17 (476) (285)
Gain on disposal of equity investments 17 - (1,562)
(Reversal of provision) / provision against investments - net 6.1.1 (101,420) (92,720)
Recovery against bad and doubtful loans and advances / lease losses - net (20,893) (14,990)
Profit on saving accounts 17 (857) (1,738)
Dividend income 16 (1,110,000) (1,107,950)
(1,040,982) (1,008,566)
(66,137) (97,024)
Changes in working capital
Decrease in current assets
Long term deposits, deposits and prepayments, other receivables 1,813 8,152
(Increase) / decrease in current liabilities
Trade and other payables other than certificate of deposits (4,296) 10,673
(68,620) (78,199)
Net recovery from long term loans and advances 24,366 11,500
Net recovery from finance leases 927 6,700
Tax paid - net 603 (3,564)
Net cash used in operating activities (42,724) (63,563)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds on disposal of property and equipment 670 372
Proceeds on disposal of equity investments - 1,698
Dividend received 960,000 1,107,950
Profit / return received 857 1,738
Purchase of property and equipment (19) -
Investment in subsidiary company - (832,023)
Net cash generated from investing activities 961,508 279,735
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid (427,607) (432,176)
Repayment of certificate of deposits - (20)
Loan repayments (300,000) (300,000)
Financial charges paid (206,691) (191,143)
Net cash used in financing activities (934,298) (923,339)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (15,514) (707,167)
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year (1,109,800) (402,633)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 10.2 (1,125,314) (1,109,800)

The annexed notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

SAkbhan,

Chief Executive"Officer Chief FiFmanciaI Officer Director
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Notes to and Forming Part of the

Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For The Year Ended December 31, 2020

1
11

1.2

21

2.2

23

24

25

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

IGI Holdings Limited (“the Company”), a Packages Group Company, was incorporated as a public
limited company in 1953 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies
Act, 2017). The shares of the Company are quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The
registered office of the Company is situated at 7th floor, The Forum, Suite No. 701-713, G-20, Block
9, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi. The objects of the Company include to act as an investment
holding company and for that purpose invest, acquire, sell and hold the securities and financial
instruments subject to compliance by relevant laws prevailing in Pakistan from time to time.

These unconsolidated financial statements are the separate financial statements of 1GI Holdings
Limited. In addition to these unconsolidated financial statements, a consolidated financial statements
of IGI Holdings Limited and its subsidiary companies, |Gl Finex Securities Limited, 1Gl General
Insurance Limited, IGI FSI (Pvt.) Limited, IGI Life Insurance Limited and IGI Investments (Pvt.)
Limited (the Group) have also been prepared. As allowed by the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs), the Company opted to present the segment information only in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable
in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been
followed.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards
that are effective in the current year:

There are certain new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory
for the Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 but are considered not
to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the Company’s operations and therefore, have
not been stated in these unconsolidated financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards
that are not yet effective:

There are certain new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the
Company’s accounting year beginning on or after January 1, 2021 but are not considered to be
relevant or will not have any significant effect on the Company’s operations and, therefore, have not
been detailed in these unconsolidated financial statements.

Basis of measurement

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except for certain investments which are carried at fair value and an investment in a subsidiary
company which has been carried at cost less accumulated impairment.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the unconsolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. The unconsolidated financial
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

2.6 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with the accounting
and reporting standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the
Company’s unconsolidated financial statements or where judgment was exercised in application of
accounting policies are as follows:

i) Determination and measurement of useful life and residual value of property and equipment
(notes 3.3.1 and 4);

i) Classification, valuation and impairment of investments (notes 3.5, 6 and 3.5.1.2);
iii) Impairment of assets (notes 3.5.1.2 and 6.1.1);
iv) Provision for taxation and deferred tax (notes 3.11, 7 and 20); and

v) Provisions and contingencies (notes 3.10 and 15).
3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented.

3.1 Business combination

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method. The cost of acquisition
is measured as the fair value of assets given, equity instruments issued and the liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of acquisition. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, if any. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. |dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess
of the consideration transferred over the fair value of the Company’s share of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets acquired in
the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the unconsolidated statement
of profit or loss.

3.2 Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is measured, subsequent to initial recognition, at its cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the CGUs, or the groups of CGU, that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The carrying
value of goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the
fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

33 Fixed assets

3.3.1 Property and equipment
These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any,
except for capital work-in-progress which is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if

any. The cost of an item of property and equipment comprises of its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.
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Depreciation on all fixed assets is calculated using the straight line method in accordance with
the rates specified in note 4 to these unconsolidated financial statements after taking into account
residual values, if significant. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if significant, at each reporting date.

Depreciation on additions is charged from the date the asset is available for use. For any disposal,
depreciation is charged till the date of disposal.

Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss as and
when incurred.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property and equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

3.3.2 Intangible assets

Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line
method taking into account residual value, if significant, at the rates specified in note 5 to these
unconsolidated financial statements. Amortisation is charged from the date the asset is available for
use while in the case of assets disposed of, it is charged till the date of disposal. The useful lives,
assets residual value and amortisation method are reviewed and adjusted, if significant, at each
reporting date.

Intangible assets having an indefinite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life, when, based on
an analysis of all the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which asset
is expected to generate net cash inflows for the Company. An intangible asset with an indefinite
useful life is not amortised. However, the carrying amount is reviewed at each reporting date or
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired, to assess whether it is in excess of
its recoverable amount, and where the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, it
is written down to its estimated recoverable amount.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

3.4 Investments

3.4.1 Investment in associates
Investment in associates are presented in the unconsolidated statement of financial position on the
basis of historical cost less accumulated impairment losses. In addition dividend income is accounted
for when the Company’s right to receive such dividend is established.

3.4.2 Investment in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

3.5 Financial instruments

3.5.1 Financial assets

3.5.1.1 Classification and subsequent measurement

The Company has applied IFRS 9 and classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

- atamortised cost
- at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
- at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments are described below:

Annual Report 2020 | 61



Notes to and Forming Part of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

(i) Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the issuer’s
perspective, such as loans, government and corporate bonds and puttable instruments like units of
open-ended mutual funds.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on:

- the Company’s business model for managing the asset; and
- the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Based on these factors, the Company classifies its debt instruments in one of the following three
measurement categories:

a) At amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI), and that are not designated at FVPL, are measured
at amortised cost. The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss
allowance recognised and measured as described in note 3.5.1.2.

b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not
designated at FVPL, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income (OCI), except
for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, recognised and measured as described in note
3.5.1.2, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses on the instrument’'s amortised
cost which are recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
(OCl) is reclassified from deficit on remeasurement of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

c) Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for classification at amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured
at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the
unconsolidated profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

(ii) Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective
and are instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual
interest in the issuer’s net assets.

All equity investments are required to be measured in the unconsolidated statement of financial
position at fair value, with gains and losses recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or
loss, except where an irrevocable election has been made at the time of initial recognition to measure
the investment at FVOCI.

The dividend income from equity securities classified under FVOCI are to be recognised in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. However, any surplus / (deficit) arising as a result of
subsequent movement in the fair value of equity securities classified as FVOCI is to be recognised
in other comprehensive income and is not recycled to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss
on derecognition. Furthermore, on derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between:

(a) the carrying amount (measured at the date of derecognition) and;
(b) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed)

shall be recognised in the unconsolidated profit or loss.
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3.5.1.2

3.51.3

3.5.1.4

3.5.2

3.5.3

3.5.3.1

3.5.4

3.6

Impairment

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with
its debt instrument assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The Company recognises a loss
allowance for such losses at each reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

- Anunbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes;

- The time value of money; and

- Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

Derecognition

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the
cash flows from the assets have expired, or when they have been transferred and either:

(i) the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership; or

(i) the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and the Company has not retained control.

Regular way contracts

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the
date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases / sales
of assets require delivery of securities within two days from the transaction date as per the stock
exchange regulations.

Initial recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised at the time the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. These are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs except for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs associated
with these financial assets are taken directly to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised at the time when these are extinguished i.e. when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities is taken to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.
Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are measured in the unconsolidated statement of financial position at

amortised cost. Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, bank balances, short term loan and
liquid investments having original maturity of three months or less.
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3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.1

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing
on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into
Pakistani Rupees using the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates of the initial transactions. Exchange gains or losses are included in the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss currently.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. The Securities and Exchang Commission
of Pakistan vide its letter dated March 05, 2018 has designated the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries 1GI Investments (Pvt.) Limited, IGl General Insurance Limited (together the ‘Group’)
as a Group for the purpose of group taxation under Section 59AA of the Income tax Ordinance,
2001.

Current

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the
prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for the current tax is calculated using the prevailing
tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted. The charge for the current
tax also include adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in the previous
years arising from the assessments finalised during the current year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet method in respect of all temporary differences
at the reporting date between the tax bases and carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited
to the unconsolidated statement of profit and loss, except in the case of items credited or charged to
equity in which case it is included in equity.

Current and deferred taxes based on the consolidated results of the Group are allocated within the
Group on the basis of separate return method, modified for determining realisability of tax credits and
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tax losses which are assessed at Group level. Any adjustments in the current and deferred taxes of
the Company on account of group taxation are credited or charged to the unconsolidated statement

of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

3.12 Dividends and appropriations to reserves

Dividends and appropriations to reserves are recorded in the period in which dividends and transfers

are made.

3.13  Earnings per share (EPS)

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its shareholders. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number

of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.

4 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Furniture Office Computer Leasehold Motor
1 ! : hicl Total
fixatllr}res equipment equipment m:&'gtvse- ‘g‘*m!.gg otal

As at January 1, 2019 (ROECESIILY
Cost 3,091 3,434 4,295 9,377 5,808 26,005
Accumulated depreciation (2,988) (3,420) (4,276) (9,025) (4,252)  (23,961)
Net book value 103 14 19 352 1,556 2,044
Year ended December 31, 2019
Opening net book value 103 14 19 352 1,556 2,044
Additions during the year - - - - - -
Disposals
- Cost - 14 - - 528 542
- Accumulated depreciation - (14) - - (441) (455)

- - - - 87 87
Depreciation charge for the year (79) (12) (16) (161) (305) (573)
Closing net book value 24 2 3 191 1,164 1,384
As at December 31, 2019
Cost 3,091 3,420 4,295 9,377 5,280 25,463
Accumulated depreciation (3,067) (3,418) (4,292) (9,186) (4,116)  (24,079)
Net book value 24 2 3 191 1,164 1,384
Year ended December 31, 2020
Opening net book value 24 2 3 191 1,164 1,384
Additions during the year - - 19 - - 19
Disposals
- Cost - - - - 969 969
- Accumulated depreciation - - - - (775) (775)

- - - - 194 194
Depreciation charge for the year (17) (2) (6) (125) (112) (262)
Closing net book value 7 - 16 66 858 947
As at December 31, 2020
Cost 3,091 3,420 4,314 9,377 4,311 24,513
Accumulated depreciation (3,084) (3,420) (4,298) (9,311) (3,453)  (23,566)
Net book value 7 - 16 66 858 947
Depreciation rate % per annum - 2020 10% 20% 20% 10% 20%
Depreciation rate % per annum - 2019 10% 20% 20% 10% 20%
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41

5.1

6.1

The cost and accumulated depreciation of fully depreciated property and equipment still in use at the
end of the year amounts to Rs. 21.278 million (2019: Rs. 15.075 million).

INTANGIBLE ASSET

2020

Accumulated Amortisation /
Impairment

As at Jan i AsatDec AsatJan Forthe AsatDec
01,2020 Additions  “33%5020" 01,2020  year 31, 2020

(Rupees in ‘000)
Computer software 4 - 4 4 - 4 - 5 years
4 - 4 4 - 4 -

2019

Cost Accumulated Amortisation /
Impairment

As at Jan i AsatDec AsatJan Forthe AsatDec
01,2019 Addiions  ‘33%619" 012019  year 31,2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

Computer software 4 - 4 4 - 4 - 5 years
4 - 4 4 - 4 -

Cost and accumulated amortisation of fully amortised intangible assets still in use at the end of the year
amounts to Rs. 0.004 million (2019: Rs. 0.004 million).

INVESTMENTS - NET

Note A 2019

(Rupees in ‘000)
Investments in subsidiaries 6.1 15,837,753 15,736,333

Equity instruments
- Financial assets at ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ 6.2 9,496 8,305

Debt instruments - term finance certificates
- Financial assets at ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ 6.3

15,847,249 15,744,638

Investments in subsidiaries

2020 2019

Number of Impairment  Carryin, Number of Impairment  Carryin
shares Cost (ngte 6.1.1) v;rI!{Jeg shares Cost (ngte 6.1.1) varlltlje 9
(Rupees in ‘000) (Rupees in ‘000)
Quoted
|Gl Life Insurance
Limited (note 6.1.2) 141,048,278 1,690,854 - 1,690,854 141,048,278 1,690,854 - 1,690,854
Unquoted

IGI Finex Securities
Limited (note 6.1.3) 52,000,000 441,883 (95,463) 346,420 52,000,000 441,883  (196,883) 245,000

IGI General Insurance

Limited (note 6.1.4) 191,838400 1,918,384 - 1918384 191,838400 1,918,384 - 1,918,384
|Gl Investments (Pvt.)

Limited (note 6.1.5) 118,820,950 11,882,095 - 11,882,095 118,820,950 11,882,095 - 11,882,095
Total 15,933,216 (95,463) 15,837,753 15,933,216  (196,883) 15,736,333
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6.1.1

6.1.3.1

Movement in impairment

Note 2020 2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

Opening balance 196,883 289,603
Reversal during the year 6.1.3 (101,420) (92,720)
Closing balance 95,463 196,883

This represents 82.694% (2019: 82.694%) holding in IGI Life Insurance Limited (Gl Life) having
market value of Rs 57.34 (2019: Rs 26.98) per share.

IGI Life is engaged in life insurance, carrying on both participating and non-participating business. 1GI
Life is also engaged in providing Shariah Compliant family takaful products as an approved window
takaful operator.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, 824,910 shares were withheld by IGI Life in respect of
issuance of bonus as issuance of bonus shares had been made taxable through Finance Act, 2014.

The Finance Act, 2014 introduced amendments to the Income Tax Ordinance 2001. As a result of these
amendments, companies are liable to withhold bonus shares at the rate of 5 percent. In accordance
with the requirements of the Ordinance these shares shall only be released if the Company deposits
tax equivalent to 5% of the value of the bonus shares issued. The value of tax is computed on the
basis of day-end price on the first day of book closure. In this regard, a suit was filed by the Company
in the High Court of Sindh, challenging the applicability of withholding tax provisions on bonus shares
received by the Company and a stay order was granted by the High Court of Sindh in favour of the
Company.

During the year ended December 2019, the above suit was dismissed by the single bench of the
Honorable High Court of Sindh on account of decisions made by the single bench in similar cases
earlier and vacated the stay order earlier granted by the Court.

The Company has filed an appeal on June 27, 2019 before division bench of the Honorable High
Court of Sindh against the above judgment issued by the single bench and has also obtained a stay
order against initiation of any recovery proceedings on the basis of judgement made by the single
bench of the Honorable High Court of Sindh.

The Company has included these shares inits portfolio, as the management believes that the decision
of the appeal will be in favour of the Company.

This represents 100% (2019: 100%) holding in IGI Finex Securities Limited having break - up value of
Rs 6.12 (2019: Rs 5.38) per share on the basis of the audited financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2020.

The principal activities of this Company include shares and commodities brokerage, money market
and foreign exchange brokerage and advisory and consulting services.

The management on an ongoing basis assesses the future profitability / recoverable amount of the
Company’s investment in IGI Finex Securities Limited. As a result of this exercise, the management
has recognised a reversal of impairment amounting to Rs. 101.420 million against the Company’s
investment in 1GI Finex Securities Limited as at December 31, 2020.

In determining the recoverable amount, the management has used certain key assumptions regarding
the future business, economic and market conditions. Key assumptions include market share of 1GI
Finex Securities Limited, average commission rate, growth in market volumes, cost to income ratios,
returns on funds deployed, timing of write-offs, discount rate, terminal growth rate etc. A significant
change in the assumptions used may impact the value of investment.

The growth rates and margins used to estimate the future profitability are based on past performance,
market trends and the management experience of growth rates and margins achievable.
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The management believes that the assumptions used in estimating the future profitability are consistent
with past performance and trends. The discount rates and growth rates used in the valuation and

impairment exercise are as follows: 2020 2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

Discount rate 21.8% 23.5%
Terminal growth rate 8.7% 9.0%

6.1.4 This represents 100% (2019: 100%) holding in IGl General Insurance Limited (IGI General) having
break - up value of Rs 14.49 (2019: Rs 14.47) per share on the basis of the audited financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2020.

The Company incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary namely 1Gl General Insurance Limited on
November 18, 2016. The objective of IGI General is to carry on general insurance business (excluding
life insurance) and General Takaful (Islamic Insurance) as Window Takaful Operator.

6.1.5 This represents 100% (2019: 100%) holding in 1GI Investments (Pvt.) Ltd (IGI Investments) having
break - up value of Rs 332.16 (2019: Rs 369.12) per share on the basis of the audited financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2020.

The Company incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary namely IGI Investments (Pvt.) Limited on
October 31, 2016. The objective of IGI Investments is to act as an investment holding Company and
to invest, acquire, sell and hold investments.

Financial assets at fair value through Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income other comprehensive income

2020 2019

6.2 Equity Instruments

Deficit on Deficit on
Number of Mark Number of . Mark
SRaTes Cost remrggz;lre- vglugt SHares Cost remr::ﬁ;lre vglu:t
(Rupees in ‘000) (Rupees in ‘000)
Quoted
Agritech Limited 1,352,992 17,156 (10,242) 6,914 1,352,992 17,156 (11,433) 5,723
Unquoted
DHA Cogen Limited 7,600,000 - - - | 7,600,000 - - -
Techlogix International
Limited (note 6.2.1) 1,067,152 2,582 - 2,582 | 1,067,152 2,582 - 2,582
2,582 - 2,582 2,582 - 2,582
19,738 (10,242) 9,496 19,738 (11,433) 8,305

6.2.1 Techlogix International Limited is a company registered in Bermuda. This investment has been
made since 2005. Return on investment is in the form of dividend received as reflected in these
unconsolidated financial statements. Based on the information available, there are no material
litigations against the investee company in foreign jurisdictions.

6.3 Debt instruments - term finance certificates

| Number of certificates | 2020 2019

Listed term finance certificates

5,000 5000  Azgard Nine Limited Il September 20, 2005
Unlisted term finance certificates

4,000 4,000 Agritech Limited | November 30, 2007 6.3.2

861 861  Agritech Limited IV July 01,2011 6.3.2
13,000 13,000  Azgard Nine Limited IV December 04, 2007 6.3.2
5,348 5348  Azgard Nine Limited V March 31,2012 6.3.2
10,000 10,000  Eden Housing Limited December 31, 2007 6.3.2
10,000 10,000  NewAllied Electronics Industries December 03, 2007 6.3.2

(Private) Limited

Less: Provision for impairment
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6.3.1 These term finance certificates have been fully impaired and written off.

6.3.2 Significant terms and conditions relating to term finance certificates are as follows:

Certificates ; Profit Maturity .
m SO S Redemptlon

Listed Term Finance
Certificates
Azgard Nine Limited Il

Unlisted Term Finance
Certificates
Agritech Limited |

Agritech Limited IV

Azgard Nine Limited IV

Azgard Nine Limited V

Eden Housing Limited

New Allied Electronics
Industries (Private)
Limited

5,000

5,000

5,000

5,000

5,000

5,000

5,000

2010-2011: 6 month KIBOR
plus 1%, 2012-2015: 6
month KIBOR plus 1.25%,
2016-2017: 6 months
KIBOR plus 1.75%

Semi-annually

Average ask rate of six
months KIBOR plus 1.75%

Semi-annually

Zero Coupon -

2010-2011: 6 month KIBOR
plus 1%, 2012-2015: 6
month KIBOR plus 1.25%,
2016-2017: 6 months
KIBOR plus 1.75%

Semi-annually

Zero Coupon -

Average ask rate of three
months KIBOR plus 2.5%
per annum from December
31,2007 to June 29, 2013
(floor 7% and cap 20%)

Quarterly

Average ask rate of three
months KIBOR plus 3% per
annum from June 30, 2013
to June 29, 2014 (floor 7%
and cap 20%)

Average ask rate of three
months KIBOR plus 2.2%
(floor 7% and cap 20%)

Semi-annually

September 20,
2017

November 29,
2019

January 01,
2015

December 04,
2017

March 31,
2017

June 29, 2014

December 03,
2012

12 semi-annual installments
with stepped up repayment
plan, 2012-2015: 47% (Rs.699
million), 2016-2017: 53%
(Rs.799 million).

12 semi-annual installments
with stepped up repayment
plan, 2012-2014: 35%
(Rs.524,580,000), 2015-2017:
65% (Rs.974,220,000).

Principal to be repaid in 6
semi-annual installments as per
the schedule, commencing from
July 01,2012

12 semi-annual installments
with stepped up repayment
plan, 2012-2015: 47%
(Rs.1,166 million), 2016-2017:
53% (Rs.1,332 million).

Principal to be repaid in 7
semi-annual installments as per
the schedule, commencing from
March 31, 2014.

Principal to be redeemed in
unequal quarterly installments
as per schedule.

Principal redemption will take
place in six equal semi annual
installments. This will
commence from the 30th
month of the date of public
subscription after a grace
period of 24 months.
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8.1

9.1

9.2

10

101

10.2

DEFERRED TAXATION - NET Note 2020 2019

(Rupees in ‘000)
Deferred tax asset arising on deductible temporary difference:

- Accelerated tax depreciation 323 1,136
- Impairment of investment in IGI Finex Securities Limited 20,763 42,822

21,086 43,958
LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good
Loans and advances 8.1 7,400 7,400

These loans pertain to Ex. |Gl Investment Bank Limited which had been transferred to the Company
under the scheme of amalgamation.

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Note 2020 2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

Net investment in finance lease - considered good 9.1&14.2 207,031 212,955
Withholding tax on bonus shares 9.2 6,530 6,530
213,561 219,485

This balance represents outstanding amount of old lease portfolio acquired by the Company as part of
amalgamation of Ex. IGI Investment Bank Limited w.e.f December 31, 2016 that has been retained by
the Company as part of scheme of arrangement and carried at fair value at the time of acquisition.

This includes fair value of collaterals amounting to Rs. 14.590 million (2019: Rs 18.990 million) and
residual values relating to net investment in finance lease.

This represents 50% of the amount paid by the Company to revenue authority in relation to the charge
and collection of income tax on issuance of bonus shares by |Gl Life Insurance Limited (as more fully
explained in note 6.1.2 to these unconsolidated financial statements). The matter is already pending
adjudication in the Honorable High Court of Sindh and the management, based on advice from legal
advisors, is confident of a favorable outcome of the proceedings.

BANK BALANCES

Note 2020 2019

Cash at bank (Rupees in ‘000)
Savings accounts 101 32,075 210
Current accounts 310 11,153

32,385 11,363

These savings accounts carry mark-up at 5.5% (2019: 11.25%) per annum.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of unconsolidated statement of cash flows:

Note 2020 2019

(Rupees in ‘000)
Bank balances 32,385 11,363
Short term loan (1,157,699) (1,121,163)
(1,125,314) (1,109,800)
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11

12

121

13

14

141

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

2020 2019 2020 2019
(Number of shares) (Rupees in ‘000)
1,942,187 1,942,187  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 19,422 19,422
issued as fully paid in cash
139,351,330 139,351,330 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 1,393,513 1,393,513
issued as fully paid bonus shares
1,337,033 1,337,033 Issued for consideration other than 13,370 13,370
cash under scheme of amalgamation
142,630,550 142,630,550 1,426,305 1,426,305

LONG TERM LOAN - SECURED Note 2020 2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

Secured
Long term loan 121 600,000 900,000
Less: current portion of long term loan (300,000) (300,000)

300,000 600,000

The Company obtained a long term loan amounting to Rs. 1,500 million from Habib Bank Limited
during 2017 for the purpose of injecting equity in its subsidiary IGlI General Insurance Limited. The
loan carries mark-up rate at 6 months KIBOR + 0.03% per annum (2019: 6 month KIBOR + 0.03%
per annum). Principal repayment is to be made in 10 equal semi-annual instalments starting from the
6th month after the disbursement and subsequently, every six months thereafter. During the current
year, two instalments of Rs. 150 million each have been paid. The facility is secured against pledge
of shares held by IGI Investments (Pvt.) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, against a commission
which has been disclosed in note 18.3.

SHORT TERM LOAN

This represents short term credit facility available from Habib Bank Limited under a mark-up
arrangement amounting to Rs. 1,500 million. Unutilised amount as at December 31, 2020 amounts
to Rs. 342.301 million. The rate of mark-up on this facility is 1-month KIBOR + 0.25% per annum
(2019: 1-month KIBOR + 0.25% per annum). The facility is secured against pledge of shares held
by its wholly owned subsidiary |Gl Investments (Pvt.) Limited against a commission which has been
disclosed in note 18.3.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note
(Rupees in ‘000)
Certificates of deposit 14.1 594 594
Security deposits under lease contracts 14.2 192,441 193,965
Accrued expenses 12,819 12,882
Accrued interest 22,991 37,280
Others 20,707 23,416

249,552 268,137

This represents certificates of deposit acquired by the Company as part of the amalgamation of
Ex. IGI Investment Bank Limited (the Investment Bank) with and into IGI Insurance Limited as at
December 31, 2016 that has been retained by the Company as part of the Scheme of Arrangement.

The outstanding amount relates to two depositors with aggregate deposits amounting to Rs 0.594
million (2019: Rs. 0.594 million) as they are untraceable. These certificates of deposits have already
matured and mark-up payable on these till maturity is Rs. 0.034 million (2019: Rs. 0.034 million). In
order to secure the amount for repayment of such deposits till the time parties are traced or lien matter
is settled, the Company has placed this amount in a money market fund of NBP Fund Management
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Limited with authority to Central Depository Company (CDC) to operate the said account on its behalf
and to pay the depositors as and when traced in accordance with the directions of the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

14.2 This represents security deposits under lease contracts acquired as part of the amalgamation of
Ex. IGI Investment Bank Limited with effect from December 31, 2016 that has subsequently been
retained by the Company as part of the Scheme of Arrangement, against which an equivalent amount
of residual value is receivable.

15 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The following contingencies were acquired by the Company as part of the amalgamation of Ex.
IGI Investment Bank Limited (Investment Bank) with effect from December 31, 2016 that has been
retained by the Company as part of the scheme of arrangement.

15.1 Income tax returns for the tax years 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 have been filed
by the Ex. IGI Investment Bank Limited / IGI Holdings Limited on due dates that are deemed to be
assessed under the provisions of section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Matters that are being contested mainly include the following:

(a) The rate of tax applied in computing the tax liability of the Investment Bank was the one applicable
to a banking company instead of the rate applicable for a public company (Assessment years
1991-92 to 2000-01). The Lahore High Court vide orders in CTR No.04 of 2005 and CTR No. 02
of 2008 for the assessment years 1993-1994 to 1997-98 had decided this issue in favour of the
Company by rejecting the reference application filed by the tax department.

(b) The tax payer company is a non banking finance company in accordance with the provisions of
section 2(10) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 1979 read with Section 5(b) & 5(c) of the Banking
Companies Ordinance ,1962. In light of said provisions the taxpayer company is an investment
finance company, so its dividend income should be taxed as a separate block of income at the
reduced rate. The above mentioned issue is decided in favour of the taxpayer Company by the
Lahore High Court vide orders in CTR No.04 of 2005 and CTR No. 02 of 2008 for the assessment
years 1993-1994 to 1997-98.

(c) Anaddition on account of accounting depreciation as a result of restricting the claim of accounting
depreciation upto net income from leased assets (Tax year 2003). The Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue, Lahore (ATIR) vide order No. ITA No. 1074/LB/2008 dated November 07, 2018 decided
the appeal on the said point in favour of the Investment Bank.

(d) Disallowance of certain expenses and additions to taxable income on account of lease key money,
lease rentals, excess perquisites and miscellaneous expenses relating to various assessment
years (assessment years 1995-96 to 2000-01).

(e) Charging minimum tax under section 113 of the Ordinance without allowing adjustment of tax
paid under final tax regime (Tax years 2008 and 2010). The ATIR vide consolidated order No. ITA
No. 1716/LB/2013 & ITA No. 1717/LB/2013 dated January 09, 2019 decided the appeals on the
said point in favour of the Investment Bank.

(f) Disallowance of initial depreciation on leased commercial vehicles (Tax years 2004, 2005, 2006
and 2007). For Tax years 2004 & 2005, the ATIR vide orders No. ITANo. MA(AG) No. 48/LB/2019
/ ITA No. 1581/LB/2011 and ITA No. 1263/LB/2012 dated November 25, 2019 and November
07, 2018 respectively has declared the amended orders for the said years as illegal being time
barred. For tax years 2006 & 2007, the ATIR vide consolidated order Nos. ITA No. 498/LB/2012
& ITA No. 499/LB/2012 dated March 26, 2018 has remanded back the case for readjudicating.

(g) Addition as a result of proration of expenses between exempt income (capital gains), dividend
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15.2

15.3

15.4

income and business income (Assessment / Tax years 2002-03, 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006 and
2007). For assessment year 2002-03, appeal is pending before ATIR. For Tax years 2004 & 2005,
the ATIR vide orders No. ITA No. MA(AG) No. 48/LB/2019 / ITA No. 1581/LB/2011 and ITA No.
1263/LB/2012 dated November 25, 2019 and November 07, 2018 respectively has declared the
amended orders for the said years as illegal being time barred. For Tax years 2006 & 2007, the
ATIR vide consolidated order Nos. ITA No. 498/LB/2012 & ITA No. 499/LB/2012 dated March 26,
2018 has remanded back the case for readjudicating.

(h) Addition on account of allocation of finance cost to brokerage and commission income amounting
to Rs.18.445 million (Tax Year 2009).

(i) Addition on account of specific provisions of Rs. 117.639 million (Tax Year 2009).

The management and its tax advisor are confident that all above matters will eventually be decided in
favor of the Company.

A suit had been filed against the Investment Bank before the High Court of Sindh (the Court) for
declaration, damages for Rs. 81.570 million and recovery of Rs. 1 million along with interest & mark-
up in connection with the transaction of asset backed securitisation between the parties. Issues had
been framed for determination by the Court and the matter is at the stage of the evidence of the
parties. The management, based on the advice of its legal advisor is confident that the matter will be
decided in favour of the Company.

A suit had been filed against the Investment Bank impleaded as defendant No. 6 before the High Court
of Sindh for declaration, permanent injunctions, specific performance, settlement and / or rendition
of accounts and / or cancellation of cheques and damages of Rs.100 million. The Investment Bank
arranged lease finance for buses which were given on lease to a customer. The Court granted leave
to defend the suit to all the defendants and the matter is at the stage of evidence of the parties. The
management, based on the advice of its legal advisor is confident that the matter will be decided in
favour of the Company.

Income tax return for the tax year 2017 was filed by the Company that is deemed to be assessed
under the provisions of section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Company, during year
ended December 31, 2018, received notice from Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) for
explanations over the matters raised in the notice prior to the amendment in the assessment under
section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The principal observations raised by ACIR were related to levy of tax on undistributed profits and
super tax, admissibility of tax losses of formerly IGI Investment Bank Limited and deductions claimed
on account of write-offs. The Company filed constitutional petitions for the matters pertaining to the
levy of tax on undistributed profits and super tax and obtained a stay order against any adverse action
in relation thereto and also submitted its response / explanations to ACIR.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, ACIR passed an order against the response submitted by
the Company and a raised tax demand of Rs. 435.869 million on matters raised in the notice except
for the admissibility of deductions on account of write-offs. The Company filed an appeal with the
Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) (CIRA) and the learned CIRA, on the merits of the case,
decided appeal in favor of the Company on account of admissibility of tax losses of formerly IGI
Investment Bank Limited, while upheld decision of ACIR on the matters pertaining to levy of tax on
undistributed profits and super tax which is already pending adjudication at the Honorable High Court
of Sindh. As a result of order passed by CIRA, the tax demand has been reduced by Rs. 223.221
million. However, an appeal effect order is pending in this regard.

During the year, the Company has filed an appeal with Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) on
the matters decided in favor of ACIR by the learned CIRA, while ACIR has also filed an appeal with
ATIR on the matter of admissibility of tax losses decided in favor of the Company, both of which are
currently pending adjudication.
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15.5 Income tax return for the tax year 2018 was filed by the Company that is deemed to be assessed
under the provisions of section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. During the year, the Company
received a notice to amend assessment under section 122 (5A) from Additional Commissioner Inland
Revenue (ACIR) for explanations over the matters raised in the notice prior to the amendment in the
assessment under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The principal observations raised by ACIR were related to taxation of dividend and commission
income at the corporate tax rate, levy of super tax and inadmissible deductions of provision against
investments and doubtful debts and impairment of goodwill. The Company filed constitutional petition
for the matter pertaining to the levy of super tax and obtained stay order against any adverse action
in relation thereto and also submitted its response / explanations to ACIR.

The ACIR passed order against the response submitted by the Company and raised a tax demand
of Rs. 475.538 million on matters raised in the notice except for the matters related to admissibility of
deductions of provision against investments and doubtful debts. The Company filed an appeal with
the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) (CIRA) and the learned CIRA, on the merits of the case,
remanded back matters related to taxation of dividend and commission income at corporate tax rate
and impairment of goodwill while confirming decision of ACIR on account of levy of super tax which is
already pending adjudication at the Honourable High Court of Sindh.

The Company has filed response to ACIR on the issues remanded back by the learned CIRA and
has also filed an appeal with the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order of the
learned CIRA in the matters related to taxation of dividend and commission income at corporate tax
rate, impairment of goodwill and levy of super tax.

During the year, the Honorable High Court of Sindh has passed its judgment in the various
constitutional petitions filed by various parties including the Company on the matter of levy of super
tax. The Honorable High Court, while dismissing the petitions has held that the Super Tax has been
validly levied under the constitution. The Company has challenged the decision of Honorable Sindh
High Court in the Supreme Court of Pakistan jointly with the other petitioners. The learned Supreme
Court has restrained tax department from any coercive action against petitioners subject to deposit of
50% amount of levy of super tax. Subsequent to the year end the Company has deposited the said
amount pertaining to levy of super tax as directed by the Supreme Court.

15.6 Income tax return for the tax year 2019 was filed by the Company that is deemed to be assessed
under the provisions of section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. During the year, the Company
received a notice to amend assessment under section 122 (5A) from Additional Commissioner Inland
Revenue (ACIR) for explanations over the matters raised in the notice prior to the amendment in the
assessment under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The principal observations raised by ACIR are related to levy of super tax and apportionment of
expenses. The Company filed constitutional petition for the matter pertaining to the levy of super tax
and obtained stay order against any adverse action in relation thereto. Subsequent to the year end,
the Company has also submitted its responses / explanations to ACIR.

Subsequentto the year end, the ACIR has passed its order creating a tax demand of Rs. 278.750 million
on account of apportionment of expenses and disallowance of certain expenses. The management
is in process of filling an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) against the order
passed by ACIR.

The management, based on the advice of its tax advisor, is confident of favorable outcome of the
above proceedings.

15.7 There are no material commitments as at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019.

741Gl Holdings Limited



For The Year Ended December 31, 2020

16

17

18

18.1

18.2

DIVIDEND INCOME

Subsidiary Companies

- IGI General Insurance Limited
- IGI Investments (Pvt.) Limited
Techlogix International Limited

OTHER INCOME

From financial assets
Profit on saving accounts

From non - financial assets
Gain on disposal of property and equipment
Gain on disposal of equity investments
Others

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and benefits
Depreciation

Auditors’ remuneration

Rent, rates and taxes

Travelling expenses

Telephone, lighting, telex and fax
Printing, postage and stationery
Insurance

Repairs and maintenance

IT related expenses

Commission on pledged shares
Legal and professional fees
Subscriptions

Advertisement

Other expenses

Note

18.2

18.3

(Rupees in ‘000)
520,000 513,348
590,000 594,105

- 497
1,110,000 1,107,950
857 1,738
476 285

- 1,562

64 -

540 1,847
1,397 3,585
27,467 52,144
262 573
8,968 14,791
942 968
333 1,026
255 276

- 2,437

516 229

- 2

1,087 949
10,007 7,614
12,139 13,710
3,320 1,895
898 708
269 275
66,463 97,597

Certain common expenses (including salaries, allowances and other benefits, staff training, rentals,
utilities, repair and maintenance and IT related expenses) are charged to the Company, which are
shown under respective administrative and operating expenses accounts, in accordance with the
Group Shared Services (GSS) Cost Allocation Review Memorandum, between the Company and the
Group companies. During the year, an amount of Rs 30.216 million (2019: Rs. 54.111 million) was

charged in respect of common expenses.
Auditors’ remuneration

Fee for statutory audit

Fee for interim review

Fee for the audit of consolidated financial statements
Special certifications and sundry services

Out of pocket expenses

(Rupees in ‘000)
850 850
350 300
1,100 1,000
5,968 11,592
700 1,049
8,968 14,791
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18.3  This represents commission paid to IGl Investments (Pvt.) Limited (Subsidiary Company) at the rate
of 0.2% of the market value of pledged shares which have been kept in order to obtain long and short

term loan as disclosed in notes 12 and 13 respectively.
Note 2020 2019
19 FINANCE COSTS (Rupees in ‘000)

Mark-up on long term loan 87,245 132,742
Mark-up on short term loan 105,143 77,335
Bank charges 14 29

192,402 210,106

20 TAXATION

For the year

- Current tax 187,475 184,944
- Prior year - (3,026)
- Group adjustment (179,830) (178,632)
7,645 3,286

- Deferred tax 22,872 11,527
30,517 14,813

20.1 Tax charge reconciliation

Profit before tax 974,845 911,542
Tax calculation at the rate of 29% 282,705 264,347
Effect of items taxable under lower rates (155,400) (155,113)
Effect of group taxation (179,830) (178,632)
Effect of permanent differences 82,420 102,599
Prior year tax - (3,026)
Impairment on investments - (26,889)
Effect of charge of deferred tax - 11,527
Others 622 -
30,517 14,813

21 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic / diluted earnings per share

Profit for the year 944,328 896,729
(Number of shares)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 142,630,550 142,630,550
(Rupees)
Earnings per share 6.62 6.29
22  REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS 2020} 2019
(Rupees in ‘000)
Fee for attending board meeting 3,200 1,775
Number of persons 8 8

23 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

All the employees are on the payroll of the group companies and their cost is charged to the Company
under group shared services agreement.
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24

241

24.2

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of subsidiaries, associates, related group companies, directors of the
Company, key management personnel, major shareholders, post employment benefit plans and
other related parties. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with
various related parties at agreed / commercial terms and conditions. Amounts due to / from and
other significant transactions, other than those disclosed else where in these unconsolidated financial

statements, are as follows:
Key management
Subsidiaries Associates personnel Othearr;?elgted
(including directors) P
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

Transactions

Commission expense / paid 10,007 7614

Dividend income 1,110,000 1,107,453

Dividend received 960,000 1,107,453

Dividend paid - - 45,099 45,099 116,021 115,920 118,534 115,970
Key management personnel compensation - - - - 3,200 1,775

Insurance premium paid 36 145

Expenses incurred under Group
Shared Services 16,034 24,801 14,181 29,276
Expenses paid by the Company on behalf of

under Group Shared Services 4,961 10,772
Receipts against Group Shared Services 4,961 10,772
Payments against Group Shared Services 18,774 14,871 13,130 29,276 - - - 14
Balances
Investment in shares 15,837,753 15,736,333
Dividend receivable 150,000
Group shared service payable 7190 9,930 1,051

Maximum amount payable to IGI General Insurance Limited (subsidiary), IGI Finex Securities Limited
(subsidiary) and IGI Life Insurance Limited (subsidiary) at the end of any month during the year was
Rs 5.4 million, Rs 3.05 million and Rs 9.9 million respectively.

Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have
arrangement / agreement in place:

Name of related party Basis of association/ | Aggregate % of
relationship shareholding

1 IGI Life Insurance Limited Subsidiary 82.694%
2 IGI General Insurance Limited Subsidiary 100%
3 IGI Investments (Pvt.) Limited Subsidiary 100%
4 IGI Finex Securities Limited Subsidiary 100%
5 Packages Limited Associate N/A
6 Syed Babar Ali Chairman N/A
7 Babar Ali Foundation Other related party N/A
8 Industrial Technical and Educational

Institute Other related party N/A
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 2
At tﬁt fairhva#e
; rough other
amortised comprehensive Total

cost

Financial assets income

Non-current assets (Rupees in ‘000)

Investments - net - 9,496 9,496
Long-term deposits 1,768 - 1,768
1,768 9,496 11,264
Current assets
Loans and advances 7,400 - 7,400
Deposits 3,159 - 3,159
Dividend receivable 150,000 - 150,000
Other receivables 207,031 - 207,031
Bank balances 32,385 - 32,385
399,975 - 399,975
401,743 9,496 411,239
[ 2020 |
At amortised Total
Financial liabilities Gt
(Rupees in ‘000)
Long term loan - secured 300,000 300,000
Current portion of long-term loan - secured 300,000 300,000
Short term loan 1,157,699 1,157,699
Unclaimed dividend 28,749 28,749
Trade and other payables 249,552 249,552
2,036,000 2,036,000
2019
At tﬁt fairhva;%e
amggtsl?ed cor%lr%hgns?vre Total

income
(Rupees in ‘000)

Financial assets

Non-current assets

Investments - 8,305 8,305
Long-term deposits 1,738 - 1,738
1,738 8,305 10,043
Current assets
Loans and advances 7,400 - 7,400
Deposits 3,279 - 3,279
Other receivables 212,955 - || 212,955
Bank balances 11,363 - 11,363
234,997 - 234,997
236,735 8,305 245,040
2019 |
At arggglsed Total
Financial liabilities (Rupees in ‘000)
Long term loan - secured 600,000 600,000
Current portion of long term loan - secured 300,000 300,000
Short term loan 1,121,163 1,121,163
Unclaimed dividend 28,464 28,464
Trade and other payables 268,137 268,137

2,317,764 2,317,764
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26 RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk management framework

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market
risk (including interest / mark-up rate risk and price risk). The Company’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the financial performance. Overall, risks arising from the Company’s financial assets and
liabilities are limited. The Company consistently manages its exposure to financial risk without any
material change from previous period in the manner described in notes below. The Board of Directors
has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company’s risk management
framework. The Board is also responsible for developing the Company’s risk management policies.

26.1 Financial risk
(i) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due
to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and market prices.
(a) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company is exposed to interest / mark-up rate risk in respect of the following:

2020
Interest / mark-up bearing Non-interest / mark-up bearing
Interest Maturity ~ Maturity Maturity ~ Maturity
Rates uptoone  afterone  Subtotal uptoone afterone  Sub total
year year year year

(Rupees in ‘000)
Financial assets

Investments - - - - 9,496 9,496 9,496
Long term deposits - - - - 1,768 1,768 1,768
Loans and advances - - - 7,400 - 7400 7,400
Deposits - - - 3,159 - 3,159 3,159
Dividend receivable - - - 150,000 - 150,000 150,000
Other receivables - - - 207,031 - 207,031 207,031
Bank balances 5.50% 32,075 - 32,075 310 - 310 32,385
32,075 - 32,075 367,900 11,264 379,164 411,239

Financial liabilities
Long term loan 7.30% - 300,000 300,000 - - - 300,000

Current portion of

long term loan 7.30% 300,000 - 300,000 - - - 300,000
Short term loan 767% 1,157,699 -1 1,157,699 - - -1 1,157,699
Unclaimed dividend - - - 28,749 - 28,749 28,749
Trade and other payables - - - 249,552 - 249,552 249,552
1,457,699 300,000 1,757,699 278,301 - 278301 2,036,000

(1425624)  (300000) (1725624) 89599 11264 100863 (1,624761)
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2019
Interest / mark-up bearing Non-interest / mark-up bearing
Interest Maturity ~ Maturity Maturity ~ Maturity Total
Rates uptoone  afterone  Subtotal uptoone  afterone  Sub total
year year year year

(Rupees in ‘000)
Financial assets

Investments - - - - 8,305 8,305 8,305
Long term deposits - - - - 1,738 1,738 1,738
Loans and advances - - - 7400 - 7400 7400
Deposits - - - 3279 - 3279 3219
Other receivables - - - 212,955 - 212,955 212,955
Bank balances 11.25% 210 - 210 11,153 - 11,153 11,363
210 - 210 234,787 10,043 244,830 245,040

Financial liabilities
Long term loan 13.48% - 600,000 600,000 - - - 600,000

Current portion of

long term loan 13.48% 300,000 - 300,000 - - - 300,000
Short term loan 13.89% 1,121,163 - 1,121,163 - - -1 1,121,163
Unclaimed dividend - - - 28 464 - 28,464 28 464
Trade and other payables - - - 268,137 - 268,137 268,137
1,421,163 600,000 2,021,163 296,601 - 296,601 2,317,764

(1420953)  (600,000) (2020953)  (61814) 10043  (51771) (2072.724)

Sensitivity analysis

Interest / mark-up rate risk is the risk that value of a financial instrument or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the market interest / mark-up rates. Sensitivity
to interest / mark up rate risk arises from mismatches of financial assets and liabilities that mature
or re-price in a given period. The Company manages these mismatches through risk management
strategies where significant changes in gap position can be adjusted. Borrowing arrangements have
variable rate pricing that is dependent on the Karachi Inter Bank Offer Rate (KIBOR) as indicated
in the respective notes. The table below summarises Company’s interest rate risk as of December
31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 and shows the effects of a hypothetical 1% increase and a 1%

decrease in interest rates as at the year end. i
Impact on unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss

(Rupees in ‘000)

As at December 31, 2020
Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate financial instruments 17,256 (17,256)
As at December 31, 2019
Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate financial instruments 20,210 (20,210)

(b) Foreign currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset or liability will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign currency rates. Foreign exchange risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist
due to transactions in foreign currencies. As of the reporting date, the Company does not have
material assets or liabilities which are exposed to foreign currency risk.

(c) Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in the market prices (other than those arising from interest / mark up rate risk or currency
risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or
its issuer, or factors affecting all or similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company
is exposed to equity price risk since it has investments in quoted equity securities amounting to Rs
6.914 million (2019: Rs 5.723 million) at the reporting date.
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The Company'’s strategy is to hold its strategic equity investments for long period of time. Thus, the
Company’s management does not consider short term price fluctuations with respect to its strategic
investments provided that the underlying business, economic and management characteristics of the
investee remain favorable. The Company strives to maintain above average levels of shareholders’
capital to provide a margin of safety against short term equity price volatility. The Company manages
price risk by monitoring exposure in equity securities and implementing strict discipline in internal risk
management and investment policies.

The carrying value of investments subject to equity price risk are based on market prices as of the
reporting date.

Market prices are subject to fluctuation and consequently the amount realised in the subsequent sale of
an investment may significantly differ from the reported market value. Furthermore, amount realised in
the sale of a particular security may be affected by the relative quantity of the security being sold. The
Company has no significant concentration of price risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The table below summarises the Company’s equity price risk as of December 31, 2020 and December
31, 2019 and shows the effects of a hypothetical 10% increase and a 10% decrease in market prices
as at the year end. The selected hypothetical change does not reflect what could be considered to be
the best or worst case scenarios. Indeed, results could be worse in the Company’s equity investment
portfolio because of the nature of equity markets. The impact of hypothetical change would be as follows:

Estimated Hypothetical Hypothetical
Hypothetical fair value after increase / increase

price change hypothetical (decrease) in (decrease) in total
change in prices | shareholders’ quity | comprehensive income

(Rupees in ‘000)

2020 9,496 10% increase 10,446 950 950
10% decrease 8,546 (950) (950)

2019 8,305 10% increase 9,136 831 831
10% decrease 7,475 (831) (831)

(ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with its financial liabilities. To guard against the risk, the Company maintains balance of cash and
other equivalents and readily marketable securities. The maturity profile of assets and liabilities are
also monitored to ensure adequate liquidity is maintained.

The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date on an undiscounted cash

flow basis.
2020
Carrying Contractual More than
(Rupees in ‘000)

Long term loan 300,000 300,000 - 300,000
Current portion of long term loan 300,000 300,000 300,000 -
Short term loan 1,157,699 1,157,699 1,157,699 -
Unclaimed dividend 28,749 28,749 28,749 -
Trade and other payables 249,552 249,552 249,552 -

2,036,000 2,036,000 1,736,000 300,000
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2019

Carryin Contractual More than
amgjnst; cash flow Upto one year one year
(Rupees in ‘000)
Long term loan 600,000 600,000 - 600,000
Current portion of long term loan 300,000 300,000 300,000 -
Short term loan 1,121,163 1,121,163 1,121,163 -
Unclaimed dividend 28,464 28,464 28,464 -
Trade and other payables 268,137 268,137 268,137 -
2,317,764 2,317,764 1,717,764 600,000

(iii) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to
discharge its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to

control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures by undertaking transactions with a large number of
counterparties in various industries and by continually assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties.

Concentration of credit risk occurs when a number of counterparties have a similar type of business
activities. As a result, any change in economic, political or other conditions would effect their ability to
meet contractual obligations in similar manner. The Company’s credit risk exposure is not significantly
different from that reflected in the financial statements. The management monitors and limits the
Company’s exposure to credit risk through monitoring of client’s exposure and conservative estimates
of provisions for doubtful assets, if any. The management is of the view that it is not exposed to
significant concentration of credit risk as its financial assets are adequately diversified in entities
of sound financial standing, covering various industrial sectors and investment in finance lease is

secured against deposits under lease contracts.
2020 2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

Bank balances 32,385 11,363
Other receivables 207,031 212,955
Long-term deposits 1,768 1,738
Deposits 3,159 3,279
Loans and advances 7,400 7,400
Dividend receivable 150,000 -

The credit quality of Company’s bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows:

Rating Agency

Short Term Long Term
Bank balances

MCB Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AAA
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited PACRA A1+ AAA
Habib Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA
Bank Al-Habib Limited PACRA A1+ AA+
United Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA
Allied Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AAA
Soneri Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA-
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA A1+ AA+
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA
Summit Bank Limited N/A Not rated

National Bank of Pakistan PACRA A1+ AAA

27 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
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Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern
without any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a
transaction on adverse terms.

Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing
on the reporting date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and liabilities is considered
not to be significantly different from the respective book values.

Fair value hierarchy

International Financial Reporting Standard 13, ‘Fair Value Measurement’ requires the Company to
classify assets using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making
the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

As at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Company held the following financial
instruments measured at fair values:

2020

Financial assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
- Investments - at fair value through other (Rupees in ‘000)
comprehensive income 6,914 2,582 -
2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets
- Investments - at fair value through other
comprehensive income 5,723 2,582 -

(Rupees in ‘000)

IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The World Health Organisation declared COVID-19 a global pandemic in March 2020. Like other parts
of the world, Pakistan also went into lockdown to reduce the spread of the pandemic. The lockdown
impacted the economies and businesses in different facets globally. In Pakistan, the financial sector
encountered an overall increase in credit risk pertaining to their loans and advances portfolio in
certain sectors, reduced income due to slowdown in business activity, operational issues such as
preventing spread of virus at work place and managing cyber security threat, etc.

Being an investment holding company, the Company’s operations were not disrupted as it has no
day to day business activity. The management has evaluated that it does not foresee any going
concern risk in the Company due to the pandemic and they believe that the Company’s operations,
the financial position and the results will not be impacted significantly as the major investments of
the Company are investments in subsidiaries. Therefore, it has concluded that there are no material
implications of COVID-19 on any balance in the unconsolidated financial statements.

GENERAL
Figures in these unconsolidated financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees.
Comparative information has been reclassified, rearranged or additionally incorporated in these

unconsolidated financial statements for the purpose of better presentation. There were no material
reclassifications during the year.
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30 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These unconsolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on March 18, 2021 by the
Board of Directors of the Company.

31 EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

The Board of Directors has proposed a final dividend for the year ended December 31, 2020 of Rs. 5
per share (2019: Rs. 3 per share), amounting to Rs 713.153 million (2019: Rs 427.892 million) in its
meeting held on March 18, 2021 for the approval of the members at the annual general meeting to
be held on April 29, 2021. The unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2020 do not include the effect of this appropriation which will be accounted for in the unconsolidated
financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2021.

,, C«&'@H - S A kbmnn

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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Directors’ Report to the Shareholders on Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2020

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the consolidated financial statements of IGI Holdings
Limited (“IGI Holdings”) and its subsidiaries namely; IGI Life Insurance Limited (IGI Life), IGl General
Insurance Limited (IGI General Insurance), IGI Investments (Private) Limited (IGI Investments), IGI Finex
Securities Limited (IGI Finex) and IGI FSI (Pvt.) Limited (IGI FSI) (“the Subsidiaries”) (collectively referred
to as ‘the Group’) for the year ended December 31, 2020.

GROUP PERFORMANCE REVIEW 2020 2019

(Rupees in ‘000)

Profit before tax 2,222,393 939,097
Taxation (501,602) (288,773)
Profit after tax 1,720,791 650,324
Other comprehensive loss (5,811,677) (4,981,068)
Total comprehensive loss (4,090,886) (4,330,744)
2020 2019
(Rupees)
Earnings per share — basic and diluted 12.18 4.80

During the current year, the Group recorded profit after tax of Rs. 1,721 million compared to Rs. 650 million
earned in 2019 representing growth of 2.6 times. The insurance and brokerage businesses have performed
better than last year and the share of profit from associates has registered phenomenal growth as well.

Other comprehensive loss of Rs. 5,812 million as compared to that of Rs. 4,981 million during the previous
year is due to loss on revaluation of ‘Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income’
portfolio and share of other comprehensive loss from associates. The investments have been classified
as ‘Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income’ in IGI Investments. Accordingly, re-
measurement loss has been recognized as part of ‘Other Comprehensive Income’ as per applicable financial
reporting framework. This also includes Rs. 1,282 million representing the share in other comprehensive loss
of associates compared to that of Rs. 1,202 million in the previous year.

The Group achieved earnings per share of Rs. 12.18 compared to Rs. 4.80 during 2019.
Financial highlights of the subsidiaries are hereunder:

IGI GENERAL

During the current year, IGl General has written gross premium of Rs. 6,013 million (including Takaful
contributions) as compared to Rs. 5,611 million during the previous year. IGI General has incurred net claims
of Rs. 1,097 million compared to Rs. 1,203 million during 2019.

As a result, the Company has generated profit after tax of Rs. 486 million as compared to that of Rs. 573
million for the year 2019. The decrease is mainly attributable to decline in investment income by Rs. 122
million during the current year.

IGI FSI

During the year, IGI General incorporated a wholly subsidiary, IGI FSI which is engaged in providing technology
led business solutions including training services in the market. 1Gl FSI has posted revenue of Rs. 9.191
million and loss after tax of Rs. 0.394 million in its first six months of operations.
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Income stream of IGI Investments is primarily derived from dividend income from its investments. During the
current year, the Company has earned dividend income amounting to Rs. 1,143 million as compared to Rs.
1,246 million during the previous year. The Company has earned profit after tax of Rs. 727 million compared
to Rs. 784 million for the year 2019.

IGI FINEX

During the current year, IGI Finex has generated operating revenues of Rs. 226 million as compared to Rs.
132 million during 2019. The Company has posted a profit after tax of Rs. 36 million compared to Rs. 13
million for the year 2019.

IGI LIFE
During the year, the gross premium (including Takaful contributions) written by IGI Life stood at Rs. 6,160
million as compared to Rs. 4,815 million in 2019.

Individual life regular premium (including Takaful contributions) posted growth of 34% and stood at Rs. 3,220
million from Rs. 2,400 million in last year. Renewal premium base increased to Rs. 1,750 million (2019: Rs.
1,720 million), registering a growth of 2% from last year.

Group life and health premium (including Takaful group family and health) stood at Rs. 1,750 million (2019:
Rs. 1,970 million), posting decline of 11% from last year.

Single premium/contribution individual policies increased from Rs. 443 million last year to Rs. 1,190 million
posting a significant growth of 168%.

IGI Life has recorded a loss after tax of Rs. 96 million in 2020 against loss after tax of Rs. 177 million in 2019
(including surplus/deficit of statutory funds). The major reason for this loss is due to increase in acquisition

costs for expanding its distribution channels of business and adverse loss ratios due to COVID-19.

We value the support and patronage extended by our business partners and all stakeholders and appreciate
the dedicated and sincere efforts of our employees.

For and on behalf of the Board

L,-Jﬂ‘“—*"’::,f"" ' ;"ﬂr . I,.-

I WA TR
Syed Babar Ali Tahir Masaud
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
Lahore: March 18, 2021 Lahore: March 18, 2021
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INDEPENDEST AUDITOR'S REPODRT
Tao the members of 1GI Holdings Limited

Opinian

We have nudited the arnexed consslidated fnanciol stetements of 1GI Holdings Limited and its
suibsid ries (The Grouwp), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position ax sl Decembar
w1, 2oz, ar the conselidatel statement of profit oc loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
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m: Iiﬂt”i : o - .Eirﬁ'-ﬂtil i ﬁ Aot SRR

=  [heeled the nppeopeiate. femgnition of reloted
adjusiments o insirasce Habilites in ofher
o jrrehemsive incboe ‘whape med wmoentised
giing /' losses on wmishle o0 sale medments
ware revopnised (o olher eomprelemisive inpome.

*  Obmingd independent  colfineions  for
werifying the existencs of the imestment
parHolioasat Decenber 3, 202 and reccnsibed
{hiem with the boaks and reonlaof the Oroop,

® Checled the relewet presenirton  and
ikeelrmivea made i the sonsalbdeter] finammal
skibamnis. o determine whetlier 1hey comply
with the ssrmnng and repartisg sesdasds as
applismbile in Fakistan.

C —

7  Valoation of Incwrred Hot Not Heportedd
CIITRNR) claims ressrves

[ltefer nates a6 and 87 af the annesed ponslidated
| financtsl stnfemeEls)

| As st Tecembar g3, mcain, peockion for TENE | Dor sudit procedures shadal ta Sillving
amrumbid o R 245 529 million. »  Assessed the design and cperating vifediness
The provishon fur TAMR clalios i ealoaluled by fhe of ke panbrols over the messurement and
| Grougp s required usnder Chreular o/ of =i ned woknt it b sl TR msutrvion anid evaluated the
[ by the Securibies and Exe Commission of | appropristesess. of the methodologiss and the |
| Pakisnn (SECE). ﬁiﬁr lhlil ’-'Elllt'c'lhmﬁg- ':Illd wumptoms imed.
| @nndy, AR Inasrer estimoie an am e, and
arovision for LN for o1ch class of ustness by nsing | © L 1o o o by e
the  preseribed wlh:l:] which s ;J'I:iulin =I;ﬂ.li:l'Ii L& gt A suppart the nctoarial vabuation.
Bothod” oF way other alierssts mae a5 allowe 3 ,
| ander the provisiens of the Gnideknes, = wﬂu prﬁm;jimm;ulm:nm
The. detervaliation: of prmiion for THUR SWie| ot e i Pl
| brvalvid estimation Jadgimant, Hiwauso of the |
| sigrificance of the impact of ther mdgments [ Checked fﬁ:‘ﬂﬂwﬂrl JD:E-!II'{II m:&“:l
| m.mr considered the-aree of TENE a0 ke T‘“"‘"‘m m;“ﬂmﬂ istendy et
| | PRI i
»  Crsmicorol whethar the disclosuresim relatiem
the vihmiton of IBNE megerves are comwpiiant |
with e releynal sceounting  end reporang
-standards applicebls in Talkiatan,

Information Other than the Unconsalidated and Consslidated Finaneial Statements and
Auditor’s Reports Thereon
Management is respensihle For the other information., The ether information comprises the information

inelnded tn the snnosl report, bol does not include the unconsolidated and consolidated finuncial
gtatenaisn i and oar awillioc's separts therem,

Oy opinion an the consolidated financial stadements does not cover fle other information and we do net
EspTREs any form of assuranice canchisles thereon

In eonnection with our auditof the consolidated financial statements, our responsibilicy is to read the olier
infoemation and, (o dilng so, cansider whether the other mformation is moterially ineonsistent with the
pamsseliclabed financial stabwments or our knowlsdge obtained in the audiv or otherwise appese o be
materially misstmred. 1, bosed on the woerk we have performed, we monclade that there 3 a matberial
misstatement of this other mformation, we are requived to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard,

Mo
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Responsibilitics of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consalidated Financial
Stwlemenis

blanagemes: is responsible for the preparation and laie presentation of the consolidated financlal
stalemnents [0 aceordance with accdunting and repordng ssodurds s applicoble in Pakistan and
Companies Act, 2017 and for sach intérnal comtrol as maragement determines i neeessary o enable the
preparation of consalidated Snancia] sratements that ree froe from material mis sl soent, whether due 1o
Franel o ermor,

In preparing the consolidated financial statenents, msunagement is responsible for assesing the Grenp's
ability te comtinme &s & going ooneem, divelosing, 35 applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the gning concern hasis of acenuntdng unless management either intends to lguidate e Sooupor b cease
operations, or has no reatiste altarnotive bot to cho so,

Thie Board af Directors is Tesponsthles for oversesing the Group’s fmancial reposting process,
Auditor's Respongibilities for the Audil of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Cur ohjectives are to obtain reasenable assarunce shout whather the consalidate fnancial statements as
awhole are free from material misstatament, whither due to fmodor ermor, amd b jsseean andibor’s report
that fneludes our opinion, Reasonnble assiiratee isa high bevel of assuraice, butisnot 3 guaraptes that an
anfit condocted in pecordance with [BAs as applicable in Pakistun will abways detect a tmaberial
TiEscatament when it exists. Mistate ments can arise from frvad or eror and are considersd material i,
individually ar in the aggrezate, they could reasonably be expectad to influense the eeonomic decisions of
users taloon oo Uie basks of these consolidated fmancial satensents.

As partof an audis In secordancs with 1844 26 applicable in Pakistin, we sxercise professional judgment
and maintiin professionnl skepticism theoughoat thie madrt, W oalkeo:

» ety and assess the risks of material missratement of the consolidsted Annneinl stafements,
whether due to frand or error, desbgn and pecform andit procedares responsive to thise tisks, and
ohtain andit evidence that is sufficlent and appropriste ta provide o basid for oy opinkon. The cvkof
piot detecting & material misstatemont resulting from froad s higher than for one resulfing froim ecor,
s Froud maey involve collusion, Sovgery, intentional pmisstons, misrepreseniabons, of the overnids of
{nternal comtrol.

& Ohain an enderstanding of intecnal control relevant o the andit in crder o design - aodit-procedures
thiat ane appropriate in pircumstances, but wot for the purpose of expressing an opinion on. the
wifectiveness of the Groap's infermal control

& Funlnnte ths immpﬁn{nnm of sooounting polickes uweed and e reasonableness of accoumiing
pntimies mnd relited dischosures made by manageement.

= oneledeon the pppropristeness of management's ese af the going coneem basiz of accounting and,
hased on the wetin svidesee ohtalsed, whoiher 8 materinl uncartainty exiss related W events or
pomditions that msy cast slgnificant deobd oo the Group's ablity to continwe s & going concern, Hwe
romchud that a muterial uncertainty exists, wo are requited bo drw attention I curauditor's report to
the rebnted diacloanres in the consolidated fnancial stetements or, if such dischosures are inzdequate,
tn madify aur opinien. Our concusions are based m the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
wnellton's pepovt, Howeser, fobone svents or canditions may catse the Group o cense 10 enntinGe as 8

LI ECINICITT.

»  Evalooe the overall presenition, stroctome s coment of the oonsedidated fmancial statsments,
ineluding the discloeures, and wlether the consolidniesd fnancial stalerments represent the uadeslying
tranzasrions and svent in & maaner st aehieves (ol proceptalion,

#  [htain rufficient fare wdle evidence pegarding the Anancial information of the entities ar
business activities w the Group to express oo opinian on the consolidated fnnnaial satements,
We are cegponsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group mwdit. We remuin sotely
pespansibls for sur st opinion,

o
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We communicate with the Board of Meectors regarding, amang ather matters, the planned scope and
tinriing of Uhe audit and significant audit fmdings, mehding any signifieont deficlencios in internal conirnl
that we identify during our sadir

Wi alzo provide the Bsard of Divectors with a statersent that we M:E eamyjlied ﬂ:n:-:m‘ ethical
requirements regarding independence, and Lo comuunicate with them all relaticnships and other mutters
thar may rensonnhly be thoaght o bear on our independence, and whete applicable, related safegrards

Prom the matters eommunicated with the Baard of Directors, we ditermine those matters that were of
micst signifcance in the audiz of the consolidated financial stutements of the corent period and e
therefore the ke awdit matters. We deseribe thess matters in aur anditer’s report unless law or regulation
precindes public disclosure aboat the matter or when, (o extromely rare crrumstances, we determine that
a miatter should not he cormimienieated {0 mer repart beeanse the adverse m'rme&uumﬁdﬁﬂugm wild
reasenahly he sxpected 10 ontwelgh the publie interest benefits of such commu

The engagement partner oo the aodit resaltdng In this independent auditor's report e
MNoman Abbas Sheikh.

v 5aT3 ?{'ﬂ

N.E Fe n e O,
Chartered| Accountants

Ramnchi
Dridtel: Mlarch 3, 2028
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31, 2020

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Fixed assets
- Property and equipment
- Intangible assets
Investments
Long-term deposits

Current assets

Insurance / takaful / reinsurance / retakaful receivables
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims
Current maturity of investments

Loans secured against life insurance policies

Deferred commission expense

Accrued income

Deposits, prepayments, loans, advances and other receivables
Wakalah fees receivable

Taxation recoverable

Cash and bank balances

Non-current asset held for sale

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorised share capital

200,000,000 (2019: 200,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

Reserves

Unappropriated profit

Equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent

Non-controlling interest
Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Note

~No O

7.14

10
1

15

16

Insurance liabilities [including policyholders’ liabilities and ledger account A & B]

Long term loan

Lease liabilities against right-of-use assets
Retirement benefit obligation

Deferred taxation - net

Current liabilities

Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR)
Provision for unearned premium

Premium deficiency reserve

Commission income unearned

Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers
Unearned Wakalah fee

Premium received in advance

Short term loans

Current portion of long term loans and lease liabilities against
right-of-use assets

Unclaimed dividend

Trade and other payables

TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

17
18
12
19

20
17 & 18
21

22

(Rupees in ‘000)

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

"" il l
AR

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

916,467 785,718
470,640 539,985
59,453,218 68,097,751
17,498 17,168
60,857,823 69,440,622
2,080,974 1,885,290
2,165,642 1,012,984
11,842,570 6,795,657
171,811 167,965
210,775 193,780
107,205 478,341
2,463,248 2,244,322
57,326 119,261
715,017 675,964
1,259,442 660,289
9,110 9,110
21,083,120 14,242,963
81,940,943 83,683,585
2,000,000 2,000,000
1,426,305 1,426,305
36,209,960 42,020,412
11,214,257 9,904,587
48,850,522 53,351,304
345,604 363,600
49,196,126 53,714,904
17,936,924 16,597,270
300,000 766,665
226,179 158,546
57,845 43,471
948,365 1,260,947
19,469,313 18,826,899
3,273,288 2,096,866
1,913,043 1,860,409
- 21,111
212,055 174,561
1,651,448 1,379,652
58,382 42,468
399,815 65,851
2,800,696 2,614,278
539,528 702,805
30,879 30,611
2,396,370 2,153,170
13,275,504 11,141,782
32,744,817 29,968,681
81,940,943 83,683,585
S A b
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For The Year Ended December 31, 2020

2020 | 2019 |

(Rupees in ‘000)

Operating revenue 23 11,497,868 9,901,680

Operating expenses 24 (8,764,970) (8,692,097)
2,732,898 1,209,583

Other income 25 344,651 404,361

General and administrative expenses 26 (438,454) (432,014)

Other expenses 27 (462,523) (502,120)
2,176,572 679,810

Change in insurance liabilities (other than outstanding claims) (1,253,153) 138,149

Surplus appropriated to shareholders’ fund from Ledger B to C 16,121 16,020

Share of profit from associates and joint venture under equity accounting - net 28 1,282,853 105,118

Profit before taxation 2,222,393 939,097

Taxation 29 (501,602) (288,773)

Profit after taxation 1,720,791 650,324

Profit / (loss) attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent 1,737,357 684,312

Non-controlling interest (16,566) (33,988)
1,720,791 650,324

(Rupees)
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 30 12.18 4.80
The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
Aa -
ol |
AT
. : SAn timnn
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

and Other Comprehensive Income
For The Year Ended December 31, 2020

Note

Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income / (loss) - reclassifiable to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss

- Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments - net of tax

- Change in insurance liabilities - net

- Share of other comprehensive loss of associate - net of tax 28

Other comprehensive income / (loss) - not reclassifiable to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss
- Unrealised loss on remeasurement of financial assets
classified as ‘fair value through other comprehensive income’
- Remeasurement (loss) / gain on retirement benefits liability - net of tax

Total comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive loss attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interest

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

o i
i| |
AR

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

(Rupees in ‘000)
1,720,791 650,324
45,400 583,732
(50,812) (527,749)
(1,281,978) (1,202,211)
(1,287,390) (1,146,228)
(4,523,999) (3,847,693)
(288) 12,853
(4,524,287) (3,834,840)
(4,090,886) (4,330,744)
(4,072,890) (4,307,854)
(17,996) (22,890)
(4,090,886) (4,330,744)
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For The Year Ended December 31, 2020

Issued, i Equi Non-
sub'zcrihe('iI and I‘Sellvral:{:last ig: of.”%{;: als (t:‘r::r:ncgr)n — attribﬂtha% to cont:’;‘lling Total
CLUEEES  Premiumon  Other capital ! nanci General it equity holders | nterest
capital issue of shares reservgs °f:a‘|':'i|:3;§{_°r “fﬁgﬂ#‘ﬁ:ﬁ reserve p;?;f of the parent
ments- net “ﬂ%’:g‘rﬁgs"e
(Rupees in ‘000)
Balance as at December 31,2018 1,426,305 434,051 33267 39,217,961 - 7297545 9625831 58,034,960 215642 58,250,602
Effect of change in accounting policy relating to IFRS 9 - net of tax - - - (34138760) 34,180,053 - 10,797 52,090 - 52,090
Profit after taxation for the year ended December 31, 2019 - - - - - - 684,312 684,312 (33,988) 650,324
Other comprehensive income | (loss) - reclassifiable to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
- Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments - net of tax - - - 483,818 - - - 483818 99914 583,732
- Change in insurance liabiliies - . - (437,619) - - (437,619) (90,130)||  (527,749)
- Share of other comprehensive loss of associate - net of tax - - - (1,202211) - (1,202.211) -1 (1,202.211)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) - not reclassifiable to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
- Deficit on remeasurement of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income - net of tax - - - -] (3,847,693) - - || (3,847,693) -1 (3847,693)
- Share of other comprehensive loss of associate - net of tax
- Remeasurement gain on retirement benefits liability - net of tax - - - - - - 11,539 11,539 1314 12,853
- Remeasurement of retirement benefits liability - net of tax
Total comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2019 - - - (1156012)  (3,847,693) - 695851  (4,307,854) (22,890)  (4,330,744)
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
- Subscription of right shares by non - controlling interest - - - - - - - - 170,848 170,848
- Final dividend for the year ended December 31, 2018 at the rate
of Rs. 3 per share approved on March 29, 2019 - - - - - - (427,892) ||  (427,892) - (427,892)
- - - - - - (421892)  (4218%) 170,848 (257,044)
Balance as at December 31,2019 1,426,305 434,051 33,267 3923189 30332360  7,297545 9,904,587 53,351,304 363600 53,714,904
Profit after taxation for the year ended December 31, 2020 - - - - - || 1,737,367 || 1,737,357 (16,566) | 1,720,791
Other comprehensive income / (loss) - reclassifiable to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
- Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments - net of tax - - - 37,543 - - - 37,543 7857 45400
- Change in insurance liabilities - - - (42,018) - - - (42,018) (8,794) (50,812)
- Share of other comprehensive loss of associate - net of tax - - - (1,281,978) - - - | (1,281,978) - (1,281,978)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) - not reclassifiable to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
- Deficit on remeasurement of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income - net of tax - - - - 1| (4523999 - - || (4523999) - (4,523999)
- Remeasurement gain / (loss) on retirement benefits liability - net of tax - - - - - - 205 205 (493) (288)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2020 - - - (1,286453)  (4523999) - 1737562 (4,072,890) (17,996)  (4,090,886)
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
- Final dividend for the year ended December 31, 2019 at the rate
of Rs. 3 per share approved on May 21, 2020 - - - - - - (4218%)  (427892) - (427,892)
Balance as at December 31, 2020 1,426,305 434,051 33,267 2636736 25808361 7,297,545 11214257 48,850,522 345604 49,196,126
The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
& a ‘
i 5\_{
Lttt S bima,
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For The Year Ended December 31, 2020

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 5&6
Financial charges 27
Gain on disposal of assets - net 25

Profit on savings accounts and term deposits

Return on government and debt securities

Change in insurance liabilities

Surplus appropriated to shareholders’ fund from Ledger B to C

Share of profit from associates and joint venture under equity accounting - net
Gain on sale of available for sale investments - net

Unrealised loss / (gain) on investments

Dividend income 23

Changes in working capital

Increase in current assets
Deposit, loans, advances and other receivables

Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Income tax paid
Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Fixed capital expenditure

Proceeds on disposal of assets

Profit received on government and debt securities
Long-term deposits

Investments - net

Dividend received

Profits / return received

Net cash generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid

Repayment of certificates of deposit

Loan repayments

Financial charges paid

Repayment of liability against right-of-use assets
Net cash used in financing activities

Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 10.3

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

;f‘ i ]
LMo &

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

2020 ] 2019 |
(Rupees in ‘000)
2,222,393 939,097
284,522 231,506
429,251 471,423
(18,462) (15,417)
(225,281) (323,313)
(1,709,854) (1,680,475)
1,253,153 (138,149)
(16,121) (16,020)
(1,282,853) (105,118)
(252,959) (9,884)
4,368 (76,216)
(925,911) (880,216)
(2,460,147) (2,541,879)
(237,754) (1,602,782)
(1,509,179) (1,124,036)
848,960 999,926
(897,973) (1,726,892)
(853,237) (745,661)
(1,751,210) (2,472,553)
(361,229) (752,082)
33,765 22,322
1,709,854 1,680,475
(330) 4,648
(71,730) 181,704
925,911 880,216
596,417 133,379
2,832,658 2,150,662
(428,160) (423,338)
- (20)
(629,942) (593,464)
(429,251) (471,423)
67,633 48,689
(1,419,720) (1,439,556)
(101,382) 1,660,065
(439,654) (101,382)
L7 B
Director
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Notes to and Forming Part of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

1

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.3.1

1.3.2

1.3.3

1.34

1.3.5

14

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
The “Group” consist of:

Holding Company
- IGI Holdings Limited

Subsidiary Companies Percentage Shareholding
- |Gl Life Insurance Limited 82.69%
- |Gl Finex Securities Limited 100%
- IGI General Insurance Limited 100%
- IGl Investments (Pvt.) Limited 100%
- IGI FSI (Pvt.) Limited 100%

Holding Company

IGI Holdings Limited (“Holding Company or IGIl Holdings”), a Packages Group Company, was
incorporated as a public limited company in 1953 under the repealed Companies Ordinance,
1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) and is quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The
registered office of the Holding Company is situated at 7th floor, The Forum, Suite No. 701-713,
G-20, Block 9, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi. The objects of the Holding Company include to act
as an investment holding company and to invest, acquire, sell and hold the securities and financial
instruments subject to compliance by relevant laws prevailing in Pakistan from time to time.

Subsidiary Companies

IGI Life Insurance Limited (“IGI Life”) was incorporated in Pakistan on October 9, 1994 as a public
limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). Its
shares are quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. IGI Life commenced its operations on May
25, 1995 after registration with the Controller of Insurance on April 30, 1995. IGI Life is engaged in life
insurance, carrying on both participating and non-participating business. IGI Life is also engaged in
providing Shariah Compliant family takaful products as an approved Window Takaful Operator.

IGI Finex Securities Limited (“IGI Finex”) was incorporated in Pakistan on June 28, 1994 as a public
limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017).
IGI Finex has a Trading Right Entitlement Certificate (TREC) of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
and is a corporate member of Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited. The principal activities of I1GI
Finex include shares and commodities brokerage, money market and foreign exchange brokerage
and advisory and consulting services.

IGI General Insurance Limited (“IGI General”), was incorporated as a public limited company on
November 18, 2016 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act,
2017). The objects of IGI General include providing general insurance services (mainly Fire, Marine,
Motor, Health and Miscellaneous) and general takaful services (mainly Fire, Marine, Motor, Health
and Miscellaneous).

IGI Investments (Pvt.) Limited (“IGI Investments”), was incorporated as a private limited company on
October 31, 2016 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). The
objects of IGI Investments include investing, acquiring, selling and holding of debt / equity securities.

IGI FSI (Pvt.) Limited (“IGI FSI”), was incorporated as a private limited company on July 6, 2020
under the Companies Act, 2017 with an authorised capital of Rs 7 million. IGI FSI is engaged in
providing technology led business solutions including training services in the market.

The Holding Company has three associates namely Packages Limited, Dane Foods Limited,
Packages Real Estate (Private) Limited and a joint venture S.C. Johnson & Son of Pakistan (Private)
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For The Year Ended December 31, 2020

21

2.2

23

Limited respectively. The details of these companies are disclosed in notes 7.1 and 7.2 to these
consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in
Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been
followed.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards
that are effective in the current year:

There are certain new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 but are considered not to be relevant or
do not have any significant effect on the Group’s operations and are therefore not detailed in these
consolidated financial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards
that are not yet effective:

The following revised standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved
accounting and reporting standards would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the
respective standard, amendments or interpretation:

. Effective date (accounting
Standard, Interpretations or Amendments periods ending on or after)

- IFRS 16 - ‘Leases’ (amendments) June 1, 2020
- IAS 16 - ‘Property, plant and equipment’ (amendments) January 1, 2022
- 1AS 37 - ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities

and contingent assets’ (amendments) January 1, 2022
- IAS 1 - ‘Presentation of financial statements’ (amendments) January 1, 2023
- IFRS 9 - ‘Financial Instruments’ * January 1, 2023

*Effective from January 1, 2019, the Group has adopted IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ which has
replaced IAS 39, ‘Financial instruments: recognition and measurement’. However, the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), on application of the Holding Company, has allowed
the Group to defer application of IFRS 9 till December 31, 2020 to the extent of recognition and
disclosure of assets and liabilities of IGI Life and IGI General in the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. Accordingly, IFRS 9 has been applied in these consolidated financial statements on
assets and liabilities of the Group other than relating to IGI Life and IGI General.
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The management is currently in the process of assessing the impact of these standards and
amendments on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

2.31 There are certain other new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for
the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021 but are considered not to
be relevant or will not have any significant effect on the Group’s operations and are therefore not
detailed in these consolidated financial statements.

24 Basis of consolidation

Subsidiary company is the entity in which the holding company directly or indirectly controls or
beneficially owns or holds more than 50% of the voting securities or otherwise has power to elect and
appoint more than 50% of its directors. The financial statements of the subsidiary company are included
in the consolidated financial statements from the date the control commences until the control ceases.

The assets and liabilities of the subsidiary companies have been consolidated on a line by line basis
and the carrying value of investments held by the holding company is eliminated against the Holding
Company’s share in paid up capital of the subsidiary companies.

Intergroup balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Non-controlling interests are the part of net results of the operations and of net assets of the subsidiary
companies attributable to interest which are not owned by the holding company. Non-controlling
interests are presented as a separate item in the consolidated financial statements.

25 Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Group’s functional
and presentation currency.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

Significant accounting estimates and areas where judgments were made by the management in the
application of accounting policies are as follows:

- Business combination (note 4.1);

- Provision for outstanding claims including IBNR (note 4.6);

- Reinsurance / retakaful recoveries against outstanding claims (note 4.7);

- Premium / contribution deficiency reserve (note 4.9);

- Provision for taxation and deferred tax (notes 4.13, 19 and 29);

- Classification of investments and its impairment (notes 4.16, 4.17 and 7);

- Useful lives and residual values of fixed assets and intangible assets (notes 4.20, 5 and 6);
- Staff retirement benefits (notes 4.24 and 12);

- Policyholders’ liabilities (note 4.10); and

- Lease liability and right of use assets (notes 4.21 and 18).

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies and the methods of computation adopted in the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies are consistently applied in all
preceding years presented.
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Business combination

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method. The cost of acquisition
is measured as the fair value of assets given, equity instruments issued and the liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of acquisition. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, if any. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the
consideration transferred over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets acquired as in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is measured, subsequent to initial recognition, at its cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the Cash Generating Units (CGUs), or groups
of CGU, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Goodwill impairment
reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Insurance contracts
Conventional business
Insurance contracts represent contracts with policyholders and reinsurers.

Those contracts including riders where the Group (the insurer) accepts significant insurance risk from
another party i.e. group and individual policyholders by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a
specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders are insurance
policy contracts.

Those insurance contracts that are issued by one insurer (the reinsurer) to compensate another
insurer (the cedant) for losses on one or more contracts issued by the cedant are reinsurance
contracts. The Group enters into reinsurance contracts with foreign reinsurers in the normal course
of business in order to limit the potential for losses arising from certain exposures.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for
the remainder of its period, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless
all rights and liabilities are extinguished or expired.

Non-life business

Insurance contracts are those contracts where the Group (the insurer) has accepted significant
insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if
a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders.

The Group enters into fire and property damage, marine, motor, health, burglary, loss of cash in
transit, travel, personal accident, engineering losses and other insurance contracts with corporate
clients and individuals residing or located in Pakistan.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for
the remainder of its period, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless
all rights and liabilities are extinguished or expired.

The Group neitherissues investment contracts nor does it issue insurance contracts with Discretionary
Participation Features (DPF).
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4.3.1.2 Life business

The Group enters into insurance contracts with policyholders which are divided into following two
major categories:

Group Insurance contracts

The Group offers group life, group accident & health and pension business to its clients. The
Group also underwrites business for consumer banking related schemes. The risk underwritten is
mainly death, hospitalisation and disability. The Group insurance contracts are issued typically on
Yearly Renewable Term basis (YRT). This business is written through direct sales force as well as
bancassurance.

Individual Insurance Contracts

The Group offers Individual Life (Participating), Individual Life (Non-Participating), Individual Accident
& Health and Investment Unit Linked Plans which provide financial protection, i.e., protection against
the financial consequences of death, disease and disability caused by accidents, sickness or old age
and a substantial return at maturity. Investment Unit Linked policies are regular life policies, where
policy value is determined as per the underlying assets’ value. Various types of riders (Accidental
Death, Income Benefit, etc.) are also offered along with the basic policies. Some of these riders
are charged through deduction from policyholders’ fund value, while others are conventional i.e.,
additional premium is charged there against. This business is written through direct sales force as
well as bancassurance.

4.3.2 Takaful business
4.3.2.1 Non-life business

Takaful contracts are based on the principles of Wakalah. Takaful contracts so agreed usually inspire
concept of tabarru (to donate for benefit of others) and mutual sharing of losses with the overall
objective of eliminating the element of uncertainty.

Contracts under which the Participant Takaful Fund (PTF) accept significant takaful risk from another
party (the participant) by agreeing to compensate the participant if a specified uncertain future event
(the takaful event) adversely affects the participant are classified as takaful contracts. Takaful risk is
significant if a takaful event could cause the PTF to pay significant benefits due to the happening of
the takaful event compared to its non-happening. Once a contract has been classified as a takaful
contract, it remains a takaful contract for the remainder of its lifetime, even if the takaful risk reduces
significantly during this period, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or expired.

The PTF underwrites non-life takaful contracts relating to fire and property, marine and transport,
motor, health and miscellaneous lines of businesses.

4.3.2.2 Life business

The takaful contracts are based on the principles of Wakalah Waqf Model. Takaful is a programme
based on Shariah compliant, approved concept funded on the principles of mutual cooperation,
solidarity and brotherhood. The obligation of Wagqf for Wagqf participants’ liabilities is limited to the
amount available in the Waqf fund. In the event where there are insufficient funds in Wagqf to meet
their current payments less receipts, the deficit is funded by way of an interest free loan (Qard-e-
Hasan) from the operators’ sub fund to the statutory fund (Takaful Business Statutory Funds). The
amount of Qard-e-Hasan is refundable to the operators’ sub fund.

Technical reserves are stated at a value determined by the appointed actuary through an actuarial

valuation carried out as at each reporting date, in accordance with section 50 of the Insurance
Ordinance, 2000.
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Group takaful contracts
The Group offers group family, group accident and health takaful policies to its clients. The Group
takaful contracts are issued typically on yearly renewable term basis.

Individual family takaful contracts - unit linked

The Group offers Unit Linked Takaful Plans which provide Shariah compliant financial protection and
investment vehicle to individual participants. These plans carry cash value which is determined as
per the underlying assets’ value. The death benefit design is based on Constant Sum Risk approach
i.e. the sum cover is paid in addition to the cash value. The plans offer investment choices to the
customer to direct their investment related contribution based on their risk / return objectives. No
investment guarantees are offered. The investment risk is borne by the participants. Various type of
supplemental benefits (accidental death, disability, income benefit, etc.) are also offered along with
basic policies.

Premiums / contributions
Conventional business
Non-life business

Premium received / receivable under a policy is recognised as written from the date of attachment of
the risk to the policy to which it relates. Where the pattern of incidence of risk varies over the period
of the policy, premium is recognised as revenue in accordance with the pattern of the incidence of
risk. The portion of premium written relating to the unexpired period of coverage is recognised as
unearned premium by the Group. This liability is calculated by applying 1/24 method as specified in
the Insurance Rules, 2017.

Premium income includes administrative surcharge that represents documentation and other charges
recovered by the Group from policyholders in respect of policies issued, at the rate of 5% of the
premium written restricted to a maximum of Rs. 5,000 per policy.

Receivables under insurance contracts are recognised when due, at the fair value of the consideration
receivable less provision for doubtful debts, if any. If there is objective evidence that the receivables
are impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of the receivable and recognises thatimpairment
loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Life business

- First year individual life premium is recognised when the policy is issued after receipt of that
premium. Subsequent premiums falling due under the policy are recognised if received before
expiry of the grace period, or if advanced by the Group under the Automatic Premium Loan
(APL). Single premiums and top-up premiums are recognised once the related policies are
issued against the receipt of premium.

- Group premiums are recognised when due.

Receivables under insurance contracts are recognised when due, at the fair value of the consideration
receivable less provision for doubtful debts, if any. If there is objective evidence that the receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of the receivable accordingly and recognises it as
impairment loss.

Takaful business

Non-life business

Contribution written under a policy is recognised as income over the period of takaful from the date
of attachment of the risk to the policy to which it relates. Where the pattern of incidence of risk varies
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over the period of the policy, contribution is recognised as revenue in PTF in accordance with the
pattern of the incidence of risk. The portion of contribution written relating to the unexpired period of
coverage is recognised as unearned contribution by the PTF. This liability is calculated by applying
1/24 method as specified in the Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017.

4.4.2.2 Life business

- First year individual life contribution is recognised when the policy is issued after receipt of that
contribution. Subsequent contributions falling due under the policy are recognised if received
before expiry of the grace period, or if advanced by the Group under the Automatic Contribution
Loan (ACL). Single contributions and top-up contributions are recognised once the related
policies are issued against the receipt of contribution.

- Group contributions are recognised when due.

Receivables under takaful contracts are recognised when due, at the fair value of the consideration
receivable less provision for doubtful debts, if any. If there is objective evidence that the receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of the receivable accordingly and recognises it as
impairment loss.

4.5 Reinsurance / retakaful ceded
4.5.1 Conventional business
4.5.1.1 Non-life business

Insurance contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers for compensation of losses suffered
on insurance contracts issued are reinsurance contracts. These reinsurance contracts include both
facultative and treaty arrangement contracts.

The Group enters into reinsurance contracts in its normal course of business in order to limit the
potential for losses arising from certain exposures. Outward reinsurance premiums are accounted
for in the same period as the related premiums for the direct or accepted reinsurance business being
reinsured.

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are
estimated in a manner consistent with the terms of the related reinsurance contract. Reinsurance
assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers
are estimated in a manner consistent with the provision for outstanding claims or settled claims
associated with the reinsurance policies and are in accordance with the terms of the related
reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets are not offset against related insurance liabilities. Income or expenses from
reinsurance contracts are not offset against expenses or income from related insurance assets.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or
expired.

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on the reporting date. If there is an
objective evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount
of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognises the impairment loss in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

4.5.1.2 Life business

Reinsurance premiums are recognised in accordance with pattern of recognition of related premium.
It is measured in line with the terms and conditions of the reinsurance arrangements.
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Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Balances payable are
estimated in a manner consistent with the related reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets represent
balances due from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in
a manner consistent with the provision for outstanding claims or settled claims associated with the
reinsurance policies and are in accordance with the terms of the related reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets are not offset against related insurance liabilities. Income or expenses from
reinsurance contract are not offset against expenses or income from related insurance assets as
required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000.

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on reporting date. If there is an objective
evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of the
reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognises it as impairment loss.

Takaful business
Non-life business

These are contracts entered into by the Group with retakaful operators for compensation of losses
suffered on takaful contracts issued. These retakaful contracts include both facultative and treaty
arrangement contracts and are classified in same categories of takaful contracts for the purpose
of these consolidated financial statements. The Group recognises the entitled benefits under the
contracts as various retakaful assets.

The deferred portion of retakaful contribution is recognised as a prepayment in PTF. The deferred
portion of retakaful contribution ceded is calculated by using 1/24 method.

Life business

These contracts are entered into by the Group with retakaful operators under which the “Waqf Fund”
cedes the takaful risk assumed during normal course of its business and according to which Waqf is
compensated for losses on contracts issued by it are classified as retakaful contracts held.

Retakaful contribution
Retakaful contribution is recorded at the time the contribution is ceded. Surplus from retakaful
operator is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Retakaful expenses
Retakaful expenses are recognised as a liability in accordance with the pattern of recognition of
related contribution.

Retakaful assets and liabilities
Retakaful assets represent balances due from retakaful operators. Recoverable amounts are
estimated in a manner consistent with the associated retakaful treaties.

Retakaful liabilities represent balances due to retakaful operators. Amounts payable are calculated in
a manner consistent with the associated retakaful treaties.

Retakaful assets are not offset against related retakaful liabilities. Income or expenses from retakaful
contract are not offset against expenses or income from related retakaful contracts as required by the
Insurance Ordinance, 2000.
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4.6 Claims expense
4.6.1 Conventional business
4.6.1.1 Non-life business

General insurance claims include all claims occurred during the year, whether reported or not, related
internal and external claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement
of claims, a reduction for the value of salvage and other recoveries, and any adjustments to claims
outstanding from previous years.

The Group recognises liability in respect of all claims incurred upto the reporting date which is
measured at the undiscounted value of the expected future payments. The claims are considered to
be incurred at the time of the incident giving rise to the claim except as otherwise expressly indicated
in an insurance contract. The liability for claims include amounts relating to unpaid reported claims,
claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and expected claims settlement costs.

The provision for Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) claims is determined by the Group as required
under circular No. 9 of 2016 issued by the SECP. As per the SECP circular No. 9 of 2016 an insurer shall
estimate IBNR claims reserve based on the prescribed method provided in the guidelines. Guidelines
also allows the use of any other alternative method of determining IBNR, if found more suitable for the
risk class, provided that the amount estimated under the alternative method shall not be less than the
amount calculated under prescribed method. The prescribed method for estimating IBNR claim reserve
is the chain ladder method based on paid claims hereinafter called ‘Incurred But Not Paid’ or ‘IBNP’.
The Basic Chain Ladder (BCL) method uses a run off triangle to estimate the development factors for
each accident period which are further used to estimate the ultimate paid claims. Data from settlement
registers are used in the BCL models. Lags are determined to be the difference between the ‘date of
loss’ and ‘date of claim payment’. Monthly lags are used since it reflects the claim development pattern
within a given year and the back testing supports the same. Once IBNP has been determined using
BCL, the outstanding claims are deducted to arrive at IBNR on paid basis.

Under alternative method IBNR is determined on reported basis. IBNR (reported basis) is much
similar to IBNR (paid basis) but is calculated using a different methodology. It does not use either
IBNP or outstanding claims to estimate IBNR rather, is determined using BCL method. Development
factors are determined for each accident period to estimate the ultimately reported claims directly.
Intimation registers are used in the BCL model where lags are calculated as the difference between
the ‘date of loss’ and ‘date of intimation’.

The analysis is carried out separately for each class of business and results determined through this
alternative method are compared to the results of prescribed method and higher of the two are set as
the final reserve.

4.6.1.2 Life business

Claim expense

Insurance claims include all claims occurred during the year, whether reported or not, related internal
and external claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims
and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years. Claims are recognised at the earlier
of when the policy ceases to participate in the earnings of the fund or insured event occurs.

The outstanding claims liability includes amounts relating to unpaid reported claims and expected
claims settlement costs. Full provision is made for the estimated cost of claims incurred to the date of
the consolidated statement of financial position. The liability for claims expenses relating to “Incurred
But Not Reported”’(IBNR) is included in policyholders’ liabilities.

4.6.1.2.1 Claims provision

a) Reserves have been made in respect of all intimated claims. Most claims require lump sum
payments, and reserves have been maintained in each Statutory Fund, where applicable. In
certain cases, claims are payable in instalments over a period of more than twelve months
after the valuation date. In respect of all such claims, reserves have been calculated using the
minimum valuation basis.
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b) Adequate reserves have also been maintained for Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) claims
which were determined using the Chain and Ladder Method.

Experience refund of premium

Experience refund of premium payable / receivable to / from Group policyholders is presented in these
consolidated financial statements.

Takaful business
Non-life business

General takaful claims include all claims occurred during the year, whether reported or not, related
internal and external claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement
of claims, a reduction for the value of salvage and other recoveries, and any adjustments to claims
outstanding from previous years.

The Group recognises liability in respect of all claims incurred upto the reporting date which is
measured at the undiscounted value of the expected future payments. The claims are considered to
be incurred at the time of the incident giving rise to the claim except as otherwise expressly indicated
in a takaful contract. The liability for claims include amounts relating to unpaid reported claims, claims
incurred but not reported (IBNR) and expected claims settlement costs.

The provision for Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) claims is determined by the Group as required under
circular No. 9 of 2016 issued by the SECP. As per the SECP circular No. 9 of 2016, an insurer shall
estimate IBNR claims’ reserve based on the prescribed method provided in the guidelines. Guidelines
also allows the use of any other alternative method of determining IBNR, if found more suitable for the
risk class, provided that the amount estimated under the alternative method shall not be less than the
amount calculated under the prescribed method. The prescribed method for estimating IBNR claim
reserve is the chain ladder method based on paid claims hereinafter called ‘Incurred But Not Paid’ or
‘IBNP’. The Basic Chain Ladder (BCL) method uses a run off triangle to estimate the development
factors for each accident period which are further used to estimate the ultimate paid claims. Data
from settlement registers are used in the BCL models. Lags are determined to be as the difference
between the ‘date of loss’ and ‘date of claim payment’. Monthly lags are used since it reflects the claim
development pattern within a given year and the back testing supports the same. Once IBNP has been
determined using BCL, the outstanding claims are deducted to arrive at IBNR on paid basis.

Under alternative method IBNR is determined on reported basis. IBNR (reported basis) is much
similar to IBNR (paid basis) but is calculated using a different methodology. It does not use neither
IBNP nor outstanding claims to estimate IBNR rather, is determined using BCL method. Development
factors are determined for each accident period to estimate the ultimately reported claims directly.
Intimation registers are used in the BCL model where lags are calculated as the difference between
the ‘date of loss’ and ‘date of intimation’.

The analysis is carried out separately for each class of business and results determined through this
alternative method are compared to the results of prescribed method and higher of the two are set as
the final reserve.

Life business

Claims expense include all claims occurred during the year, whether reported or not, internal and
external claim handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims and
other recoveries, and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous years.

The outstanding claims liability includes amounts relating to unpaid reported claims and expected
claims settlement costs. Full provision is made for the estimated cost of claims incurred to the
reporting date. The liability for claims expenses relating to “Incurred But Not Reported”’(IBNR) is
included in technical reserves.
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4.7 Reinsurance / retakaful recoveries against claims
4.7.1 Non-life business

Reinsurance / retakaful recoveries against outstanding claims and salvage recoveries are recognised
as an asset and measured at the amount expected to be received.

4.7.2 Life business

Claim recoveries receivable from the reinsurer / retakaful company are recognised as an asset at the
same time as the claims which give rise to the right of recovery are recognised as a liability and are
measured at the amount expected to be received.

4.8 Commission and other acquisition costs
4.8.1 Non-life and life Conventional

Commission expense and other acquisition costs are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss at the time the policies are accepted. This expense is deferred and brought to consolidated
statement of profit or loss as expense in accordance with the pattern of recognition of the gross
premium to which it relates. Commission expense is arrived at after taking the impact of opening and
closing deferred commission.

Commission income from reinsurers is recognised at the time of issuance of the underlying insurance
policy by the Group. This income is deferred and brought to consolidated statement of profit or
loss as revenue in accordance with the pattern of recognition of the reinsurance premium to which
it relates. Commission from reinsurers is arrived at after taking the impact of opening and closing
unearned commission. Profit commission, if any, which the Group may be entitled to under the terms
of reinsurance arrangement, is recognised on accrual basis.

4.8.2 Takaful business

Commission expense and other acquisition costs are charged to OPF at the time the policies are
accepted. Retakaful reward from retakaful operator is recognised at the time of issuance of the
underlying takaful policy by the PTF. This income is deferred and brought to consolidated statement
of profit or loss as revenue in accordance with the pattern of recognition of the retakaful contribution
to which it relates. Retakaful reward from retakaful operator is arrived at after taking the impact of
opening and closing unearned retakaful rebate. Profit on retakaful contracts, if any, which the PTF
may be entitled to under the terms of retakaful arrangement, is recognised on accrual basis.

49 Premium / contribution deficiency reserve
Non-life conventional business and takaful business

The Group is required, as per Insurance Rules, 2017, to maintain a provision in respect of premium /
contribution deficiency for the class of business where the unearned premium / contribution liability is not
adequate to meet the expected future liability, after reinsurance, from claims and other supplementary
expenses expected to be incurred after the reporting date in respect of the unexpired policies in that
class of business as at the reporting date. Movement in the premium / contribution deficiency reserve
is recorded as an expense / income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are performed separately for each class of business
to ensure the adequacy of the unearned premium liability for that class. It is performed by comparing
the expected future liability, after reinsurance, from claims and other expenses, including reinsurance
expense, commissions and other underwriting expenses, expected to be incurred after reporting
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date in respect of policies inforce as at reporting date with the carrying amount of unearned premium
liability. Any deficiency is recognised by establishing a provision (premium deficiency reserve) to
meet the deficit. The expected future liability is estimated with reference to the experience during the
expired period of the contracts, adjusted for significant individual losses which are not expected to
recur during the remaining period of the policies, and expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable. The movement in the premium / contribution deficiency reserve is recognised
as an expense or income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year. The expected
ultimate net claim ratios for the unexpired periods of policies inforce at reporting date for each class
of business are as follows:

Fire and property damage 47%
Marine, aviation and transport 43%
Motor 42%
Health 75%
Miscellaneous 29%

Based on an analysis of combined operating ratio for the expired period of each reportable segment,
the management considers that the unearned premium reserve for all classes of business as at the
year end is adequate (except for health class) to meet the expected future liability after reinsurance,
from claims and other expenses, expected to be incurred after the reporting date in respect of
policies in those classes of business in force at the reporting date. The Group has recorded premium
/ contribution deficiency reserve on the recommendation of actuary for fire and property damage,
marine, aviation and transport, health and miscellaneous line of business.

The Group is required as per Insurance Accounting Regulations, 2017, to maintain a provision in
respect of contribution deficiency for the class of business where the unearned contribution reserve is
not adequate to meet the expected future liability, after retakaful from claims, and other supplementary
expenses expected to be incurred after the reporting date in respect of the unexpired takaful contracts
in that class of business at the reporting date. The movement in the contribution deficiency reserve is
recorded as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Life conventional and takaful business

No provision has been made as the unearned premium reserve for each class of business as at the
year end is adequate to meet the expected future liability after reinsurance from claims and other
expenses, expected to be incurred after the reporting date in respect of policies in force at reporting
date as per the advice of appointed actuary.

Policyholders’ liabilities

Policyholders’ liabilities including IBNR are stated at a value determined by the appointed actuary
through an actuarial valuation / advice carried out at each reporting date, in accordance with section
50 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000. In determining the value both acquired policy values as well as
estimated values which will be payable against risks which the Group underwrites are considered.
The basis used are applied consistently from year to year.

Policyholders’ liabilities
Mortality, morbidity and interest bases adopted

SECP videits circular 17/2013 dated September 13, 2013 has stipulated that SLIC(2001 - 05) Individual
Life Mortality Table published by Pakistan Society of Actuaries be used as the minimum valuation
basis prescribed under SECP’s notification S.R.O 16(1)/2012. A test was previously conducted to
compare the existing valuation basis i.e. EFU (1961 - 66) mortality table with the minimum valuation
basis SLIC (2001 - 05) for the relevant reserves. The test revealed that the existing valuation basis
was comparatively more prudent than the minimum valuation basis and therefore it was considered
to be more appropriate to continue with the existing valuation basis.
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The
SR

rate of discount was taken as 3.75%, in line with the requirements under the SECP’s notification

.0 16(1)/2012, for determining reserves of traditional products and supplementary coverage. Any

differential between the assumed rate and the actual rate is intended to be available to the Group for
meeting its administrative expenses.

General principles adopted for valuation

The

general principles adopted in the actuarial valuation to estimate policyholders’ liabilities as at December

31, 2020 in accordance with the Annexure 5 to Rule 23 of Insurance Rules, 2017 are as follows:

a)

b)

c)

0)
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Reserves for Endowment Policies with term not less than 20 years have been calculated using
Full Preliminary Term Method with EFU (1961 - 66) Ultimate Mortality Table at 3.75%.

Reserves for Endowment Policies with term less than 20 years have been calculated using
combination of Full Preliminary Term Method and Net Level Premium Method with EFU (1961 -
66) Ultimate Mortality Table at 3.75%.

Term Policies are calculated using Net Level Premium Method with EFU (1961 - 66) Ultimate
Mortality Table at 3.75%.

Reduced Paid-ups and Extended Term insurances have been valued by Net Single Premium
Method with EFU (1961 - 66) Ultimate Mortality Table at 3.75%.

Bonus Reserves have been valued by Net Single Premium Method with EFU (1961 - 66) Ultimate
Mortality Table at 3.75%.

Loyalty Bonus Reserves have been valued by Net Single Premium Method at 3.75% for active
policies.

In respect of Unit Linked policies, the reserve for bid value of allocated units is calculated using
the latest bid value of units and the total number of units belonging to policyholders’ accounts
as at the valuation date. The amount is held as a reserve since it represents the current value
of amounts that will be payable to policyholders at the time when a maturity, death or surrender
claim is filed. The latest bid value is the last “announced” bid price before the valuation date.

Universal Life business has been valued using full account values. No deduction has been made
for surrender charges.

An ‘Asset Liability mismatch reserve’ has been kept in the Individual Life Non - Participating Fund
as a result of the ALM exercise carried out to assess the interest rate risk, credit risk and equity
risk.

Group Life Insurance, Individual Accident & Health Insurance and Group Accident & Health have
been valued using Unearned Gross Premium.

Pension business has been valued using full account values.

Unearned premium reserves have been maintained for all riders except Level Term rider reserve
which is calculated using Net Level Premium Method with EFU (1961 - 66) Ultimate Mortality
Table at 3.75%.

Reinsurance premium reserves have been maintained on an unearned premium basis.
Reserves have been maintained for Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) claims which were
determined using the Chain-Ladder method based on the claims lag pattern experienced over

the past few years.

Reserves for claims payable in installments have been kept at 3.75%.



For The Year Ended December 31, 2020

4.1

412

413

p) Unearned Premium Reserve is kept as half month of Cost of Insurance (COl) for Cost of Insurance
(COl) of Universal Life and Unit Linked Policies.

q) No policy is treated as an asset and in the system if the reserve is negative, the negative value is
excluded and the reserves for the policies is set equal to zero.

r) The Group does not have any insurance policy which is denominated in foreign currency.
s) Reinstatement reserve have been maintained on universal life and ordinary life policies.

The principles adopted in this valuation were same as those followed in previous valuation as at
December 31, 2019.

Surrenders

For the purpose of conventional and annuity business, no provision has been made for lapses and
surrenders. This gives prudence to the value placed on the liability by not taking any credits for the
profits made on surrenders.

Loans secured against life insurance policies

Interest bearing loans are available to policyholders of the Group to the extent of ninety percent of
cash values built in their policies. These are recognised on disbursement.

Creditors, accruals and provisions

Liabilities for creditors and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in the future for the services received, whether or not billed to the Group.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed
at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Taxation

Current

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with
the prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax
rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted. The charge for current tax
also include adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years
arising from assessments finalised during the current year for such years. The Holding Company,
IGI General and IGI Investments are taxed as one fiscal unit under section 59AA of Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet method in respect of all temporary differences
at the reporting date between the tax bases and carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except in the case of items credited or charged to
equity in which case it is included in equity.
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414 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost. For
the purposes of consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in
hand, deposits with banks, stamps in hand and short term finances.

4.15 Investment in associates and joint venture

Investment in associates and joint venture, where the Group has significant influence but not
control, are accounted for by using the equity method of accounting. These investments are initially
recognised at cost, thereafter the Group’s share of the changes in the net assets of the associates
and joint venture are accounted for at the end of each reporting period. After application of the equity
method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s net investment in the associates and joint venture by comparing the entire carrying
amount with its recoverable amount. Share of profit and loss of associates and joint venture is
accounted for in the Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss. Associates and joint venture’s
accounting policies are adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

416 Financial instruments under IAS 39 (For determining classification and measurement of
assets and liabilities of IGI Life and IGl General)

4.16.1 Financial assets
4.16.1.1Classification

The management determines the appropriate classification of its financial assets in accordance
with the requirements of International Accounting Standard 39 (IAS 39), “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” at the time of purchase / initial recognition of financial assets and re-
evaluates this classification on a regular basis. The financial assets of the Group are categorised as
follows:

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets that are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short-term
fluctuations in prices are classified in ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category.

b) Loans and receivables

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. The Group assets under the loans and receivables category comprise of
trade receivables, advances, deposits, bank balances and other receivables in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

c) Held-to-maturity

These are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity which the
Group has the positive intent and ability to hold till maturity.

d) Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial assets intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or changes in equity prices, are classified as ‘available-
for-sale’. Available-for-sale financial instruments are those non-derivative financial
assets that are designated as ‘available-for-sale’ or are not classified as (a) loans
and receivables; (b) held-to-maturity; or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. The Group’s certain investments have been classified as available-for-sale.
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4.16.1.2Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised at the time the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except
for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs associated with these
financial assets are taken directly to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

4.16.1.3Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are valued as follows:
a) ‘Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ and ‘available-for-sale’

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ are marked to market using the closing market
rates and are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value. Net gains
and losses arising on changes in fair values of these financial assets are taken to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which these arise.

Available-for-sale financial assets are marked to market using the closing market rates and are
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value. Net gains and losses
arising on changes in fair values of these financial assets are recognised in “other comprehensive
income” till the time these are sold. At that time, the cumulative gain / loss previously recognised
in the “other comprehensive income” is taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

b) ‘Loans and receivables’ and ‘held to maturity’
Loans and receivables and held to maturity financial assets are carried at amortised cost.
4.16.1.4Impairment
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an objective evidence that a financial
asset is impaired. A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an equity instrument below
its cost is also an objective evidence of impairment. Provision for impairment in the value of financial
assets, if any, is taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
4.16.1.5O0ffsetting of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the resulting net amount is reported in the
consolidated financial statements when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and to settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

4.16.1.6 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

4.16.1.7Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised at the time when the Group loses control of the contractual rights
that comprise the financial assets. Financial liabilities are derecognised at the time when they are
extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or expired. Any
gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities is taken to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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4.16.1.8 Advances and deposits
These are stated at cost less estimates made for any doubtful receivables based on a review of
all outstanding amounts as at the date of consolidated statement of financial position. Balances
considered bad and irrecoverable are written off when identified.

4.16.1.9Other receivables
Other receivables are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate for doubtful balances which
is determined based on review of outstanding amounts and previous repayment pattern. Balances
considered bad and irrecoverable are written off when identified.

417 Financial instruments under IFRS 9

4.17.1 Financial assets
Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs associated with these financial assets are
taken directly to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

4.17.1.1Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group has applied IFRS 9 and classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

- at amortised cost;

- at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); and

- at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL).

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments are described below:

(i) Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a financial liability from the issuer’s
perspective, such as loans, government and corporate bonds and puttable instruments like units of
open-ended mutual funds.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depend on:

- the Group’s business model for managing the asset; and
- the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments in one of the following three
measurement categories:

a) At amortised cost
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI), and that are not designated at FVPL, are
measured at amortised cost. The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by any expected
credit loss allowance recognised and measured as described in note 4.17.1.2.

b) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets,

where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI), and that
are not designated at FVPL, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
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(FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through Other Comprehensive Income
(OCl), except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, recognised and measured as
described in note 4.17.1.2, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses on the
instrument’s amortised cost which are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) is reclassified from deficit on remeasurement of financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income to consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

c) Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

Assets that do not meet the criteria for classification at amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised
in the consolidated profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

(ii) Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective
and are instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual
interest in the issuer’s net assets.

All equity investments are required to be measured in the consolidated statement of financial
position at fair value, with gains and losses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
except where an irrevocable election has been made at the time of initial recognition to measure the
investment at FVOCI.

The dividend income for equity securities classified under FVOCI are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. However, any surplus / (deficit) arising as a result of subsequent movement
in the fair value of equity securities classified as FVOCI is recognised in other comprehensive income
and is not recycled to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on derecognition. Furthermore, on
derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between:

(a) the carrying amount (measured at the date of derecognition) and
(b) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed)

shall be recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

4.17.1.2lmpairment
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the Expected Credit Losses (ECL) associated with its
debt instrument assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The Group recognises a loss allowance

for such losses at each reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

- Anunbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes;

- The time value of money; and

- Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

4.17.1.3Derecognition

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the
cash flows from the assets have expired, or when they have been transferred and either:

(i) the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership; or
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(i) the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
the Group has not retained control.

4.17.1.4Regular way contracts

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases / sales of assets
require delivery of securities within two days from the transaction date as per the Stock Exchange
Regulations.

4.17.2 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss.

4.17.3 Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised at the time when these are extinguished i.e. when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. Any gain or loss on derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities is taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

4.17.4 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the resulting net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and to
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

4.17.5 Investment income

- Income from held to maturity / available for sale investments is recognised using effective interest
method. The difference between the redemption value and the purchase price of the held to
maturity investments is amortised over the term of the investment and is taken to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

- Dividend income on investments is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the payment is
established.

- Gain or loss on sale of investments is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

- Unrealised gain / (loss) on remeasurement of investments is recorded in statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on mark to market basis at each reporting date.

- Return on bank deposits, loans to employees and loans to policyholders are recognised on a time
proportionate basis taking into account the effective yield.

4.18  Securities under repurchase / resale agreement

Transactions of sale under repurchase (repo) of securities are entered into at contracted rates for
specified periods of time. These securities are not derecognised from the consolidated financial
statements and are continued to be recognised as investments and measured in accordance with the
accounting policies for investment securities. The counterparty liabilities for amounts received under
these transactions are recorded as liabilities. The difference between sale and repurchase price is
treated as interest / mark-up expense and accrued over the life of the repo agreement.
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4.20

Transactions of purchase under resale (reverse-repo) of securities are entered into at contracted
rates for specified periods of time. These securities are not recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position as investments, as the Group does not obtain control over the assets. Amounts
paid under these arrangements are included in the consolidated statement of financial position as
receivable against reverse repurchase transactions. The difference between purchase and resale
price is treated as income from the date of reverse repurchase transaction and accrued over the life
of the reverse-repo agreement.

All purchases and sales of securities that require delivery within the time frame established by the
regulations or market convention are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Fee, commission and brokerage

Fee, commission and brokerage is recognised to the extent that is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and fee, commission and brokerage can be measured reliably. Fee,
commission and brokerage is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
on the following basis:

- Brokerage, consultancy and advisory fee and commission income are recognised as and when
such services are rendered;

- Income from bank balance and deposits is recognised on accrual basis;
- Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive the dividend is established;

- Gains/ (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on the date at which transactions take place; and

- Unrealised gains / (losses) arising from mark to market of investments classified as ‘at financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income’ are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which these arise.

Fixed assets

Tangible
These are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (if any).
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the item.

Depreciation on all fixed assets is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss on the straight
line basis so as to write-off depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life at the rates stated in
note 5.1 to the consolidated financial statements. Depreciation on additions to fixed assets is charged
from the month in which an asset is acquired or capitalised, while no depreciation is charged for the
month in which the asset is disposed of.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, at each financial year end, and adjusted,
where impact on depreciation is significant. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred.

Disposal of asset is recognised when significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership have been
transferred to buyers. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with
the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘Other income’ in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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Intangible

Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only where it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. Amortisation on intangible assets is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss using
the straight line method after taking into account residual amount, if any. The residual values and
useful lives are reviewed and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate at each reporting date.

Amortisation on all additions to intangible assets having a finite useful life is charged from the month
in which the asset is available for use, while in case of assets disposed of, no amortisation is charged
in the month of disposal.

Intangible assets having an indefinite useful life are carried at cost less any impairment in value
and are not amortised. Intangible assets having an indefinite useful life are reviewed for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

4.21 Right-of-use assets and their related lease liability

Right-of-use assets

On initial recognition, right-of-use assets are measured at an amount equal to initial lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation / accumulated
impairment losses and are adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability. The remeasurement of
lease liability will only occur in cases where the terms of the lease are changed during the lease
tenure.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over their expected useful lives using the straight-line method.
Depreciation on additions (new leases) is charged from the month in which leases are entered into.
No depreciation is charged in month in which the leases mature or are terminated.

Lease liability against right-of-use assets

The lease liabilities for lease contracts (other than short term or low value contracts) are initially
measured as the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
The lease liability is also measured to reflect any remeasurement or change in lease terms. These
remeasurement of lease liabilities are recognised as an adjustment to the carrying amount of related
right-of-use assets after the date of initial recognition.

Each lease payment is allocated between a reduction of the liability and a finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as financial charges over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.
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4.22 Capital work in progress
Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any impairment in its value.
4.23 Asset classified as held for sale

Assets and groups of assets and liabilities which comprise disposal groups are classified as ‘held for
sale’ when all of the following criteria are met:

- adecision has been made to sell;

- the assets are available for sale immediately;

- the assets are being actively marketed; and

- asale has been or is expected to be concluded within twelve months of the reporting date.

Assets and disposal groups ‘held for sale’ are valued at lower of the carrying amount and fair value
less disposal costs.

4.24  Staff retirement benefits
4.24.1 Non-Life Business
4.24.1.1Defined contribution plan

IGI General operates an approved contributory provident fund for all its permanent employees. Equal
monthly contributions are made by IGI General and eligible employees to the fund at the rate of 10
percent of basic salary.

4.24.1.2Defined benefit plan

All permanent employees of |Gl General participate in an approved funded defined gratuity plan.
Contributions to the fund are made based on actuarial recommendations. The most recent actuarial
valuation was carried out as at December 31, 2020 using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Amounts
arising as a result of ‘Remeasurements’, representing the actuarial gains and losses and the
difference between the actual investment returns and the return implied by the net interest cost are
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position immediately, with a charge or credit to
‘Other Comprehensive Income’ in the periods in which they occur.

4.24.1.3 Accumulating compensated absences

Provisions are made annually to cover the obligation for accumulating compensated absences and
are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss.

4.24.2 Life Business
4.24.2.1Defined benefit plan

IGI Life operates an approved defined benefit gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees who
attain the minimum qualification period for entitiement to gratuity. Contributions to the Fund are made
based on actuarial valuation provided by management’s expert.

Actuarial gains and losses, past service costs, gains or losses on settlements, and net interest income
(expense) are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they
occur. The measurement differences representing actuarial gains and losses, the difference between
actual investment returns and the return implied by the net interest cost / income are recognised
immediately with a charge or credit to other comprehensive income.
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In case the benefits paid under the scheme are reduced, it is treated as past service cost in the period
in which change takes place.

4.24.2.2Defined contribution plan

IGI Life operates an approved contributory provident fund which covers all permanent employees.
Equal monthly contributions are made both by IGI Life and the employees to the Fund at the rate of
10 percent of basic salary.

4.24.2.3Employees’ compensated absences

IGI Life accounts for the liability in respect of employees’ compensated absences in the period in
which employees become entitled.

4.24.3 |Gl Finex - gratuity scheme

The Group has introduced an unfunded gratuity scheme for its employees of IGI Finex who have
completed the prescribed qualifying period of service with effect from January 1, 2020. Provision in
respect of gratuity costs is recorded based on actuarial recommendations. The actuarial valuation
is carried out using the projected unit credit method. In accordance with IAS 19, remeasurements
arising as a result of actuarial valuations, are recorded in other comprehensive income in the period
in which these occur.

4.25 Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its shareholders. Basic EPS
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Holding
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares, if any.

4.26 Segment reporting

Abusiness segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged in providing services
that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. The
Group accounts for segment reporting of operating results of general and life insurance business
using the classes of business as specified under the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Insurance
Rules, 2017. The reported operating segments are also consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the Board of Directors which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments. The performance of segments is evaluated on the basis of underwriting
results of each segment.

4.26.1 Conventional Business
Non-Life Business
The Group has seven primary business segments for reporting purposes namely fire, marine, motor,

health, miscellaneous, brokerage and investment.

The perils covered under fire insurance include damages caused by fire, riot and strike, explosion,
earthquake, atmospheric damage, flood, electric fluctuation and terrorism.

Marine insurance provides coverage against cargo risk, risk of war and damages occurring in inland
transit.

Motor insurance provides comprehensive car coverage and indemnity against third party loss.

120 |IGI Holdings Limited



For The Year Ended December 31, 2020

4.26.2

4.26.3

Health insurance provides coverage against expenses incurred during the hospitalisation due to
sickness, emergency and accidents.

Miscellaneous insurance provides cover against health, burglary, loss of cash in safe and cash in
transit, travel, personal accident, money, engineering losses, live stocks, crops and other covers.

Brokerage business covers the brokerage operations as carried on by IGI Finex.
Investment segment includes the investments that are held and managed by IGI Investments.

Financing, investment and income taxes are managed on an overall basis and are therefore, not
allocated to any segment.

Assets, liabilities and capital expenditures that are directly attributable to segments have been
assigned to them. Those assets and liabilities which can not be allocated to a particular segment on
a reasonable basis are reported as unallocated corporate assets and liabilities.

Takaful Business

The Group has five primary business segments for reporting purposes namely fire, marine, health,
motor, and miscellaneous.

The perils covered under fire takaful include damages caused by fire, riot and strike, explosion,
earthquake, atmospheric damage, flood, electric fluctuation and terrorism.

Marine takaful provides coverage against cargo risk, risk of war and damages occurring in inland
transit.

Motor takaful provides comprehensive car coverage and indemnity against third party loss.

Miscellaneous insurance provides cover against health, burglary, loss of cash in safe and cash in
transit, travel, personal accident, money, engineering losses, live stocks, crops and other covers.

Financing, investment and income taxes are managed on an overall basis and are therefore, not
allocated to any segment.

Assets, liabilities and capital expenditures that are directly attributable to segments have been
assigned to them. Those assets and liabilities which can not be allocated to a particular segment on
a reasonable basis are reported as unallocated corporate assets and liabilities.

Life Business

The Group presents segment reporting of operating results using the classes of business as specified
under the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Insurance Rules, 2017 and the Takaful Rules, 2012. The
Group has 10 Operating segments for reporting purposes namely; a) Individual Life participating
business, b) Individual Life non-participating business, c) Investment linked d) Accidental & health €)
Group Life, f) Group health, g) Pension business h) Individual family takaful, i) Group family takaful
and j) Accident & health family takaful.

- The Life (participating) segment provides life insurance coverage to individuals under individual
life policies that are entitled to share in the surplus earnings of the statutory fund to which they
are referable.

- The Life (non-participating) segment provides life insurance coverage to individuals under
individual life policies that are not entitled to share in the surplus earnings of the statutory fund to
which they are referable.
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- The Life (non-participating) Group segment provides life insurance coverage to employer-
employee (and similar) groups of employees / members under a single life policy issued to the
employer. The Group policy is not entitled to share in the surplus earnings of the statutory fund
to which it is referable.

- The Investment Linked business segment provides life insurance coverage to individuals,
whereby the benefits are expressed in terms of units, the value of which is related to the market
value of specified assets.

- The Accident and Health - Individual segment provides fixed pecuniary benefits or benefits in the
nature of indemnity or a combination of both in case of accident or sickness to individuals.

- The Accident and Health - Group segment provides fixed pecuniary benefits or benefits in the
nature of indemnity or a combination of both in case of accident or sickness to employer-employee
(and similar) groups of employees / members under a single policy issued to the employer.

- The Pension Fund segment provides coverage for the purposes of a pension or a retirement
scheme with or without the payments being guaranteed for a minimum period.

Family Takaful

- The individual family takaful business segment provides family takaful coverage to individuals
under unit-linked policies issued by the Group.

- The Group Family Takaful business segments provides family takaful coverage to members of
business enterprises, corporate entities and common interest groups under group family takaful
scheme operated by the Group.

- The Group Health Takaful provides fixed pecuniary benefits or benefits in the nature of indemnity
or a combination of both in case of accident or sickness to employer-employee (and similar)
groups of employees / members under a single policy issued to the employer.

The Group maintains Statutory Funds in respect of each class of its life insurance business. Assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses of the Group are referable to respective Statutory Funds, however,
wherever, these are not referable to Statutory Funds, they are allocated to the Shareholders’ Fund.

Apportionment of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, wherever required, between the funds are
made on a fair and equitable basis and in accordance with the written advice of the Appointed Actuary.

Actuarial valuation of life insurance business is required to be carried out annually at the reporting
date. Policyholders’ liabilities included in the statutory funds are based on the actuarial valuation
carried out by the Appointed Actuary as at December 31, 2020.

The Group reviews the basis of estimation used in respect of allocation of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses not referable to specific fund with the consultation of Group’s appointed actuary.

4.27 Impairment

The carrying values of the Group’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each financial year end
for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable. If any such indication exists, and where the carrying values exceed the estimated
recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount. The resulting
impairment loss is taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not ready to use are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
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4.28

4.29

4.30

4.31

4.32

4.33

asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely independent cash inflows (cash-
generating units). Prior impairments of non-financial assets (other than goodwill) are reviewed for
possible reversal at each reporting date.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing
on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into
Pakistani Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange gains
or losses are included in income currently.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except in
cases where such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset (one that takes substantial period of time to get ready for use or sale) in which costs
such costs are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Currently, the Group does not have any
borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition of or construction of qualifying assets.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Management expenses

Management expenses allocated to the underwriting business represent directly attributable
expenses and indirect expenses allocated to the various classes of business on the basis of gross
premium revenue. Expenses not allocable to the underwriting business are charged as administrative
expenses.

Dividends and appropriations to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserve except appropriations required by the law or determined by the
appointed actuary or allowed by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, are recognised in the year in which
these are approved.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

2020 | 2019 |

(Rupees in ‘000)

Operating assets 51 871,234 756,137
Capital work in progress 5.4 45,233 29,581

916,467 785,718
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Buildings /
leasehold Total
improvements

5.1 Movement of operating assets

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

Right of use | Right of use

asset -

Motor

urniture racker i Computer/ 5 asset -
a:d fixt“lllres 3 i . Offce aquipn'\en; Sub total Yi‘;ﬁt}: vehicltes Premises
(Rupees in ‘000)
As at Jan 1,2020
Cost 86,893 7991 83769 112583 291236 545018 103963 271,304 61,095 1272616
Accumulated depreciation (26,842) (962) (41,505) (73808) (143117) (211,323)  (71,383)  (73884)  (16,772) (516479)
Net book value 60,051 7029 42264 38775 148119 333,695 32580 197420 44323 756,137
Year ended December 31, 2020
Opening net book value 60,051 7029 42264 38775 148119 333,695 32580 197420 44323 756,137
Additions 13431 33,07M 11003 51,110 108,615 11,102 14904 135975 44650 315246
Disposals - note 5.3
Cost 2126 1,318 2322 5,766 2622 24,851 20471 6,431 60,141
Accumulated depreciation (1,534) (992)| (2,268)| (4,794) 2212)| (21,558) (9,843) (6,431) ] (44,838)
592 - 326 54 972 410 3,293 10,628 - 15,303
Depreciation charge for the year (8611)  (6614)  (93%) (33376) (57,997)  (32656)  (10821)  (56,644)  (26,728) (184,846)
Closing net book value 64279 33486 43545 56455 197,765 31,731 33370 266,123 62245 871234
As at December 31, 2020
Cost 9,198 41062 93454 161371 394,085 553498 94016 386,808 99,314 1,527,721
Accumulated depreciation (33.919)  (7,576)  (49,909) (104,916) (196,320) (241,767)  (60,646)  (120,685)  (37,069) (656,487)
Net book value 64279 33486 43545 56455 197,765 311,731 33370 266,123 62,245 871234
Depreciation rate % per annum 10%  3333%  10-20% 20-33.33% 510%  20-33%  20-33% 5-80%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment Buildings / Motor Rightof use | Rightof use
IS T oo conmimcten o [z RCLC B el (e B
equipment
(Rupees in ‘000)
AsatJan1,2019
Cost 75,918 81306 115843 273,067 500501 127,967 184,052 17,893 1,103,480
Accumulated depreciation (19,759) (37,813)  (57,680) (115252)  (186,356)  (86,605) (43,3839 - (432,052)
Net book value 56,159 43493 58163 157,815 314145 41362 140,213 17,893 671428
Year ended December 31,2019
Opening net book value 56,159 - 43493 58163 157,815 314145 41362 140213 17,893 671428
Additions 11,805 7,991 8334 10966 39,596 4517 6,604 96,341 43202 230,260
Disposals - note 5.3
Cost 127 1,386 5219 6,732 30,608 9,089 46,429
Accumulated depreciation (126) (932)|  (3597) (4,655 (29,057) (5,812) (39,524)
1 454 1,622 2,077 1,551 3217 6,905
Write off
Cost 703 4,985 9007 | 14,69 14,695
Accumulated depreciation (621) (4,842)| (8,986) (14,449 (14,449)
82 - 143 21 246 - - - - 246
Depreciation charge for the year (7,830) (962)  (9466) (28,711) (46969)  (24967) (13,835)  (35857)  (16,772) (138,400)
Closing net book value 60,051 7029 42264 38775 148,119 333695 32580 197420 44323 756,137
As at December 31,2019
Cost 86,893 7991 83769 112583 291,236 545018 103963 271,304 61,095 1272616
Accumulated depreciation (26,842) (962) (41,505) (730808) (143117)  (211323) (71,383)  (73.884)  (16,772) (516,479)
Net book value 60,051 7029 42264 38775 148,119 333695 32580 197420 44323 756,137
Depreciation rate % per annum 10% 33.33% 10-20%  20-33.33% 510%  20-33%  20-33% 5:80%
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5.2

5.3

The cost and accumulated depreciation of fully depreciated operating assets still in use amounts to
Rs. 659.699 million (2019: Rs. 660.816 million).

Disposal of operating fixed assets

Particulars of the assets ﬁﬁ%‘;’é"cﬁ'a'ﬁt:# pr%ca:!:esds Mode of disposal Particulars of purchaser

Furniture and fixtures
Various furnitures
Various furnitures
Deskrove with side rack
Chairs

Leasehold improvements
Various leasehold improvements
Various leasehold improvements

Office equipment
Various office equipments
Mobile phone

Mobile phone

Various office equipments
Mobile phone

Air Conditioner

Air Conditioner

Air Conditioner

Fan

Water dispenser
Telephone set

Computer / Communication
equipment

Various computer equipments
Various computer equipments
Laptop

Laptop

HP Printer

PC Hardware and LEDs
Interlink Servers

HP Laptop Core |7

UPS

AGM Batteries

Motor vehicles - owned
Toyota Corrolla
Toyota Corrolla
Honda City
Suzuki Swift
Suzuki Swift
Suzuki Cultus
Suzuki Cultus
Suzuki Cultus
Suzuki Cultus
Suzuki Cultus
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
Suzuki Mehran
ub 70

Toyota Corolla
Suzuki Cultus
Honda CD 70
Suzuki Cultus
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Honda CD 70
Suzuki Alto
Toyota Corolla
ub70

ub70

ub70

Honda City 70
Honda CG 125
Mitsubishi Lancer
Suzuki Cultus VXL
Suzuki Cultus VXR
Suzuki Alto VXR

(Rupees in ‘000)

227 227 - 76
1,763 1172 591 86
48 48 - 2
88 87 1 4
2,126 1,534 592 168

’ 67 67 - 1 ‘
2,555 2,145 410 125
2,622 2212 410 126
258 232 26 24
100 68 32 25
76 4 35 28
274 151 123 64
80 25 55 57
30 30 - 6
79 79 - 20
401 355 46 22
15 8 7 7
2 1 1 2
3 2 1 1
1,318 992 326 256
591 558 33 342
477 477 - 6
138 137 1 99
51 42 9 27
26 23 3 3
253 245 8 26
570 570 - 10
124 124 - 62
36 36 3
56 56 - 3
2322 2,268 54 581
1,666 1,666 B 434
2,048 1,787 261 809
1,074 1,074 - 264
1,072 1,072 - 281
1,070 1,070 - 264
1,795 181 1,614 1,745
1,055 1,054 1 441
1,059 1,059 - 250
1,051 1,051 - 175
1,051 1,051 - 449
683 683 - 116
732 657 75 325
693 556 137 521
51 49 2 33
1,447 1,446 1 1,261
1,113 1,113 - 494
67 67 - 30
1,003 1,003 - 750
72 72 - 32
72 72 - 32
67 66 1 30
67 67 - 1
761 761 - 703
1,769 1,769 - 1,675
50 50 - 20
50 50 - 20
50 50 - 20
73 36 37 62
122 35 87 98
969 775 194 670
919 230 689 757
522 440 82 197
558 446 12 573
24,851 21,558 3,293 13,532

Negotiation
Negotiation
Negotiation
Negotiation

Negotiation
Negotiation

Negotiation
Negotiation
Group Policy
Negotiation
Group Policy
Negotiation
Negotiation
Negotiation
Negotiation
Negotiation
Negotiation

Insurance Claim
Negotiation
Insurance Claim
Group Policy
Negotiation
Negotiation
Negotiation
Negotiation
Negotiation
Negotiation

Group Policy
Group Policy
Group Policy
Group Policy
Group Policy
Insurance Claim
Group Policy
Group Policy
Group Policy
Group Policy
Group Policy
Group Policy
Group Policy
Insurance Claim
Group Policy
Group Policy
Group Policy
Auction
Group Policy
Group Policy
Group Policy
Group Policy
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Auction
Group Policy
Group Policy
Auction
Group Policy
Group Policy
Group Policy

Salas Scrap Centre
Khurram Muzaffar
Awaami Neelam Ghar
Awaami Neelam Ghar

Salas Scrap Centre
Khurram Muzaffar

Salas Scrap Centre
Muhammad Kamran
Ghulam Rabbani*
M.Akhtar

Nomaan Bashir*
Fazal Cool House
Mobasher Zaheer
Igbal Hussain
Awaami Neelam Ghar
Awaami Neelam Ghar
Awaami Neelam Ghar

Alfalah Insurance

Hashim

Alfalah Insurance

Rafiq Gatta*

Obaid Scrap Dealer
Obaid Scrap Dealer
Obaid Scrap Dealer
Straight Through Services
Awaami Neelam Ghar
Awaami Neelam Ghar

Rehan Zahid*

Akif Zia Malik*
Hasan Saeed Khan*
Asif Sultani*

Sagib Burney*
General Insurance
Kamran Khan*

Asif Hussain*

Adnan Aslam*
Sohaib Haider*

Iram ljaz*

Adeel Safdar*
Muhammad Abid*
Alfalah Insurance
Murid Abbad*
Azeem Munir*
Muhammad Sajid Peer*
Farid Khan
Muhammad Kamal Hussain*
Muhammad Ather*
Robina Gul*

Ahmed Hayat*

Farid Khan
Muhammad Abbas Akram
Irfan Hashmi

Irfan Hashmi

Irfan Hashmi
Saleem Ahmed*
Yasir Khursheed*
Irfan J Hashmi
Imran Ahmed*
Muhammad Farhan*
M. Ashraf*
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Particulars of the assets Adg;‘:gﬂgt:# pr(s)gta:ds Mode of disposal Particulars of purchaser

(Rupees in ‘000)

Right-of-use asset - vehicl

Honda Civic 3,094 1,875 1,219 2,027 Insurance Claim Alfalah Insurance

Toyota Vitz 1,433 812 621 829 Group Policy Rafiq Gatta*

Honda City 2,715 1,506 1,209 3,165 Negotiation Muhammad Saghir

Mercedes Benz 7,495 2,717 4778 7,708 Insurance Claim Alfalah Insurance

Toyota Vitz 1,412 878 534 812 Group Policy Arsalan Zafar*

Honda Civic 3,008 1,576 1,432 3,311 Negotiation Qasim Khan

Suzuki Cultus 1,314 479 835 1,250 Group Policy Nasir Mahmood*
20,471 9,843 10,628 19,102

Right-of-use asset - property 6,431 6,431 - - Negotiation Lease arrangement terminated

2020 60,141 44,838 15,303 33,765

2019 46,429 39,524 6,905 22,322

* These represent persons in employment of the Group.

5.3.1 These include disposal of operating assets having book value of Rs. Nil (2019: Rs. 0.5 million) to key
management personnel.

5.4  Capital work in progress NCICH 2020 | 2019 |

(Rupees in ‘000)

Advance to suppliers 45,233 29,581
6 INTANGIBLES ASSETS
Software 404,936 461,225
Membership card 250 250
Trading right entitlement certificates 10,999 10,999
Goodwill - -
License - -
Customer relationships - 2,109
Distribution channel 30,417 33,521
Value of inforce contracts 12,734 20,577
Pooling arrangements 11,304 11,304
6.1 470,640 539,985
6.1 Movement of intangible assets

3 Customer relationships Dcha%lr‘lteilo" Value ofnforce contracts | , 20N
sofware | shi 1. - = T ol
In| g
j | |

(Rupees in ‘000)

As at January 1, 2019

Cost 42358 20 14999 96,012 1808 55731 14960 10338 5215 65206 31849 34776 11,304 384,956
Accumulated amortisation

/impairment (22,039) - (40000 (%6012 (1808) (55731) (11,3200  (7.821)  (5275) (28671)  (16,735) (21,470) - (270,882)
Net book value 20,319 250 10,999 - - - 3,640 2517 - 365 15114 13306 11,304 114,074
Year ended December 31, 2019
Opening net book value 20,319 20 10,999 - - - 3,640 2517 - 3625 15114 13306 1,304 114,074
Additions 521,822 - - - - - - - - - - - - 521822
Amortisation (78,111) - - - - - (239)  (1,654) - (3104) (3539 (4304 - (93,106)
Disposals (2.805) - - - - - - - - - - - - (2805)
Net book value 461,205 250 10,999 - - - 1,246 863 - B52 1575 9002 11,304 539,985
As at December 31, 2019
Cost 564,180 250 1499 96,012 1808 55731 1490 10338 5215 65296 31849 34776 11,304 906,778
Accumulated amortisation

[impairment (102,955) - (40000 (96012  (1808) (55731)  (13714) (9475  (5275)  (31,775)  (20274) (25774) - (366,793)
Net book value as

at December 31,2019 461,225 250 10,999 - - - 1,246 863 - 3B52 1575 9002 11,304 539,985
Year ended December 31, 2020
Opening net book value 461,205 20 1099 - - - 1,246 863 - 33521 1575 9002 11,304 539,985
Additions 30,331 - - - - - - - - - - - - 30331
Amortisation (86,620) - - (1,246) (863) - (3104) (3539 (4304 - (99,676)
Net book value 404,936 250 10,999 - - - 30417 8,036 4698 11,304 470,640
As at December 31, 2020
Cost 594,511 20 14999 96,012 1808 55731 14960 10338 5215 65296 31849 34776 11,304 937,109
Accumulated amortisation

[impairment (189,575) - (40000 (96,012  (1808) (55731)  (14960) (10338)  (5.275) (34879  (23813) (30,078) - (466,469)
Net hook valug 4049200994803 4698304470640
“Amortisation rate per annum

2019and 2020 20% - 33% - - - 33% 20% 16% 16% 50% 5% 1% 11%-12.5% Indefinite

6.1.1  This represents membership card of Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited as the IGI Finex Securities
Limited is a member of Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited.
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6.1.2

6.1.3

6.2

7.1

This represent Trading Right Entitlement Certificate (TREC) of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited pursuant
to the promulgation of Stock Exchanges (Corporation, Demutualization and Integration) Act, 2012.

During the year the management carried out impairment testing of intangible assets recognised on business
combination under the requirements of IAS 36 ‘ Impairment of assets’. The management has determined
the recoverable amounts for comparison with the carrying values of each intangible asset. Based on the
assessment carried out by the management, no impairment has been recognised during the year.

The cost and accumulated amortisation of fully amortised intangibles still in use amounts to Rs.

184.124 million (2019: Rs. 158.826 million).

INVESTMENTS Note
The investments comprise of the following:
Investments in associates 71
Investment in joint venture 7.2
Fair value through profit or loss
- Mutual funds 7.3
- Government securities 7.4
- Debt securities 7.5
Fair value through other comprehensive income
- Quoted equity securities 7.6
- Unquoted equity securities 7.7
Held to maturity
- Government securities 7.8
- Term deposit receipts 7.9
Available for sale
- Equity securities 7.10
- Mutual funds 7.1
- Government securities 712
- Debt securities 713
Less: current maturity of investments 714
Investments in associates
- Quoted
Packages Limited
26,707,201 (2019: 26,707,201) fully paid ordinary

shares of Rs. 10 each 711
Equity held 29.88% (2019: 29.88%)
Market value at December 31, 2020:

Rs. 596.92 per share (2019: Rs. 398.74 per share)
- Unquoted
Dane Foods Limited
2,643,161 (2019: 2,643,161) fully paid ordinary
shares of Rs. 10 each

Equity held 30.62% (2019: 30.62%)
Cost
Provision for diminution in value of investment
Packages Real Estate (Private) Limited
100,000,000 (2019: 100,000,000) fully paid ordinary
shares of Rs. 10 each 713

Equity held 24.84% (2019: 24.84%) having
break-up value of
Rs 8.24 per share (2019: Rs 8.93 per share)

2020 ] 2019 |
(Rupees in ‘000)
15,470,479 || 15,969,256

29,192 -
497,299 497,621
2,256,421 1,837,655
150,000 194,025
2,903,720 2,529,301
33,679,732 |||/38,196,583
194,759 204,611
33,874,491 || 38,401,194
- 322,219
1,101,600 1,852,607
1,101,600 2,174,826
43,143 86,130
4,007,910 3,027,759
13,640,253 ||||12,247,588
225,000 457,354
17,916,306 || 15,818,831
71,295,788 74,893,408
(11,842,570)  (6,795,657)
59,453,218 68,097,751
14,718,717 15,133,399
26,432 26,432
(26,432) (26,432)
751,762 835,857
15,470,479 15,969,256
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711

71.2

71.4

7.1.5

7.2

7.21

7.2.2

Packages Limited is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on the Pakistan
Stock Exchange. It operates as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of paper, paperboard, packaging materials and tissue products.

Investments in unquoted associates do not include any goodwill as the investments were made when
these associates were incorporated.

Packages Real Estate (Private) Limited is a private limited company incorporated in Pakistan. Itis principally
engaged in carrying on the business of all types of construction activities and development of real estate.

The summarised financial information and other details of Packages Limited and Packages Real
Estate (Private) Limited, based on the audited financial statements, for the year ended December 31,
2020 are as follows:

Country of
incorporation Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit / (Loss)

(Rupees in ‘000)

Packages Limited Pakistan 101,841,718 44,103,241 64,981,483 4,496,495
Packages Real Estate -
(Private) Limited Pakistan 12,773,266 9,517,434 2,660,291 (308,295)

Country of
incorporation Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit / (Loss)

(Rupees in ‘000)

Packages Limited Pakistan 104,911,077 45,010,369 60,905,852 278,061
Packages Real Estate -

(Private) Limited Pakistan 12,018,713 8,425,242 3,479,557 41,735
Movement in associates _Mpk— -

ackages ackages
e Pimier RedFidle  Tow  PEkigee Piefopee el o
(Rupees in ‘000)

Balance as at January 1 15,133,399 - 835857 15,969,256 16,853,624 - 825488 17,679,112
Dividend income (320,486) - (7500 (327986)  (400,608) - - (400608)
Share of profit/ (loss) - net 1414013 - (76,595 1337418 94,749 - 10,369 105,118
Share of other comprehensive loss (1,508,209) - - (1,508209)  (1,414,366) - - (1414,366)
Balance as at December 1 14,718,717 - 751,762 15470479 15,133,399 - 835,857 15,969,256

Investment in joint venture Note [EZZE BEZEEEE

(Rupees in ‘000)

- Unquoted
S.C Johnson & Son of Pakistan (Private) Limited
8,375,670 (2019: Nil) fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 29,192 -
Equity held 45% (2019: Nil) having breakup value of Rs. 3.485
per share (2019: Nil) 29,192 -

S.C. Johnson & Son of Pakistan (Private) Limited (Joint Venture) was incorporated in Pakistan as a
private limited company on July 10, 1999 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the
Companies Act, 2017). The principal activities of the Company include manufacturing and marketing
of consumer household products.

It was a wholly owned subsidiary of S.C. Johnson Netherlands Il Cooperatief U.A. During the year
ended December 31, 2019, IGI Investments entered into a Joint Venture agreement (the Agreement)
with S.C. Johnson Netherlands Il Cooperatief U.A. whereby IGI Investments agreed to subscribe 45% of
the shares on completion of certain conditions as specified in the Agreement. IGI Investments acquired
45% of the shareholding in S.C. Johnson & Son of Pakistan (Private) Limited on October 3, 2020.

The summarised financial information and other details of S.C Johnson & Son of Pakistan (Private) Limited,
based on the reviewed financial statements, for the period ended December 31, 2020 are as follows:

Country of
incorporation Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit / (Loss)

S.C Johnson & Son (Rupees in ‘000)
of Pakistan (Private)
Limited Pakistan 746,439 681,569 258,228 (121,256)
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7.2.3 Movement in joint venture Note m
(Rupees in ‘000)
Balance as at January 1 -

Acquisition during the year 83,757 -

Dividend income - -

Share of profit - net (54,565) -

Share of other comprehensive loss = -

Balance as at December 31 29,192 -
7.3 Mutual funds - fair value through profit or loss

20 ] 21 |
Number Carrying  (Impairment/ Unrealised Market Number Carrying  (Impairment/ Unrealised Market

of units value provision)  gain/ (loss) value of units value provision)  gain/ (loss) value
Alfalah GHP Stock Fund 918,254 111,661 - (461) 111200 355961 37,074 - 4581 41,661
HBL Stock Fund - - - - 365,971 39,000 - - 39,000
MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund 1,693,688 160,000 - 6,000 166000 653,910 60,003 - @) 60,000
NBP Stock Fund - - - - - 5611085 74,8% - 4,546 79441
UBL Stock Advantage Fund - - . - - 289417 20,000 - - 20,000
Alfalah GHP Money Market Fund - - . - - 2623781 260,000 . (2,525) 2574715
MCB Pakistan Sovereign Fund 293,068 15,855 - 161 16,016 - - - - -
Faysal Money Market Fund 50 5 - - 5
NBP Financial Sector Income Fund 11,823,577 124,481 - 25 124,716
UBL Income Opportunity Fund 699,780 78,745 - 554 79,299
Alfalah GHP Islamic
Income B Growth Units 116 12 - - 12 97 10 1 kil
A-Ameen Islamic Cash Fund "7 12 - - 12 101 10 1 1
HBL Islamic Money Market Fund 116 12 - - 12 104 10 1 il
MCB Al- Hamra Islamic Fund 13 12 - - 12 a7 10 1 1
NBP Riba Free Savings Fund %1 10 - - 10 - - -
Faysal Islamic Saving Growth Fund 48 5 - - 5 - - - - -
15,429,888 490,810 - 6,489 497,299 9,900,590 491,012 - 6,609 497,621

7.4 Government securities - fair value through profit or loss

Maturity | Effective yield Profit | 2020 § 2019 |
year o per anhum payment (Rupees in '000)

Market Treasury Bills 2020 10.30% On maturity - 35,411
Market Treasury Bills 2020 13.07% On maturity - 53,378
Market Treasury Bills 2020 10.30% On maturity - 33,467
Market Treasury Bills 2021 13.12% On maturity 75,592 -
Market Treasury Bills 2021 13.29% On maturity 40,914 -
Market Treasury Bills 2021 9.57% On maturity 342,949 -
Market Treasury Bills 2021 10.36% On maturity 62,310 -
Market Treasury Bills 2021 7.14% On maturity 5,735 -
Market Treasury Bills 2021 6.45% On maturity 110,603 -
Market Treasury Bills 2021 7.15% On maturity 123,993 -
Market Treasury Bills 2021 7.14% On maturity 247,987 -
Market Treasury Bills 2021 7.11% On maturity 10,415 -
Market Treasury Bills 2021 7.11% On maturity 408,447 -
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2021 12.00% Semi-annual - 32,473
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2021 10.34% Semi-annual - 60,307
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2023 12.66% Semi-annual - 82,943
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2023 13.71% Semi-annual - 67,726
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2023 13.45% Semi-annual - 311,540
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2023 13.75% Semi-annual - 94,816
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2023 13.80% Semi-annual - 189,633
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2023 13.77% Semi-annual - 67,726
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2022 9.65% Semi-annual - 46,841
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2024 12.38% Semi-annual - 47,298
Pakistan Investment Bonds (floaters) 2028 7.86% Semi-annual 123,628 125,900
Pakistan Investment Bonds (floaters) 2029 7.78% Semi-annual 125,225 -
Pakistan Investment Bonds (floaters) 2028 7.61% Semi-annual 578,623 588,196

2,256,421 1,837,655

*These include Pakistan Investment Bonds which are placed as statutory deposit with the State Bank of Pakistan in
accordance with the requirements of Clause (a) of sub-section 2 of section 29 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, having
market value of Rs. 224.470 million.
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7.5 Debt securities- fair value through profit or loss
220 ] 20 |
Numberof ~ Maturi Profit Carryin Numberof ~ Maturity Profit Carryin,
certificates yearty Couponrate  avment  amou certificates year  Couponrate oy ment it
Unlisted - Term finance certificate
Habib Bank Limited 500000  Perpetual 3months Kibor Quarterly 50,000 500,000 Perpetual 3months Kibor Quarterly 50,000
Bank Affalah Limited 1,000,000  Perpetual Higherof 3year  Quarterly 100,000 - - - -
PKRV' plus 0.75%
or%
Unlisted - Commercial paper
Hub Power Company Limited 1,500,000 2020 6 months Kibor Quarterly 144,025
plus 1.5%
1,500,000 150,000 2,000,000 194,025
7.6 Quoted equity securities- fair value through other comprehensive income
Number of shares Percglt'ﬁg?dof Unrealised
; . equity hel Carryin gain/ (loss) on
Company’s name As at January b':%r:shfsssegeg Sold during As ? Market value
December 31, amount remea-
1,2020 during the year the year 2020 2019 2020 sure-ment
(Rupees in ‘000)
Tri-Pack Films Limited (related party) 3,750,417 3750417 9.67% 9.67% 401,595 610,418 208,823
Siemens Pakistan Engineering
Company Limited 70,031 - - 70031 0.85% 0.85% 64,081 38,180 (25,901)
Nestle Pakistan Limited 4,419,666 4419666  9.75% 9.75% 39,557,332 29,457,119 (10,100,213)
Sanofi Aventis Pakistan Limited 1,841,739 1,841,739 19.10% 19.10% 1,381,304 1,394,823 13,519
International Industries Limited 504,472 504472 0.38% 0.38% 70,649 89,090 18,441
Mitchell's Fruit Farms Limited 292,738 292,738 372% 3.72% 63,553 106,000 42447
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited 1,602,953 1,602,953  0.20% 0.20% 21,752 23,756 2,004
Systems Limited 4,606,836 4606836  3.75% 3.75% 460,139 1,931,324 1,471,185
Agritech Limited 1,352,992 1,352,992 0.34% 0.34% 17,156 6,914 (10,242)
ZIL Limited 199,169 199,169  3.25% 3.25% 14,930 22,108 7178
Total as at December 31, 2020 42,052,491 33,679,732 (8,372,759)
Total as at December 31, 2019 42,055,073 38,196,583 (3,858,490)
7.7 Unquoted equity securities- fair value through other comprehensive income
Number of shares
] Purchased / ; As at Percentage of Carryin,
Company’s name As ?t %anuary bonusissued ~ Soldduring po oo LYl equity hgeld am"o!{m? Market value
) during the year S 2020
(Rupees in ‘000)
Coca Cola Beverages Pakistan Limited 12,433,934 12,433,934 0.46% 119,940 174,075
LSE Financial Services Limited 843,975 - 843,975 0.66% 1,732 1,732
Kissan Fruit Growers (Private) Limited 44 - - 44 4.87% 4 4
Punjab Fruit Growers (Private) Limited 32 - - 32 4.83% 3 3
Haider Fruit Growers (Private) Limited 1,705 - - 1,705 4.87% 16 16
Petroleum Development Pakistan Limited 350 - - 350 - 1 1
National Steel of Pakistan Limited 500 - - 500 - 1 1
DHA Cogen Limited 1,900,000 1,900,000 3.35% - -
Techlogix International Limited * 1,422,870 1,422,870 1.85% 3,504 3,504
Visionet Systems Inc. ** 464,827 464,827 4.55% 5423 5423
Total as at December 31, 2020 140,624 194,759
Total as at December 31, 2019 138,042 204,611
* Techlogix International Limited is a company registered in Bermuda. This investment has been made since 2005. Return on investment is in the form of
dividend received as reflected in these consolidated financial statements. Based on the information available there are no material litigations against the
investee company in foreign jurisdictions.
** Visionet Systems Inc. is located in New Jersey, USA. This investment has been made since 2013 . Return on investment is in the form of dividend
received. The investee company is subject to various claims and legal proceedings covering a wide range of matters that arise in the ordinary course of
its business activities. The management of investee company believes that any liability that may ultimately result from the resolution of these matters will
not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition or results of operations of the investee company.
7.8 Government securities - held to maturity

m Effective yield Profit | 2020 J 2019 |
year o per anhum payment (Rupees in ‘000)

Pakistan Investment Bonds 2020 13.98% Semi-annual - 24,679
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2021 13.08% Semi-annual - 18,094
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2022 11.99% Semi-annual - 63,837
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2022 11.25% Semi-annual - 1,018
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2022 12.76% Semi-annual - 1,102
Pakistan Investment Bonds 2021 11.92% Semi-annual - 213,489

- 322,219
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7.9

7.91

7.10

Investments in term deposits receipts - held to maturity

Deposits maturing within 12 months

(Rupees in ‘000)

1,101,600

1,852,607

These represent term deposits with various banks that carry mark-up at rates ranging from 6.00% to
6.75% (2019: 8.25% to 13.5%) per annum. These term deposits will mature by March 2021.

Equity securities - available for sale

Quoted securities

Abbott Laboratories (Pakistan) Limited
Adamjee Insurance Company Limited
Allied Bank Limited

Amreli Steels Limited

Attock Cement Pakistan Limited
Attock Petroleum Limited

Attock Refinery Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

Bank Al-Habib Limited

Bank of Punjab

National Bank of Pakistan

Pakistan National Shipping Corporation
Dynea Pakistan Limited

Highnoon Laboratories

ICI Pakistan Limited

Interloop Limited

Fauji Cement Limited

D.G Khan Cement Limited

Engro Corporation Limited

Engro Fertilizers Limited

Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited
Fauiji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited
Fauji Fertilizer Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

Glaxosmithkline (Pakistan) Limited
Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited
Habib Bank Limited

Honda Atlas Cars Limited

Hub Power Company Limited
International Steels Limited
K-Electric Limited

Kohat Cement Limited

Kohinoor Textile Mills Limited

Kot Addu Power Company Limited
Lucky Cement Limited

Maple Leaf Cement Limited

Mari Petroleum Limited

Balance carried forward

Market value Market value
(Rupees in ‘000)

264 156
197 1,179
785 2,304
241 433
18 12
395 178

- 1
1,897 5,130
- 4,227

- 1,241

107 1,342

= 517

- 371

- 806

190 1,080
739 310
325 78
516 -
1,930 4,454
443 2,533
1,378 2,126
1,671 2
- 2,182

315 5

- 289

537 1,233
2,884 4,376
427 285
2,515 6,560
65 243
188 428
1,513 619
486 5

- 236
2,889 3,749
555 806
2,447 4,470
25,917 53,976
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Market value Market value
(Rupees in ‘000)

Balance brought forward 25,917 53,976
MCB Bank Limited 871 2,090
Meezan Bank Limited - 447
Millat Tractors Limited 328 211
Mughal Steels Mills Limited 757 881
Nishat Chunian Limited 652 213
Nishat Mills Limited 1,160 1,485
Oil and Gas Development Company Limited 1,920 5,394
Pak Suzuki Motors Limited 363 -
Pakistan Qilfields Limited 992 2,926
Pakistan Petroleum Limited 1,789 6,048
Pakistan State Oil Limited 1,517 2,352
Saif Power Limited - 272
The Searle Company Limited - 1,246
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited 280 2,270
Synthetic Products Enterprise Limited 4 4
Tariq Glass Industries Limited 571 535
Thal Limited - 981
United Bank Limited 1,573 4,047
Systems Limited 1,782 752
Descon Chemicals Limited 235 -
Bank Al Habib Limited 1,322 -
Agha Steels Industries Limited 493 -
Glaxosmithkline (Pakistan) Limited 364 -
The Searle Limited 253 -

43,143 86,130

7.1 Mutual funds - available for sale m m

Net asset value Net asset value
(Rupees in ‘000)

Al Ameen Islamic Aggressive Income Fund 32,942 31,579
Al Ameen Islamic Cash Fund 14,894 26,194
Al Ameen Shariah Stock Fund 205,357 179,715
Alfalah GHP Alpha Fund 19,901 19,127
Alfalah GHP Islamic Income Fund 102,467 43,017
Alfalah GHP Islamic Stock Fund 123,962 151,212
Alfalah GHP Money Market Fund 514,478 340,124
Alfalah GHP Stock Fund 231,833 86,456
Atlas Islamic Income Fund 16,356 -
Atlas Islamic Stock Fund 143,587 131,942
Atlas Stock Market Fund 111,439 121,758
HBL Islamic Income Fund 14,102 -
HBL Islamic Stock Fund 70,401 181,662
HBL Stock Fund 21,078 182,968
HBL Government Securities Fund - 1,390
MCB Islamic Income Fund 143,809 52,241
MCB Pakistan Income Fund 2,550 2,342
MCB Pakistan Islamic Stock Fund 295,690 213,880
MCB Pakistan Stock Market Fund 372,616 325,170
Meezan Islamic Fund 20,563 275
Meezan Cash Fund 9,101 15,262
Meezan Islamic Income Fund 66,600 46,989
Meezan Islamic Stock Fund - 56,377
NAFA Islamic Stock Fund - 177,519
NAFA Money Market Fund - 132
NAFA Stock Fund - 171,013
UBL Money Market Fund 6,398 7,393
UBL Stock Advantage Fund 480,905 462,022
Balance carried forward 3,021,029 3,027,759
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Net asset value Net asset value

(Rupees in ‘000)

Balance brought forward 3,021,029 3,027,759
Alfalah GHP Income Fund 41,008 -
ABL Stock Fund 22,925 -
ABL Islamic Stock Fund 166,576 -
ABL Islamic Income Fund 11,406 -
Meezan Sovereign Fund 8,106 -
NBP Islamic Income Fund 6,109 -
HBL Income Fund 976 -
Atlas Income Fund 13,962 -
Faysal Stock Fund 22,882 -
Faysal Islamic Stock Fund 32,070 -
NBP Islamic Stock Fund 256,740 -
NBP Stock Fund 401,418 -
NBP Savings Fund 347 -
NBP Financial Sector Income Fund 2,095 -
UBL Income Opportunity Fund 261 -
4,007,910 3,027,759

7.12  Government Securities - available for sale
Pakistan Investment Bonds 10 years 2020 12.00% Semi-annual - 496,433
Pakistan Investment Bonds 5 years 2020 9.25% Semi-annual - 861,568
Pakistan Investment Bonds 10 years 2024 12.00% Semi-annual 40,134 43912
Pakistan Investment Bonds 5 years 2024 9.50% Semi-annual - 1,276,855
Pakistan Investment Bonds 4 years 2021 7.25% Semi-annual - 253,748
Pakistan Investment Bonds 5 years 2021 7.75% Semi-annual 151,226 142,048
Pakistan Investment Bonds 5 years 2023 8.00% Semi-annual 597 2,418,596
Pakistan Investment Bonds (floaters)* 10 years 2028 1.70% Semi-annual 1,999,396 800,883
Pakistan Investment Bonds (floaters)* 10 years 2028 7.98% Semi-annual 296,700 629,500
Pakistan Investment Bonds (floaters)* 10 years 2028 7.67% Semi-annual 162,295 2,312,310
Pakistan Investment Bonds (floaters)* 10 years 2029 7.89% Semi-annual 124,994 -
2,775,342 9,235,853
Market Treasury Bills 3 months 2020 13.40% On maturity - 152,780
Market Treasury Bills 6 months 2020 13.41% On maturity - 471,200
Market Treasury Bills 1 year 2020 13.25% On maturity - 2,387,755
Market Treasury Bills 3 months 2021 7.10% On maturity 7,903,776 -
Market Treasury Bills 6 months 2021 7.20% On maturity 517,699 -
Market Treasury Bills 6 months 2021 7.10% On maturity 83,993 -
Market Treasury Bills 1 year 2021 7.40% On maturity 117,346 -
Market Treasury Bills 1 year 2021 13.10% On maturity 467,783 -
Market Treasury Bills 1 year 2021 6.40% On maturity 49,063 -
Market Treasury Bills 1 year 2021 6.90% On maturity 96,525 -
Market Treasury Bills 1 year 2021 6.50% On maturity 137,058 -
Market Treasury Bills 1 year 2021 9.50% On maturity 44,156 -
Market Treasury Bills 1 year 2021 7.60% On maturity 52,702 -
Market Treasury Bills 1 year 2021 7.20% On maturity 922,242 -
Market Treasury Bills 1 year 2021 7.10% On maturity 26,209 -
Market Treasury Bills 1 year 2021 7.30% On maturity 171,192 -
10,589,744 3,011,735
GOP ljara Sukuk 5 years 2025 6.63% Semi-annual | 275,167 || -
275,167 -
13,640,253 12,247,588

*These represent Pakistan Investment Bonds which are placed as statutory deposit with the State Bank of Pakistan in accordance
with the requirements of Clause (a) of sub-section 2 of section 29 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, having market value of Rs.
193 million (2019: Rs. 192.34 million).
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713 Debt securities - available for sale

Numberof ~ Maturity Profit Market Numberof ~ Maturity
certificates year  Couponrate  oumont value  certificates year  Couponrate
(Rupees in ‘000)
Unlisted Term Finance Certificates

Profit Market
payment value

(Rupees in ‘000)

Bank Alfalah Limited 10,000 | Syears 3 months Kibor 3 months Kibor
plus 1.50% Semi annual 50,000 10000 | 5years plus 1.50% Semi annual 50,000
Soneri Bank Limited 10000 | Syears 6 months Kibor 6 months Kibor
plus 2% Semi annual 50,000 10,000 5years plus 2% Semi annual 50,000
UBL Bank Limited 15000 | Syears 3months Kibor 3months Kibor
plus 1.55% Quarterly 75,000 15,000 5years plus 1.55% Quarterly 75,000
Habib Bank Limited 10000 | Syears 3months Kibor 3months Kibor
plus 1.60% Semi annual 50,000 10,000 5years plus 1.60% Semi annual 50,000
45,000 225,000 45,000 225,000
Unlisted Commercial Paper
Hub Power Company Limited - - - - 2,500,000 1 year 15.40% 232,354
45,000 225,000 2,545,000 457,354
7.14  Current maturity of investments Note [IEZZD BEZEEE
(Rupees in ‘000)
Government securities 10,740,970 4,516,671
Debt securities - 426,379
Term deposit receipts 7.9 1,101,600 1,852,607
11,842,570 6,795,657
8 INSURANCE / TAKAFUL / REINSURANCE / RETAKAFUL RECEIVABLES

O 2020 | 2019 |

Amount due from policyholder - unsecured

(Rupees in ‘000)

- Considered good 984,401 970,448
- Considered doubtful 143,047 143,399
8.1 1,127,448 1,113,847
Provision for doubtful receivables 8.2 (143,047) (143,399)
984,401 970,448

Amount due from reinsurer / retakaful - unsecured
- Considered good 1,096,573 914,842
- Considered doubtful 41,303 41,423
1,137,876 956,265
Provision for doubtful receivables 8.3 (41,303) (41,423)
1,096,573 914,842
Total 2,080,974 1,885,290

8.1 The aggregate amount due from directors, chief executive and executives of the Group amounts to

Rs. Nil (2019: Rs 0.171 million).

8.2 Provision for doubtful receivables - insurance contract holders
(Rupees in ‘000)
Balance as at January 1 143,399 120,338
Provision made during the year 15,682 26,298
Written off during the year (16,034) (3,237)
Balance as at December 31 143,047 143,399
8.3 Provision for doubtful receivables - other insurer / reinsurer
Balance as at January 1 41,423 41,423
Written off during the year (120) -
Balance as at December 31 41,303 41,423
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9

9.1

9.2

10

101

10.2

10.2.1

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS, LOANS, ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

O 2020 | 2019 |

(Rupees in ‘000)

Advances
Advances - unsecured considered good 18,368 13,108
Advances / loans to agents - unsecured considered good 278 278
Advances to employees against expenses - unsecured

considered good - executives 921 1,659

Other receivables

Sales tax recoverable 77,733 57,389
Salvage recoverable 108,104 59,885
Receivable against claim administration services - unsecured

considered good- net 9.1 104,427 186,758
Net investment in finance lease - secured considered good 9.2 207,031 212,955
Receivable from clients against purchase of marketable

securities and commaodity contracts - secured considered good 32,085 122,997
Qard-e-hasan 100,000 60,000
Mudarib fee 6,539 5,110
Experience refund receivable - unsecured considered good 66,356 32,165

Deposits and prepayments

Security deposits and prepayments 246,746 254,456
Prepaid reinsurance premium ceded 1,001,740 972,374
Exposure deposit with National Clearing Company of Pakistan

Limited / Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited 279,901 126,901
Others 213,019 138,287

2,463,248 2,244,322

This includes provision against receivable from claim administration services amounting to Rs. 10 million.

This balance represents outstanding amount of old lease portfolio acquired by the Holding Company
as part of amalgamation of Ex. IGI Investment Bank Limited w.e.f December 31, 2016 that has been
retained by the Holding Company as part of scheme of arrangement and carried at fair value at the
time of acquisition.

This includes fair value of collaterals amountring to Rs. 14.590 million (2019: Rs. 18.990 million) and
residual values relating to net investment in finance lease.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note [EZZZN EZEED
(Rupees in ‘000)
Cash and other equivalents 10.1 1,206 1,896
Current and other accounts 10.2 1,258,236 658,393
1,259,442 660,289

Cash and other equivalents

Cash in hand 1,206 1,896

Current and other accounts

Current accounts 53,065 50,395
Savings accounts 10.21 1,205,171 607,998
1,258,236 658,393

The balances in savings accounts carry mark-up ranging between 3.00% to 12.75% (2019: 5.00% to
12.75%) per annum.
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10.3  Cash and cash equivalent Note [EZZZ
(Rupees in ‘000)

Cash and bank balances 10 1,259,442 660,289
Term deposit receipts

(having original maturity of 3 months or less) 7.9 1,101,600 1,852,607
Short term loans 20 (2,800,696) (2,614,278)

(439,654)  (101,382)

1" NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE

- Unquoted equity securities 111 9,110 9,110
Numr of shares gf“"gﬂ:? Market value l_JnﬁIaIise)d
) Purchased ] As at as at gain/ (loss) on
Company’s name AsatJanuary  ponus issued Soldduring  pecember 31, Decos 31 December3l, ~ remea-
' duringthe year  theyear 2020 2020 2020 sure-ment

(Rupees in ‘000)
Central Depository Company
of Pakistan (note 11.1) 1,299,993 325,002 - 1,624,995 9,110 9,110

Total as at December 31, 2020 9,110 9,110

1.1 As per Section 8 of the Central Depositories (Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2016, 1GI
Investments is not eligible to hold shares of Central Depository Company (CDC) transferred from
Holding Company (formerly IGI Insurance Limited) under the sanctioned scheme of arrangement.

Accordingly, under the instruction of Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), IGI
Investments intends to dispose or transfer such shares.

12 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION NG 2020 | 2019 |

(Rupees in ‘000)

Funded gratuity schemes 12.1.3 42,133 43,471
Un-funded gratuity scheme 12.2.3 15,712 -
57,845 43,471

121 Funded gratuity schemes
12.1.1 Salient features

The Group offers separate approved gratuity funds for eligible employees of IGI General and IGl Life.
Annual contributions are made to the funds on the basis of actuarial recommendations. The gratuity
schemes are governed under the Trust Act, 1882, Trust Deed and Rules of Fund, Companies Act,
2017, the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and the Income Tax Rules, 2002.

The Group faces the following risks on account of these gratuity schemes:

Final salary risks
The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what was assumed. Since
the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount would also increase proportionately.

Asset volatility
Most assets are invested in risk free investments. However, investments in shares, are subject to
adverse fluctuation as a result of change in market price.

Discount rate fluctuation

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate with reference to corporate bond yields. A
decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by
an increase in the value of the current plan’s bond holdings.
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12.1.2

12.1.3

12.1.4

Investment risks
The risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficient to meet the liabilities. The risk is
mitigated by closely monitoring the performance of investments.

Mortality risks
The risk that the actual mortality experience is different. The effect depends on the beneficiaries’
service / age distribution and the benefit.

Longevity risks
The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured
at the plan level over the entire retiree population.

Withdrawal risks
The risk of higher or lower withdrawal experience than assumed. The final effect could go either way
depending on the beneficiaries’ service / age distribution and the benefit.

Valuation results
Actuarial valuations are carried out every year and the latest valuations were carried out as at
December 31, 2020. The information provided in notes 12.1.3 to 12.1.14 has been obtained from the
actuarial valuations carried out as at December 31, 2020. The following significant assumptions have
been used for valuation of these schemes:
202  § 2019
IGI General IGI Life IGI General IGI Life
(Per annum)
a) Expected rate of increase in salary level 9.75% 10.25% 11.25% 13.75%
b) Discount rate 10.25% 10.25% 11.75% 11.75%
c) Expected return on plan assets 10.25% 9.00% 11.25% 9.00%
d) Normal retirement age 58 years 65 years 58 years 65 years
e) Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are based on actuarial recommendations and
published statistics.
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position:
O 2020 | 2019 |
(Rupees in ‘000)
Present value of defined benefit obligation 12.1.5 186,144 158,845
Less: fair value of plan assets 12.1.5 (144,011) (115,374)
Payable to defined benefit plans 42,133 43,471
Movement in liability during the year
Obligation at the beginning of the year 43,471 57,466
Charge to the consolidated statement of profit or loss 29,330 32,506
Other comprehensive gain (757) (15,001)
Contribution to the fund during the year (29,911) (31,500)
Obligation at the end of the year 42,133 43,471
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12.1.5 Movement in defined benefit obligation

As at January 1
Current service cost
Interest expense / (income)

Remeasurements:
- Gain from change in financial assumptions
- Loss from change in experience adjustments

Contributions during the year
Benefit payments
As at December 31

As at January 1
Current service cost
Interest expense / (income)

Remeasurements:

- Loss from change in demographic assumptions
- Gain from change in financial assumptions

- Loss on actual salary increase

Contributions during the year
Benefit payments
As at December 31

Present value

Fair value of

12.1.6 Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss:

Current service cost
Interest cost
Expense for the year

12.1.7 Actual return on plan assets

Expected return on assets
Actuarial loss

12.1.8 Analysis of present value of defined benefit obligation

Split by vested / non-vested
(i) Vested benefits
(i) Non-vested benefits
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of obligation plan assets Total
(Rupees in ‘000)

158,845 (115,374) 43,471
25,138 - 25,138
19,538 (15,346) 4,192

203,521 (130,720) 72,801
(4,025) - (4,025)

1,423 1,845 3,268
(2,602) 1,845 (757)
(3,136) (26,775) (29,911)

(11,639) 11,639 -

186,144 (144,011) 42,133

2019 ]
P t val Fair val f
of obligation plan assets Total
(Rupees in ‘000)

173,146 (115,680) 57,466
25,627 - 25,627
21,424 (14,545) 6,879

220,197 (130,225) 89,972
(8,015) - (8,015)
(7,321) 335 (6,986)

(15,336) 335 (15,001)
(21,011) 10,700 (10,311)

(25,005) 3,816 (21,189)

158,845 (115,374) 43,471

OO 2020 | 2019 |

(Rupees in ‘000)
25,138 25,627
4,192 6,879
29,330 32,506
15,346 14,545
(1,845) (335)
13,501 14,210
185,270 158,061
874 784
186,144 158,845
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12.1.9 Sensitivity analysis

Increase /(decrease) in Increase /(decrease) in
present value of defined present value of defined

Particulars aggsrr:lg;;igln benefit obligation aggsnmg;;igln benefit obligation
% (Rupees in ‘000) % (Rupees in ‘000)
Discount rate +1% -27.18% (50,597) +1% -24.84% (39,450)
-1% 32.61% 60,696 -1% 29.84% 47,394
Salary increase rate +1% 33.01% 61,453 +1% 30.23% 48,021
-1% -27.46% (51,106) -1% -25.12% (39,905)

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions
may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant
assumptions, same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating
the gratuity liability.

12.1.10 Plan assets comprise of the foIIowing

Percentage Percentage
composition composition
(Rupees in ‘000) Rupees in ‘000)

Equity investments 18,484 12.84% 16,545 14.34%
Cash and bank deposits 70,049 48.64% 27,617 23.94%
Government Securities 55,478 38.52% 71,212 61.72%
Fair value of plan assets 144,011 100.00% 115,374 100.00%

12.1.11 As per the actuarial recommendations, the expected return on plan assets was taken as 9% - 10.25%
(2019: 9% - 11.25%), which is representative of yields on long-term Govermment bonds. Due to the
increased volatility of share prices in recent months, there is no clear indication of return on equity. It
is therefore assumed that the yield on equity matches the return on debt.

12.1.12 Based on actuarial advice, the Group intends to charge an amount of Rs 30.4 million in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of approved gratuity fund for the year ending December 31, 2021.

12.1.13 Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted defined benefit obligation for the gratuity scheme is as follows:

At December 31, 2020 ERCEN 1-2 Years 2-5 Years 5 Years
(Rupees in ‘000)
Gratuity 13,288 10,237 42,890 1,851,007 1,917,422

12.1.14 5 year data on the deficit / (surplus) of the plan is as follows:

| 2020\ 2019 | 2018\ 2017\ 2016 |

(Rupees in ‘000)
Present value of defined benefit

obligation 186,144 158,845 173146 145854 124,690
Fair value of plan assets (144,011)  (115,374)  (115680)  (111,058) (91,883)
Deficit / (surplus) 42,133 43471 57,466 34,79 32,807

12.2  Unfunded gratuity scheme
12.2.1 Defined benefit plan - staff retirement gratuity scheme (unfunded)

The Group has introduced an unfunded gratuity scheme for its eligible employees of IGI Finex during the
year. Under the service rules, eligible employees are entitled to gratuity after five years of service and
thereafter the amount depends on the number of years of service completed by them. The latest actuarial
valuation of the scheme was carried out as at December 31, 2020 using the projected unit credit method.
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12.2.1.1The gratuity scheme exposes the Group to the following risks:

Mortality risks
This is the risk that the actual mortality experience is different. The effect depends on the beneficiaries’
service / age distribution and the benefit.

Final salary risks
This is the risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is higher than expectation. Since
the benefit is calculated on the basis of final salary, the benefit amount increases proportionately.

Withdrawal risks
This is the risk of higher or lower withdrawal experience than assumed. The final effect could go
either way depending on the beneficiaries’ service / age distribution and the benefit.

Discount rate fluctuation
The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields. A
decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan liabilities.

12.2.2 Principal actuarial assumptions

The following significant assumptions have been used for valuation of this scheme:

Rate per annum

Discount rate 9.75% -
Expected rate of increase in salary 8.75% -
Mortality rate SLIC 2001-05

12.2.3 Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position:

N 2020 | 2019 |

(Rupees in ‘000)

Present value of defined benefit obligation 12.2.5 15,712 -

12.2.4 Amount recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss:

Past service cost 13,609 -
Current service cost 2,103 -
Cost for the year 15,712 -

12.2.5 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Present value of defined benefit obligation - opening balance -
Past service cost 13,609 -
Current service cost 2,103 -
Interest cost - -

Remeasurement loss

- due to change in financial assumptions - -
- due to change in demographic assumptions - -
- due to change in experience adjustments - -

Benefits paid -
Present value of defined benefit obligation - closing balance 15,712 -
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12.2.6

12.2.7

12.2.8

12.2.9

13

Sensitivity analysis:

The impact of 1% change in the following variables on defined benefit obligation is as follows:

2020 |
Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in (Increase) / Decrease in present
assumption value of defined benefit obligation
% (Rupees in ‘000)
Discount rate +1% -2.55% (401)
-1% 2.72% 427
Long term salary increase +1% 3.18% 499
rate -1% -3.04% (477)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant
actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated
with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when
calculating the gratuity liability.

Based on the actuarial advice, the Group intends to charge an amount of approximately Rs. 3.297
million in the financial statements in respect of the unfunded gratuity scheme for the year ending
December 31, 2021.

The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation is 3 years.

Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted obligation

Less than| Between | Between (0)V/-14 Total
ayear | 1-2years | 2-5years | 5years
(Rupees in ‘000)
5,206 4,206 9,505 13,307 32,224

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN - PROVIDENT FUND

IGI General has set up a provident fund for its permanent employees and contributions were made by
it to the Trust in accordance with the requirements of Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017. The
total charge against provident fund for the year ended December 31, 2020 was Rs. 17.570 million.
The net assets based on latest available unaudited financial statements of Provident Fund as at June
30, 2020 are Rs. 129.194 million invested in different financial instruments categories as provided
in Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated therein. The carrying value of
the investments of the provident fund as at June 30, 2020 (unaudited) was Rs. 121.474 million. The
above investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the requirements of
Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

IGI Life has also set up a provident fund for its permanent employees and contributions were made
by IGI Life to the Trust in accordance with the requirements of Section 218 of the Companies Act,
2017. The total charge against provident fund for the year ended December 31, 2020 was Rs. 14.752
million. The net assets based on latest available unaudited financial statements of Provident Fund as
at December 31, 2020 are Rs. 60.907 million invested as provided in Section 218 of the Companies
Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for the purpose. The carrying value of investments of the provident
fund as at December 31, 2020 was Rs. 60.907 million. The above investments out of provident fund
have been made in accordance with the requirement of Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and
the rules formulated for this purpose.
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Break up of investments

G) General | Gl Life

(Rupees in ‘000) % of the size of the fund (Rupees in ‘000) % of the size of the fund

Government securities 93,860 77.26% - 0.00%
Listed securities 6,728 5.54% - 0.00%
Bank deposits 2,546 2.10% 59,361 97.46%
Mutual Funds 13,340 10.98% - 0.00%
Other assets - 0.00% 1,546 2.54%
Term finance certificates 5,000 4.12% - 0.00%
Total 121,474 100.00% 60,907 100.00%
14 STAFF STRENGTH
Holding Company Subsidiary Company
(Number of employees)
Number of employees
as at December 31 - - 471 458
Average number of employees
during the year - - 463 450
14.1  All the employees are on the payroll of the group companies and their cost is charged to the Holding
Company under the group shared services arrangement.
15 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL
2020 ] 2019 | 2020 ] 2019 |
(Number of shares) (Rupees in ‘000)
1,942,187 1,942,187 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
issued as fully paid in cash 19,422 19,422
139,351,330 139,351,330 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
issued as fully paid bonus shares 1,393,513 1,393,513
1,337,033 1,337,033 Issued for consideration
other than cash 13,370 13,370
142,630,550 142,630,550 1,426,305 1,426,305
16 NON CONTROLLING INTEREST Note EZZZN BEZEED
(Rupees in ‘000)
Opening balance 363,600 215,642
Subscription of right shares - 170,848
Loss for the year (16,566) (33,988)
Other comprehensive (loss) / income (1,430) 11,098
345,604 363,600
17 LONG TERM LOAN
Long term loan - secured 171 766,665 1,399,999
Less: current maturity of long term loans (466,665) (633,334)
300,000 766,665
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17.1  This includes long term loan amounting to Rs. 1,500 million obtained from Habib Bank Limited during
2017 for the purpose of injecting equity in IGl General. The loan carries markup rate at 6 month
KIBOR + 0.03% per annum (2019: 6 month KIBOR + 0.03% per annum). Principal repayment is to
be made in 10 equal semi-annual installments starting from the 6th month after the disbursement and
subsequently, every six months thereafter. During the current year, two installments of Rs. 150 million
each have been paid. The facility is secured against pledge of shares held by IGI Investments.

This also includes long term finance facility amounting to Rs. 166.665 million (2019: Rs. 499.999
million) from Allied Bank Limited used for the purpose of participation in equity investment in Packages
Real Estate (Private) Limited i.e. Packages Mall project. The loan carries markup rate at 6 month
KIBOR + 0.3% per annum. Principal repayment is to be made in 6 equal semi-annual installments
starting from the 30th month after the disbursement of loan and subsequently, every six months
thereafter. This facility is secured against pledge of shares held by the IGI Investments.

18 LEASE LIABILITIES AGAINST RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

(Rupees in ‘000)

Lease liabilities against right-of-assets

Lease Payments charges outstanding  Lease Payments charges outstanding
(Rupees in ‘000)
Not later than one year 108,577 35,714 72,863 89,333 19,862 69,471
Later than one year and
not later than five years 256,841 30,662 226,179 187,811 29,265 158,546
365,418 66,376 299,042 277,144 49,127 228,017
19 DEFERRED TAXATION - NET Note [IEZZ EZEED
(Rupees in ‘000)
Deferred tax (debits) / credits have arisen in respect of:
Accelerated tax depreciation and amortisation 31,520 30,530
Investment in associates and joint venture 1,336,177 1,395,522
Investment classified as available for sale (28,897) 15,233
Provision for doubtful receivables (103,394) (102,572)
Unused tax losses (14,474) (12,134)
Provision for leave encashment (663) (240)
Defined benefit plan (9,387) (5,615)
Lease liabilities against right-of-use assets (46,850) (51,481)
Right-of-use-assets 46,541 52,255
Deficit of statutory funds (262,208) (60,551)
948,365 1,260,947
20 SHORT TERM LOAN
Short term loan 20.1&20.2 2,800,696 2,614,278

- Motor vehicles 172,303 186,061
- Premises 126,739 41,956
299,042 228,017
Current portion 72,863 69,471
Non-current portion 226,179 158,546
299,042 228,017

Minimum Financial Principal Minimum Financial Principal
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This includes short term credit facilities available from various commercial banks under mark-up
arrangements amounting to Rs. 2,750 million (2019: Rs. 2,750 million). Unutilised amount as at
December 31, 2020 amounts to Rs. 1,107.003 million (2019: Rs. 1,256.885 million). The rates of
mark-up on these facilities range from 7.28% to 7.67% per annum (2019: 13.89% to 14.16% per
annum). These facilities are secured against pledge of shares held by IGI Investments.

This also includes short term credit facility available from Habib Bank Limited under a mark-up
arrangement amounting to Rs. 1,500 million. Unutilised amount as at December 31, 2020 amounts
to Rs. 342.301 million. The rate of mark-up on this facility is 1-month KIBOR + 0.25% per annum
(2019: 1-month KIBOR + 0.25% per annum). The facility is secured against pledge of shares held by
IGI Investments.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES NI 2020 | 2019 |

(Rupees in ‘000)

Federal excise duty 42,397 39,871
Federal insurance fee 2,887 5,554
Agent commission payable 408,155 276,461
Cash margin 258,329 286,116
Certificates of deposit 211 594 594
Deposit under lease contracts 21.2 192,441 193,965
Payable against sale of marketable securities 753,881 469,469
Payable against profit on unutilised funds 3,172 2,863
Accrued expenses 324,734 410,402
Payable to National Clearing Company

of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) 2,553 56,933
Qard-e-hasan - 32,000
Experience refund payable 31,149 98,106
Others 376,078 280,836

2,396,370 2,153,170

This represents certificates of deposit acquired by the Holding Company as part of the amalgamation of
IGI Investment Bank Limited (the Investment Bank) with and into IGI Insurance Limited as at December
31, 2016 that has been retained by the Holding Company as part of the Scheme of Arrangement.

The outstanding amount relates to two depositors with aggregate deposits amounting to Rs. 0.594
million (2019: Rs. 0.594 million) as they are untraceable. These certificates of deposits have already
matured and mark-up payable on these till maturity is Rs. 0.034 million (2019: Rs. 0.034 million).
In order to secure the amount for repayment of such deposits till the time parties are traced or lien
matter is settled, the Holding Company has placed this amount in a money market fund of NBP
fund management limited with authority to Central Depository Company (CDC) to operate the said
account on its behalf and to pay the depositors as and when traced in accordance with the directions
of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

This represents security deposits under lease contracts acquired as part of the amalgamation of
IGI Investment Bank Limited with and into IGI Insurance Limited (now IGI Holdings) with effect from
December 31, 2016 that has subsequently been retained by the Holding Company as part of the
Scheme of Arrangement, against which an equivalent amount of residual value is receivable.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Holding Company

The following contingencies were acquired by the Holding Company as part of amalgamation of
Ex. IGI Investment Bank Limited (the Investment Bank) with and into IGI Insurance Limited (now

IGI Holdings Limited) with effect from December 31, 2016 that have been retained by the Holding
Company as part of the scheme of arrangement.
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22.2

- A suit had been filed against the Investment Bank before the High Court of Sindh (the Court)
for declaration, damages for Rs. 81.570 million and recovery of Rs. 1 million along with interest,
mark-up in connection with the transaction of asset backed securitisation between the parties.
Issues had been framed for determination by the Court and the matter is at the stage of the
evidence of the parties. The management, based on the advice of its legal advisor is confident
that the matter will be decided in favour of the Holding Company.

- A suit had been filed against the Investment Bank impleaded as defendant No. 6 before the
High Court of Sindh for declaration, permanent injunctions, specific performance, settlement
and/or rendition of accounts and/or cancellation of cheques and damages of Rs.100 million. The
Investment Bank arranged lease finance for buses which were given on lease to a customer.
The Court granted leave to defend the suit to all the defendants and the matter is at the stage of
evidence of the parties. The management, based on the advice of its legal advisor is confident
that the matter will be decided in favour of the Holding Company.

- There are no material commitments as at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019.
IGl General

The following contingencies were transferred to and vested into IGl General Insurance Limited (IGl
General) with effect from close of business on January 31, 2017 that have been retained by IGI
General as part of the scheme of arrangement:

- |Gl General is defending a suit against it by M/s Nawaz Enterprises for recovery of Rs. 9.45 million
on account of insurance claim. The management, based on the advice of the legal counsel, is
confident that the outcome of the case is likely to be in favor of IGI General.

- |Gl General is defending a suit filed against it and the beneficiary on account of damages by the
Federation of Pakistan amounting to Rs. 4.929 million. The petition is pending for hearing before
Civil Court judge. The management, based on the advice of the legal counsel, is hopeful that the
outcome of the case is likely to be decided in favor of IGI General.

- An appeal was filed before the Commissioner - Appeals, the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) against
the order passed by the Assistant Commissioner, SRB under section 23(1) of the Sindh Sales
Tax on Services Act, 2011 for tax periods July 2011 to December 2012 in respect of re-insurance
accepted transactions which was decided against IGI General. The department alleged that |Gl
General provided re-insurance services to local insurance companies and demanded Sindh
sales tax on services under Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011. The Commissioner Appeals
had decided the matter against IGI General. Against the order of the Commissioner - Appeals,
further appeal had been filed before the Appellate Tribunal, SRB on January 16, 2015, which was
also decided against IGI General. IGI General had filed an appeal in the Honorable High Court of
Sindh which is pending adjudication. The management, based on the advice of the legal counsel,
is hopeful that the outcome of the case will be decided in favor of IGI General.

- During the year 2018, the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) raised a demand of tax of Rs 430.412
million under section 23(1) of Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act (SSTA), 2011, in respect of sales
tax on reinsurance obtained from foreign re-insurers by 1Gl General. The department has also
imposed a penalty of Rs 21.520 million.

The department alleged that IGlI General has received re-insurance services from foreign re-
insurance companies for the period from July 2011 to December 2014 and it is the contention
of the department that these services are liable to sales tax under SSTA, 2011. The department
attached IGI General’'s bank account and directed IGI General’s banker to issue pay orders to
SRB. The pay orders of Rs 58.028 million from IGl General’s bank account were issued by IGI
General’s banker on December 27, 2018 upon direction of SRB.
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IGI General has filed an appeal before the Commissioner Appeals on December 28, 2018 against
the above order. The management in hearings held, during the year, before the Commissioner
(Appeals) SRB has submitted that:

The payments to foreign re-insurance companies are not a service and is merely a re-distribution
of the insurance risk and therefore the insurance premium. There is no value addition involved
since in essence it is a sharing of the insurance risk between the insurer and re-insurers. The
management believes that the gross premium charged by the insurer was already subject to
Sales Tax on the gross amount, hence it is illogical to again subject it to sales tax upon its re-
distribution keeping in view the fact that neither any service is being provided to the policy holder
nor any value addition is being made.

These risk sharing arrangements have been made by IGI General with the re-insurance
companies incorporated outside Pakistan with no legal or physical presence therefore it is of the
view that the provisions of Sindh Sales Tax laws are not applicable to these type of arrangements
and are outside the jurisdiction of Sindh Sales Tax laws.

The management believes that even if it is assumed that Sindh Sales Tax on re-insurance
provided to insurer / insurance companies is applicable, the law does not provide any mechanism
for calculating the basis on which such tax will be imposed and its related payment and the same
would have been claimed as adjustable input tax by IGI General against its output tax liability.

IGI General had also filed a constitutional petition before the Honorable High Court of Sindh
at Karachi (the Court) on December 28, 2018 seeking protection from the above mentioned
coercive action taken by the tax department. The Court had suspended the above mentioned
attachment notice and also instructed the bank that the said pay orders should not be encashed.

During the year, the Court of Sindh has disposed of the constitutional petition together with
the other similar petitions and has ordered SRB not to enforce recovery of impugned demand
before expiry of seven days of the receipt of the final decision in appeal or stay application by the
Commissioner (Appeals) SRB, whichever is earlier.

The management, based on the advice received from their tax and legal advisors, is confident
that this matter is likely to be decided in favour of IGI General. IGI General has recorded Rs
58.028 million as ‘other receivable’ in these consolidated financial statements.

There are no material commitments as at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019.

22.3 IGIl Investments

There are no material contingencies and commitments as at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019.

224 |Gl Life
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With effect from November 1, 2018, the Punjab Revenue Authority (PRA), withdrew the exemption
on both, life and health insurance, and subjected the same to the levy of Punjab Sales Tax (PST).
Previously, the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) had withdrawn similar exemptions granted in Sindh.
However, during 2019, the Sindh Revenue Board, vide notification no. SRB 3-4/5/2019 dated May
8, 2019, restored the exemption on both, life and health insurance business uptil June 30, 2019.

With effect from July 1, 2019, in Sindh, the SRB, vide its notifications SRB-3-4/16/2019 and SRB-
3-4/14/2020, extended the exemption to health insurance upto June 30, 2021. For individual life
insurance, the SRB prescribed a reduced rate of 3% on gross premium written. The exemption to
Group Life insurance lapsed on June 30, 2019. Hence, Group Life Insurance was made taxable at
the full rate of 13%. The SRB, however, vide its notification SRB-3-4/13/2020 dated June 22, 2020,
provided exemptions to Individual Life and Group Life Insurance subject to e-deposit of sales tax
payable thereon, as were provided or rendered during the period from July 1, 2019 till June 30,
2020. |Gl Life, however, has not availed this exemption.

With effect from April 2, 2020, in Punjab, the Government of the Punjab (Finance department), as
part of COVID relief, amended Second Schedule to the Punjab Sales Tax on Services Act, 2012
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and changed sales tax rates on health and life insurance to 0% without input tax adjustment for the
period from notification’s effective date till June 30, 2020. This tax exemption is however retained
only in case of Individual Health Insurance through Punjab Finance Act, 2020 which is effective
from July 1, 2020.

The Insurance Association of Pakistan (IAP) had taken up the matter extensively with PRA and
SRB for restoration of the exemptions that were withdrawn, besides seeking legal advice. The
legal advisors of the IAP/IGI Life have confirmed the contention of IGI Life that insurance is not
a service, but infact, in sum and substance, a contingent contract under which payment is made
on the occurrence of an event, specified in the terms of contract or policy, and is thus a financial
arrangement. Superior courts in foreign jurisdictions have held that insurance is not a service.

The legal advisors have also raised the important question of constitutionality of the levy of
provincial sales tax on life insurance, which is a Federal subject, and have expressed the view
that under Article 142 of the Constitution of Pakistan, only those matters which are not enumerated
in the Federal Legislative List, may be legislated upon by the provinces. In their view, since the
Federation has retained a legislative mandate over all laws relating to insurance, therefore, only the
Federation is entitled to levy any tax in relation to insurance business.

Without prejudice to the main contentions as stated above, even otherwise, the legal advisors have
expressed in their opinions a further flaw in the context of the manner in which the entire premium
payment, i.e. Gross Written Premium (GWP) is being charged to the levy of provincial sales tax.
This is despite the fact that there are two distinct elements of GWP (i) the amount allocated towards
the policy holders’ investment, which belongs to them and (ii) the difference between the GWP
charged and the investment amount allocated. Thus, in their view, if the entire GWP is subjected to
provincial sales tax, then this is akin to a direct tax on policy holders, in the nature of income tax,
wealth tax, or capital value tax, all of which fall exclusively within the domain of Federal Legislature.

Based on the above contentions, IGI Life and other life insurance / health insurance companies
challenged the levy of PST on life and health insurance in the Punjab through a writ petition in the
Honorable Lahore High Court (LHC) in September 2019. Subsequent to the filing of the petition, in
October 2019, the PRA issued a show cause notice to IGI Life and other life insurance companies,
attempting to levy PST on the Pan Pakistan GWP, i.e. beyond their jurisdiction, and for the entire
calendar year 2018, besides other inaccuracies. |Gl Life and other life insurance companies have
filed further Writ Petitions in the Honorable Lahore High Court against the same. The petition is
pending adjudication.

In Sindh, extensive discussions were held at the collective level of IAP with the SRB for the
restoration of exemption on life insurance, which remained inconclusive. In November 2019, IGI
Life, and other life insurance companies received show cause notices from the SRB, requiring
the companies to deposit the SST on life insurance. Based on the same contentions as PST, IGlI
Life and other life insurance companies, have filed a Petition in the Honorable Sindh High Court
(SHC) in November 2019, challenging the levy of SST. The Honorable SHC, in their interim order
dated December 2, 2019, directed that the request of the petitioners, seeking exemption in terms
of Section 10 of the SST Act, 2011, shall be considered by the SRB in accordance with the law. The
Petition is pending adjudication.

In January 2020, the SRB, PRA and BRA invited the IAP and insurance industry to hold a dialogue
for an amicable settlement of the matter. IGI Life, along with the IAP and other insurance companies
participated in the meeting convened by Chairman SRB, and will continue its efforts to convince the
provincial revenue authorities about the merits of the case.

The legal advisors, in their opinion, have expressed the view that IGI Life has a reasonably strong
case on the merits of the Petitions filed in both, the Honorable LHC and Honorable SHC, against
the imposition of the provincial sales taxes on life and health insurance in the Punjab and on life
insurance in Sindh.

- There are no material commitments as of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019.
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22.5 IGI Finex

During the financial year ended June 30, 2012, a brokerage house filed a lawsuit against |G| Finex
in the High Court of Sindh for recovery of Rs. 18.433 million together with mark-up on debit balances
outstanding in its books and records on account of various transactions. Initially, IGI Finex had filed
a counter affidavit against the application filed by the Complainant to seek an interim order. During
the financial year ended June 30, 2013, IGI Finex filed a written Statement in this lawsuit, while
the Plaintiff has filed a rejoinder to the counter affidavit filed by IGI Finex. IGI Finex has also filed a
lawsuit against the same brokerage house and an ex-official of IGI Finex in the High Court of Sindh
to recover the outstanding balance appearing in IGI Finex’s books of account before provision. The
court has issued notices to the defendants. Both the management and the legal counsel are of the
view that there is a reasonable probability of IGI Finex’s success in both lawsuits.

During the financial year ended June 30, 2010, one of the customers of IGI Finex filed a lawsuit
against IGl Finex before the High Court of Sindh for the recovery of Rs. 3.5 million along with
damages of Rs. 100 million. The aforementioned lawsuit is counterblast to |Gl Finex’s suit for
recovery of Rs. 0.97 million along with liquidated damages at the rate of 24%, filed during the
financial year ended June 30, 2010 before the Senior Civil Judge Karachi, South, which was
subsequently transferred to the Honorable High Court of Sindh at Karachi, on IGI Finex’s civil
transfer application, moved under section 24 read with section 151 of Civil Procedure Code. Both
the management and the legal counsel are of the view that there is a reasonable probability of IGI
Finex’s success in both lawsuits.

During the financial year ended June 30, 2010, one of the customers of IGl Finex had filed a
lawsuit against IGI Finex in the Court of Senior Civil Judge Karachi, South for the recovery of Rs.
12.6 million along with mark-up thereon. The said lawsuit is counterblast to IGI Finex’s suit for
recovery of money, declaration and permanent injunction for recovery of Rs. 3.3 million along with
liquidated damages at the rate of 24%, filed during the financial year ended June 30, 2009 before
the Honorable High Court of Sindh. Both the management and the legal counsel are of the view
that there is a reasonable probability of IGI Finex’s success in both lawsuits.

During the year ended June 30, 2009, a brokerage house filed suit before the Honorable Civil Judge,
Lahore for declaration and permanent injunction against IGl Finex. The brokerage house filed a
contempt petition and a petition under section 33 of the Arbitration Act against IGI Finex before the
Honorable Civil Judge, Lahore. Furthermore the brokerage house also filed a civil revision before
the Honorable Lahore High Court, Lahore Bench against an order passed by the learned Civil
Judge wherein the learned Civil Judge was pleased to dismiss the temporary injunction granted to
the brokerage house, the said order was also affirmed in appeal. Further, IGI Finex has filed a suit
for recovery for Rs. 53.062 million along with liquidated damages and a petition before National
Accountability Bureau (NAB) against the brokerage house. Both the management and legal counsel
are of the view that there is a reasonable probability of IGI Finex’s success in the lawsuit.

There are no material commitments as at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019.

The contingencies relating to taxation are disclosed in note 29.2 to the consolidated financial
statements.

22.6 Associates

Gro

up’s share in contingencies of associates accounted for under equity method is Rs. 288.40 million

(2019: Rs. 223.30 million).
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25

OPERATING REVENUE

Net premium income

Dividend income

Return on government and debt securities
Fee, commission and brokerage

Wakalah fee income

Reversal of premium deficiency

Unrealised (loss) / gain on investments - net
Gain on sale of investments - net

OPERATING EXPENSES

Net claims

Reversal of premium deficiency
Commission expense - net
Management expenses

Management expenses

Salaries, wages and benefits
Rent, rates and taxes

Utilities

Repairs and maintenance
System maintenance
Education and training
Computer expenses
Communication

Impairment / provision for doubtful receivables
Security expenses
Consultancy fee

Directors’ fee

Actuary’s fees

Shariah advisor fees

Legal and professional charges
Advertisement expenses
Stationery and printing
Depreciation and amortisation
Travelling

Miscellaneous

OTHER INCOME

From financial assets

Profit on savings accounts and term deposits
Recoveries against bad and doubtful

loans and advances / lease losses - net

From non-financial assets
Rental income

Gain on disposal of assets - net
Other

VO 2020 | 2010 |

(Rupees in ‘000)

8,255,974 7,042,147
925,911 880,216
1,709,854 1,680,475
195,825 103,901
140,602 108,841
21,111 -
(4,368) 76,216
252,959 9,884
11,497,868 9,901,680
5,390,786 5,971,775
- 608
1,805,888 999,590
241 1568296 1,720,124
8,764,970 8,692,097
876,404 884,601
31,909 43,549
27,950 24,927
28,563 38,691
73,552 126,160
3,618 1,680
2,479 1,875
55,521 58,920
25,682 26,298
63,821 98,569
8,840 16,940
8,195 7,254
7,956 8,692
1,373 1,260
40,587 39,284
10,923 17,665
26,637 26,799
171,251 126,640
58,627 102,237
44,408 68,083
1,568,296 1,720,124
225,281 323,313
20,893 14,998
246,174 338,311

- 3,069

18,462 15,417
80,015 47 564
98,477 66,050
344,651 404,361
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26 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Note m m
(Rupees in ‘000)
Salaries, wages and benefits 168,189 138,439
Rent, rates and taxes 11,167 5,544
Repairs and maintenance 4,453 3,570
Insurance expenses 13,084 11,304
Motor car expenses 3,210 -
Tour and travelling 594 1,420
Stationery and printing 859 3,462
Depreciation and amortisation 113,271 104,866
Advertisement expenses 12,764 63,065
Legal and professional 21,162 27,757
Regulators fee 16,700 27,377
Fee & subscription 15,102 11,069
Others 57,899 34,141
438,454 432,014
27 OTHER EXPENSES
Auditors remuneration 271 27,140 30,493
Donations 27.2 6,132 204
Financial charges 429,251 471,423
462,523 502,120
271 Auditors’ remuneration*
Fee for statutory audit 5,706 5,166
Fee for interim review 1,475 1,300
Fee for audit of consolidated financial statements 1,400 1,000
Fee for audit of regulatory returns, special
certifications and sundry services 13,671 19,213
Other advisory services 2,382 1,620
Out of pocket expenses 2,506 2,194
27,140 30,493
* This represent auditors remuneration of the Holdings Company and subsidiary companies.
27.2  This represents donation paid to Packages Foundation (a related party) in 2020.
28 SHARE OF PROFIT / (LOSS) OF ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE UNDER EQUITY
ACCOUNTING - NET
220 [ 2019 |
: ioi her Share of other Other Share of other
el Pl omantede SISSNE cmante  PULES) ompntee S3SS0E cmantie
Packages Limited 4496495  (5481888) 1414013 (1,508,209) 28061 (3747941) 04749 (1414,366)
Dane Foods Limited - - - - - - - -
Packages Real Estate (Private) Limited (308,295) (76,595) 41,735 10,369
S.C Johnson & Son of Pakistan (Private) Limited (121,256) (54,565) - - - - -
4066944 (5481888) 1282853  (1508.209) 39796  (3,747.941) 105118 (1.414,366)
20 TAXATION [ 2020 | 2019 |

(Rupees in ‘000)
For the year

- Current 752,347 612,629
- Prior year 252 (3,007)
- Group tax adjustments (179,830) (178,632)
- Deferred (71,167) (142,217)

501,602 288,773
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29.2

29.21

Tax charge reconciliation Note [EZZZN EZEEE

(Rupees in ‘000)

Profit before tax 2,222,393 939,097
Tax calculation at the rate of 29% (2019: 29%) 644,494 272,338
Effect of items taxable under lower rates (53,260) 113,986
Effect of permanent differences 83,530 97,507
Prior year 252 (3,007)
Group tax adjustments (179,830) (178,632)
Others 6,416 (13,419)
501,602 288,773

Contingencies related to tax matters:

Holding Company

Income tax returns for the tax years 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 have been filed by
the Ex. IGI Investment Bank Limited (Investment Bank) / now IGI Holdings Limited on due dates that
are deemed to be assessed under the provisions of section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Matters that are being contested mainly include the following:

(@)

(b)

(e)

(f)

The rate of tax applied in computing the tax liability of the Investment Bank was the one applicable
to a banking company instead of the rate applicable for a public company (Assessment years 1991-
92 to 2000-01). The Lahore High Court vide orders in CTR No.04 of 2005 and CTR No. 02 of 2008
for the assessment years 1993-1994 to 1997-98 had decided this issue in favour of the Investment
Bank by rejecting the reference application filed by the tax department.

The Investment Bank is a non banking finance company in accordance with the provisions of section
2(10) of Income Tax Ordinance, 1979 read with Section 5(b) & 5(c) of the Banking Companies
Ordinance ,1962. In light of said provisions the Investment Bank is an investment finance company,
so its dividend income should be taxed as a separate block of income at the reduced rate. The
above mentioned issue is decided in favour of the Investment Bank by The Lahore High Court,
vide orders in CTR No.04 of 2005 and CTR No. 02 of 2008 for the assessment years 1993-1994 to
1997-98.

Addition on account of accounting depreciation as a result of restricting the claim of accounting
depreciation upto net income from leased assets (Tax year 2003). The Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue, Lahore (ATIR) vide order No. ITA No. 1074/LB/2008 dated November 07, 2018 decided
the appeal on the said point in favour of the Investment Bank.

Disallowance of certain expenses and additions to taxable income on account of lease key money,
lease rentals, excess perquisites and miscellaneous expenses relating to various assessment
years (assessment years 1995-96 to 2000-01).

Charging minimum tax under section 113 of the Ordinance without allowing adjustment of tax paid
under final tax regime (Tax years 2008 and 2010). The ATIR vide consolidated order No. ITA No.
1716/LB/2013 & ITA No. 1717/LB/2013 dated January 09, 2019 decided the appeals on the said
point in favour of the Investment Bank.

Disallowance of initial depreciation on leased commercial vehicles (Tax years 2004, 2005, 2006
and 2007). For Tax years 2004 & 2005, the ATIR vide orders No. ITA No. MA(AG) No. 48/LB/2019
/ ITA No. 1581/LB/2011 and ITA No. 1263/LB/2012 dated November 25, 2019 and November 07,
2018 respectively has declared the amended orders for the said years as illegal being Time Barred.
For tax years 2006 & 2007, the ATIR vide consolidated order Nos. ITA No. 498/LB/2012 & ITA No.
499/L.B/2012 dated March 26, 2018 has remanded back the case for readjudicating.
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(i)
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Addition as a result of proration of expenses between exempt income (capital gains), dividend
income and business income (Assessment / Tax years 2002-03, 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006 and
2007). For assessment year 2002-03, appeal is pending before ATIR. For Tax years 2004 & 2005,
the ATIR vide orders No. ITA No. MA(AG) No. 48/LB/2019 / ITA No. 1581/LB/2011 and ITA No.
1263/LB/2012 dated November 25, 2019 and November 07, 2018 respectively has declared the
amended orders for the said years as illegal being time barred. For Tax years 2006 & 2007, the
ATIR vide consolidated order Nos. ITA No. 498/LB/2012 & ITA No. 499/LB/2012 dated March 26,
2018 has remanded back the case for readjudicating.

Addition on account of allocation of finance cost to brokerage and commission income amounting
to Rs.18.445 million (Tax Year 2009).

Addition on account of specific provisions of Rs. 117.639 million (Tax Year 2009).

The management and its tax advisor are confident that all above matters will eventually be decided
in favor of IGI Holdings.

Income tax return for the tax year 2017 was filed by Gl Holdings that is deemed to be assessed
under the provisions of section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. IGI Holdings, during year
ended December 31, 2018, received notice from Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR)
for explanations over the matters raised in the notice prior to the amendment in the assessment
under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The principal observations raised by ACIR were related to levy of tax on undistributed profits and
super tax, admissibility of tax losses of formerly |Gl Investment Bank Limited and deductions
claimed on account of write-offs. IGI Holdings filed constitutional petitions for the matters pertaining
to the levy of tax on undistributed profits and super tax and obtained stay order against any adverse
action in relation thereto and also submitted its response / explanations to ACIR.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, ACIR passed order against the response submitted by
the Holding Company and raised tax demand of Rs. 435.869 million on matters raised in the notice
except for the admissibility of deductions on account of write-offs. The Holding Company filed an
appeal with the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) (CIRA) and the learned CIRA, on the
merits of the case, decided appeal in favor of the Holding Company on account of admissibility of
tax losses of formerly IGI Investment Bank Limited, while upheld decision of ACIR on the matters
pertaining to levy of tax on undistributed profits and super tax which is already pending adjudication
at the Honorable High Court of Sindh. As a result of order passed by CIRA, management estimates
that tax demand has been reduced by Rs. 223.221 million. However, an appeal effect order is
pending in this regard.

During the year, Holding Company has filed an appeal with Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
(ATIR) on the matters decided in favor of ACIR by the learned CIRA, while ACIR has also filed
an appeal with ATIR on the matter of admissibility of tax losses decided in favor of the Holding
Company, both of which are currently pending adjudication.

Income tax return for the tax year 2018 was filed the Holding Company that is deemed to be
assessed under the provisions of section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. During the
year, the Holding Company received a notice to amend assessment under section 122 (5A) from
Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) for explanations over the matters raised in
the notice prior to the amendment in the assessment under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001.

The principal observations raised by ACIR were related to taxation of dividend and commission
income at corporate tax rate, levy of super tax and inadmissible deductions of provision against
investments and doubtful debts and impairment of goodwill. The Holding Company filed constitutional
petition for the matter pertaining to the levy of super tax and obtained stay order against any
adverse action in relation thereto and also submitted its response / explanations to ACIR.
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The ACIR passed order against the response submitted by the Holding Company and raised
tax demand of Rs. 475.538 million on matters raised in the notice except for the matters related
to admissibility of deductions of provision against investments and doubtful debts. The Holding
Company filed an appeal with the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) (CIRA) and the
learned CIRA, on the merits of the case, remanded back matters related to taxation of dividend and
commission income at corporate tax rate and impairment of goodwill while confirming decision of
ACIR on account of levy of super tax which is already pending adjudication at the Honorable High
Court of Sindh.

The Holding Company has filed response to ACIR on the issues remanded back by the learned
CIRA and has also filed an appeal with Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against order of
the learned CIRA in the matters related to taxation of dividend and commission income at corporate
tax rate, impairment of goodwill and levy of super tax.

During the year, the Honorable High Court of Sindh has passed its judgment in the various
constitutional petitions filed by various parties including |Gl Holdings on the matter of levy of super
tax. The Honorable High Court, while dismissing the petitions has held that the Super Tax has been
validly levied under the constitution. IGI Holdings has challenged the decision of Honorable Sindh
High Court in the Supreme Court of Pakistan jointly with the other petitioners. The learned Supreme
Court has restrained tax department from any coercive action against petitioners subject to deposit
of 50% amount of levy of super tax. Subsequent to the year end, IG| Holdings has deposited the
said amount pertaining to levy of super tax as directed by the Supreme Court.

- Income tax return for the tax year 2019 was filed by the Holding Company that is deemed to
be assessed under the provisions of section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. During
the year, the Holding Company received a notice to amend assessment under section 122 (5A)
from Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) for explanations over the matters raised in
the notice prior to the amendment in the assessment under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001.

The principal observations raised by ACIR are related to levy of super tax and apportionment of
expenses. The Holding Company filed constitutional petition for the matter pertaining to the levy of
super tax and obtained stay order against any adverse action in relation thereto. Subsequent to the
year end, IGI Holdings has also submitted its responses / explanations to ACIR.

Subsequent to the year end, the ACIR has passed its order creating tax demand of Rs. 278.750
million on account of apportionment of expenses and disallowance of certain expenses. The
management is in process of filling an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals)
against the order passed by ACIR.

The management, based on the advice of its tax advisor, is confident of favourable outcome of the
above proceedings.

- There are no material commitments as at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019.

IGl General

The income tax assessments of IGlI General have been finalised up to and including the tax year

2017. However, |Gl General has filed appeals in respect of certain assessment years which mainly

relate to the following:

- While finalising the assessment for the year 1999-2000 the Taxation Officer had not allowed credit
for tax paid under section 54 amounting to Rs. 3 million for which rectification application is filed

which is pending.

IGI General has also filed applications in respect of certain mistakes made in the orders passed
under section 124 of the Income tax Ordinance for 2001-2002 and 2002-2003. The applications
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filed were rejected by the Tax Officer against which appeals had been filed with the CIT (A) which
are pending.

The Additional Commissioner of Income Tax (AC) has issued notice under section 122 (5A) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 in respect of the tax year 2005 and 2006 whereby he has proposed
to disallow claim of expenses and exemption in respect of gain on sale of shares and taxed income
from associates. Against the above notice, IGI General has filed a constitutional petition before the
Honorable High Court. The regular hearing of petition is currently pending with the High Court.

In respect of tax year 2007, all significant issues involved amounting to Rs. 7 billion were decided
in favor of IGI General by CIR(A) and then by the ATIR. However, no appeal effect order has been
passed. Further, certain matters amounting to Rs. 82 million that were remanded back to DCIR by
the CIR(A) were not decided upon by the High Court. |Gl General has written a letter to the taxation
officer for passing appeal effect orders. The department had filed Income Tax Reference Application
before Honorable High Court of Sindh against the deletion of the addition made on account of re-
characterisation of actual realized capital gain. The said Income Tax Reference Application was
heard by Honorable High Court and the judgment has been passed in favour of IGI General.

The tax department has further filed a civil petition before the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan
against the judgement of the Honorable High Court which is pending adjudication.

In case of tax year 2008, the Additional Commissioner Audit Division-Il had issued notice under
section 122 (5A) of the Ordinance for passing an amended order on certain issues. IGl General
filed a writ petition before the Honorable High Court of Sindh which dismissed the petition by
directing IGI General to submit its responses to the assessing authority. Moreover, the Honorable
High Court had directed the assessing authority to pass the order, preferably within two months
of the service of the Court’s order, strictly in accordance with law keeping in view the provisions
relating to insurance business and the decisions of the High Court and the Supreme Court on the
subject issues. However, to date no notice has been received from the taxation authorities.

The Additional Commissioner Audit zone Il LTU Karachi issued another notice under section
122(5A) of the Ordinance in May 14, 2014 and passed an amended assessment order under
section 122(5A) by disallowing provision for IBNR and allocation of expense against capital gains
and dividend income. As a result of amended assessment demand of Rs. 63.166 million was
created. Against the disallowances made by the ACIR, IGI General has filed an appeal before
the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) and also filed an application for stay of demand.
Pursuant to the stay application, the CIR(A) has granted stay of demand to IGI General. Against
the above disallowance, |Gl General filed an appeal before the learned Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue. Further, IGI General challenged the assessment order on the ground that the assessment
was barred by limitation of time. Moreover, the department filed a cross appeal before the ATIR
challenging the relief granted by the CIR(A). The ATIR has decided both the appeals on the point of
limitation of law as contained under section 122(2) of the Ordinance and have decided the appeal
in favor of IGI General. Moreover, the departmental appeal has also been rejected being treated as
infructuous. The department has filed a reference application before the Sindh High Court against
the order of the ATIR which is pending adjudication.

Moreover, pursuant to the decision of the CIR(A), the ACIR has passed an appeal effect order
duly incorporating the relief granted by the CIR(A) in respect of allocation of expenses and tax
refundable of Rs. 18.030 million has been determined.

In case of tax year 2009, the Deputy Commissioner of Inland Revenue (DCIR) has passed the
amended order under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance by disallowing provisions on account of
IBNR, unearned commission and allocation of expenses relating to exempt income. As a result of
amended assessment demand of Rs 141 million was created. The DCIR has made certain errors
in the order for which application for rectification was filed. Rectified order under Section 221 has
been passed and as a result demand has been reduced to Rs. 51 million. The learned CIR(A) has
granted partial relief in respect of certain issue and confirmed certain disallowances. IGl General
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filed further appeal before the appellate tribunal inland revenue (ATIR) in respect of issues on
which relief was not allowed by the CIR(A). The ATIR, pursuant to the appeals filed against the
order of CIR(A), has now passed the order whereby the ATIR has confirmed disallowance made on
account of provision for IBNR. Further issue of allocation of expenses against investment income
has been remanded back to CIR(A). As regards, the issue of addition made on account of provision
of unearned commission, the ATIR has upheld the decision of CIR(A) whereby disallowance made
on this score is deleted. In respect of issues decided against IGl General, a reference application
was filed before Honorable Sindh High Court where the IBNR issue has been decided in favor of
IGI General whereas remaining issues are pending adjudication.

The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has passed an amended assessment order
under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance wherein tax on dividend income, commission income and
property income has been charged at corporate tax rate (i.e. 35% for the year) by treating such
income as business income of |Gl General under Fourth Schedule to the Ordinance. As a result of
the amended assessment demand of Rs.31.420 million was created. IGI General paid an amount
of Rs.10 million and obtained stay from the Commissioner Inland Revenue till August 31, 2015 in
respect of payment of the remaining tax demand of Rs. 21.420 million. Further, against the above
treatment meted out by the ACIR, IGI General has filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland
Revenue (Appeals) which is pending adjudication. IGI General also filed a petition against the said
order before the Honorable Sindh High Court which was disposed off with the directions that no
coercive measures taken by the Tax Authorities till the decision of the CIR(A) on the appeal filed
which is pending adjudication.

- In case of tax year 2010, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has passed an
amended assessment order under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance wherein tax on dividend and
property income has been charged at corporate tax rate (i.e. 35% for the year) by treating such
income as business income of |Gl General under Fourth Schedule to the Ordinance. Further, the
ACIR has disallowed provision of IBNR under section 34(3) of the Ordinance. As a result of the
amended assessment demand of Rs.93.445 million has been created. IGI General has filed appeal
and application for stay of tax demand before the CIR(A) against the above assessment order.
IGI General has also filed a petition against the said order before the Honorable Sindh High Court
which is pending adjudication.

Pursuant to the appeal, the learned CIR(A) vide combined appellate order No.21 and 22/A-1 dated
10 March 2016 has decided all issues in favor of IGI General. The tax department has filed further
appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) in respect of the issues on which relief
was allowed by the CIR(A) which is pending adjudication.

- In case of tax year 2011, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has passed an
amended assessment order under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance wherein tax on dividend and
property income has been charged at corporate tax rate (i.e. 35% for the year) by treating such
income as business income of IGl General under Fourth Schedule to the Ordinance. Further, the
ACIR has also disallowed provision of IBNR, claim of brought forward loss for the tax year 2008
and refund adjustments for tax years 2004 and 2009 in the amended assessment order . Moreover,
Workers’ Welfare Fund @ 2% of the accounting profit for the year has also been levied. As a result
of the amended assessment demand of Rs.142.414 million has been created. IGI General has filed
appeal and application for stay of tax demand before the CIR(A) against the above assessment
order.

Pursuant to the appeal, the learned CIR(A) vide combined appellate order No. 21 & 22/A-1 dated

10 March 2016 has decided the following issues in favor of IGI General:

(a) Chargeability of tax on dividend income and property income at corporate tax rate;
(b) Provision for IBNR;
(c) Levy of Workers’ welfare fund for the year.
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As regards, credit / adjustment of refunds available to IGI General, the CIR(A) has remanded back
the issue with the directions to verify the claim of refunds and allow the adjustment as per law. The
tax department has filed further appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) in
respect of the issues on which relief was allowed by the CIR(A) which is pending adjudication.

In case of tax year 2012, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has passed an
amended assessment order under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance wherein tax on dividend and
property income has been charged at corporate tax rate (i.e. 35% for the year) by treating such
income as business income of |Gl General under Fourth Schedule to the Ordinance. Further,
the ACIR has also disallowed provision of IBNR amounting to Rs. 33 million in the amended
assessment order. As a result of the amended assessment, demand of Rs. 106.563 million was
created. |Gl General has obtained stay from the Honorable Sindh High court in respect of the above
tax demand. Further, against the aforesaid order, IGlI General also filed an appeal before CIR(A)
which is pending adjudication. The stay from the Honorable Sindh High Court has been disposed
off subsequently with the directions that no coercive measures taken by the Tax Authorities till the
decision of the CIR(A) on the appeal filed. The learned CIR(A) has passed the appellate order
wherein both the aforesaid issues have been decided in favor of IGI General.

The department has filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal, Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the
order passed by the CIR(A) which is pending adjudication.

In case of tax year 2013, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has passed an
amended assessment order under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance wherein tax on dividend and
property income has been charged at corporate tax rate (i.e. 35% for the year) by treating such
income as business income of |Gl General under Fourth Schedule to the Ordinance. Further, the
ACIR has also disallowed provision of IBNR, claim of brought forward loss for the tax year 2012
and has also made an addition on account of disposal of fixed assets at less than fair market value
(FMV) in the amended assessment order. As a result of the amended assessment, demand of Rs.
95.008 million was created. Against the aforesaid order, |Gl General has filed an appeal before
CIR(A). Pursuant to the appeal, the learned CIR(A) vide appellate order No. 10/A-1 dated 05
October 2016 has decided the following issues in favor of IGI General:

(a) Chargeability of tax on dividend income and property income at corporate tax rate;
(b) Provision for IBNR amounting to Rs. 33 million;
(c) Addition on account of disposal of fixed assets.

Further the CIR(A) has remanded back the issues in respect of adjustment of brought forward loss
for the tax year 2012 and credit of Workers’ Welfare Fund paid with the return of income. The tax
department has filed further appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue(ATIR) in respect
of the issues on which relief was allowed by the CIR(A) which is pending adjudication.

In case of tax year 2014, case of IGlI General was selected for audit under section 177 of the
ordinance and subsequently, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) has passed
an amended assessment order under section 122(1) of the Ordinance wherein tax on dividend
income has been charged at corporate tax rate (i.e. 34% for the year) by treating such income as
business income of IGl General under Fourth Schedule to the Ordinance. Further, the ACIR has
also disallowed provision of IBNR and has also made an addition on account of disposal of fixed
assets at less than Fair Market Value (FMV) and motor car expenses paid in cash under section
21(1) in the amended assessment order. As a result of the amended assessment, demand of Rs.
148.444 million was created. |Gl General has obtained stay from the Honorable Sindh High court
in respect of the above tax demand. Further, against the aforesaid order, IGl General has also
filed an appeal before CIR(A) . The stay from the Honorable Sindh High Court has been disposed
off subsequently with the directions that no coercive measures taken by the Tax Authorities till the
decision of the CIR(A) on the appeal filed.

Pursuant to the appeal before CIR(A), the CIR(A) has passed the appellate order whereby issues
in respect of levy of tax on dividend income at corporate tax rates, disposal of vehicles at less than
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FMV and levy of WWF have been decided in favor of IGI General. However, issues in respect of
levy of minimum tax under section 113, provision for IBNR and motor car expenses in cash has
been decided against IGI General. IGI General has filed further appeal before the ATIR in respect
of the issues decided against IGI General except issue of motor car expenses paid in cash, which
is pending adjudication.

- In case of tax year 2015, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has passed an
amended assessment order under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance wherein tax on dividend and
property income has been charged at the corporate tax rate (i.e. 33% for the year) by treating
such income as business income of |Gl General under Fourth Schedule to the Ordinance. Further,
ACIR has levied Super tax under section 4B of the Ordinance amounting to Rs. 27.743 million
and Workers’ Welfare Fund for the year. As a result of the amended assessment, a demand of Rs.
234.287 million was created. IGI General has obtained stay from the Honorable Sindh High Court
in respect of the above tax demand. Further, against the aforesaid order, IGI General has also filed
an appeal before CIR(A) which is pending adjudication. The stay from the Honorable Sindh High
Court has been disposed off subsequently with the directions that no coercive measures would
be taken by the tax authorities till the decision of the CIR(A) on the appeal filed which is pending
adjudication.

Pursuant to the appeal before CIR(A), the CIR(A) has passed the appellate order whereby issue
of levy of tax on dividend income at corporate tax rates has been decided in favor of IGI General
whereas the issue of levy of Super tax under section 4B has been decided against |Gl General.
Furthermore, the CIR(A) has remanded back the issue of levy of WWF. |Gl General has filed further
appeal before the ATIR in respect of the issue of levy of Super tax, which is pending adjudication.

The ACIR also passed an appeal effect order whereby a tax demand of Rs.2.776 million was
created. While passing the aforesaid order, the ACIR did not consider the impact of payment of
WWEF for the year amounting to Rs. 3.635 million. Accordingly, a rectification application was duly
filed pursuant to which the ACIR has now passed a rectified order whereby a refund of Rs. 0.859
million has been created.

The ACIR also passed an order under section 221 of the Ordinance charging Super tax under
section 4B amounting to Rs 27.912 million. Without prejudice to the stance in appeal, IGI General
made payment of Rs 20 million in respect of the Super tax liability under section 4B whereas the
remaining Super tax demand of Rs 7.912 million was adjusted against the refund of tax year 2008.
IGI General filed an application with the ACIR requesting to annul the order based on various legal
grounds, however, no order was passed in this regard. Moreover, IGl General also filed an appeal
before the CIR(A) in respect of the order passed under section 221 of the Ordinance. Pursuant
to the above appeal, the CIR(A) passed the appellate order wherein the action of the ACIR in
charging super tax under section 221 of the Ordinance was annulled. |Gl General has written a
letter to the concerned taxation officer for passing appeal effect order in line with the appellate order
passed by the CIR(A), which is pending. The tax department has also filed further appeal before
the ATIR against the order passed by the CIR(A), which is pending adjudication.

- The case for tax year 2015 was further selected for audit under section 177 of the Ordinance. I1GI
General submitted all the information requested through the Information and Document Request
(IDR) pursuant to which a show-cause notice was issued in December 2017. IGI General has
submitted its response in respect of the issues raised in the show-cause notice, however, no
assessment order has yet been passed.

- In case of tax year 2016, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has passed an
amended assessment order under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance wherein tax on dividend
income has been charged at corporate tax rate (i.e. 32% for the year) by treating such income
as business income of |Gl General under Fourth Schedule to the Ordinance. Further, the ACIR
has disallowed the claim of expense on account of health administrative services under section
21(c) of the ordinance and has also made an addition on account of disposal of fixed assets at
less than Fair Market Value (FMV) in the amended assessment order. As a result of the amended
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assessment, demand of Rs. 105.190 million was created. |Gl General has filed stay application in
respect of the above tax demand in the Honorable High Court of Sindh and also filed an appeal
against the aforesaid order before the CIR(A).

Pursuant to the appeal before CIR(A), the CIR(A) has passed the appellate order whereby issues
in respect of levy of tax on dividend income at corporate tax rates and disposal of vehicles at less
than FMV have been decided in favor of IGI General whereas the issue of non-deduction of tax
on payment for health plan administrative services under section 21(c) of the Ordinance has been
decided against IGIl General.

The management and tax advisor of IGI General are confident that the above matters will be
decided in IGI General’s favor. Accordingly, no provision has been recognised in these consolidated
financial statements.

29.2.3 IGI Finex

During financial year 2013, audit proceedings under section 177 of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 in relation to the Tax Year 2010 were concluded by the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue
(DCIR) which led to an eventual tax demand of Rs. 6.672 million. The DCIR disallowed certain
expenses claimed by IGI Finex as well as claim of exempt capital gain on sale of listed securities,
treated certain trade debtors as trade creditors and treated the difference between the amount of
salaries as per the annual statement filed under section 165 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
and that disclosed in the financial statements as unexplained expenditure. IGI Finex had filed an
appeal with the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) against the said demand which was
heard by the Commissioner.

During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Commissioner passed an order under which 1GI Finex
had been allowed certain expenses which were disallowed by DCIR in earlier assessment. DCIR
had filed an appeal in Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the said order. The
management also filed a second appeal before ATIR. During the year ended June 30, 2017, ATIR in
its Order dated May 31, 2017 had remanded back the matter to DCIR, with a direction to ascertain
the true facts of the disallowed matters, rejected the appeal of the tax department and upheld the
findings of CIR(A). The findings of CIR(A) included remanding back the matter to DCIR of treating
certain trade debtors as trade creditors and of treating the difference in the amount of salaries as
unexplained expenditure and allowing appeal of IGI Finex that it was not heard by the DCIR before
disallowment of the expenses. IGI Finex has submitted an application to the Deputy Commissioner
Inland Revenue to give the appeal effect of these matters at the earliest.

The management and tax advisor of IGI FInex are confident that the above matter will be decided in IGI
Finex’s favor. Accordingly, no provision has been recognised in these consolidated financial statements.

30 EARNINGS PER SHARE 2020 | 2019 _

(Rupees in ‘000)

30.1 Basic earnings per share

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,737,357 684,312
(Number of shares)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 142,630,550 142,630,550
(Rupees)
Earnings per share 12.18 4.80
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30.2

31

31.1

31.2

32

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Group does not have any convertible
instruments in issue as at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 which would have any effect
on the earnings per share if the option to convert is exercised.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES OF HOLDING
COMPANY

The aggregate amounts charged in these consolidated financial statements for remuneration,
including certain benefits, to the Chief Executive, Director and Executives of the Group during the

year are as follows:

Holding Company

(Rupees in ‘000)

Fee for attending board meeting 3,200 1,775

Number of persons 8 8

Subsidiary companies

Chief Executive” l§  Directors |
[ 2020 [ 2019 ] 2020 [ 2019 ] 2020 [ 2019 |

(Rupees in ‘000)

Fee for attending board meeting - - 10,850 9,180 - -
Managerial remuneration 43,611 40,253 16,177 7,236 219,519 255,603

Bonus 16,222 15,663 4,215 - 44,459 35,365
Retirement benefits

(including provident fund) 2,648 4,548 784 - 13,568 32,862
Housing and utilities 13,261 12,201 7,580 2,330 43,816 46,480
Medical expenses 1,580 2,205 - 424 2,603 4,506
Conveyance allowance 703 678 304 - 7,263 8,902
Others 4,121 4,991 1,142 311 8,071 4,682

82,146 80,540 41,052 19,481 339,299 388,400

Number of persons 3 3 14 15 56 108

Salary expense of Chief Executive of IGI Investments is charged through group shared services
agreement and no expense is charged in respect of salary of CEO in the Holding Company.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of associated companies, other related group companies, directors of the
Group, key management personnel, major shareholders and post employment benefit plans. The
Group in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties at agreed
/ commercial terms and conditions. Remuneration of key management personnel is disclosed in note
31. Amounts due to / from and other significant transactions, other than those disclosed else where
in these consolidated financial statements, are as follows:
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Associates / Post employment Key Management Other related
joint venture benefit plans personnel parties
[ 2020 [ 2019 | 2020 [ 2019 ] 2020 | 2019 [ 2020 | 2019 | 2020 | 2019 |

(Rupees in ‘000) (Rupees in ‘000) (Rupees in ‘000) (Rupees in ‘000) (Rupees in ‘000)

Transactions
Premium underwritten
Premium collected
Claims expense
Claims paid
Commission expense
Commission paid
Dividend received
Dividend paid

Charge for group shared services
Wakalah fee income

Mudarib’s share on
investment income - income

Charge in respect of gratuity fund
Charge in respect of provident fund
Contribution to gratuity fund
Contribution to provident fund

Charge for administrative
services received

Charge for administrative
services provided

Key Management

Personnel compensation
Disposal of fixed assets
Sale proceeds from fixed assets

Purchase of marketable securities
for and on behalf of

Sale of marketable securities
forand on behalf of

Brokerage income eamed
Donation

Balances

Premium receivable
Commission payable
Investment in shares

Other receivable

Other payable

Retirement benefit obligation

(Payable to) / receivable from
provident fund

160 |IGI Holdings Limited

468,163
442,222
129,791
129,791

327,986
45,099
62,306

26,484

7027

522
197

998

26,081

15470479
24,939
17,480

408,290
338,537
50,464
20441
1,267
2,199
400,608
45,099
42,805

7,704

2,140

15,969,256
29242

45,042
32322
29,911
17,570

(57845)

7,984

32,506
30,223
31,500
15,352

44252

196,644

218,767
556

. 400
(43471)

281)

21,256 339,299

190,757 194,756

190,496 416
348 3N

336

3511 -
16,986

118,534
140,602

6,539

388,400 -
522
196

3999 537812

22

3 186,164
23 998
6,132

694,175
807

76,342
33406

15,002
115970

108,841

5110

1,276,770

526

16,986
315,710

4,35
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321

33

331

Following are the related parties with whom the Group had entered into transactions or have

arra

ngement / agreement in place:

Basis of association Aggregate %
m Name of related party | relationship of shareholding

0 N OB WD —

©

10
"
12
13
14
15
16
17

Packages Limited Associate 10.5%
Syed Babar Al Chairman 19.0%
Babar Ali Foundation Other related party 10.9%
Industrial Technical and Educational Institute Other related party 16.8%
DIC Pakistan Limited Other related party N/A
Packages Real Estate (Private) Limited Associate N/A
Syed Maratib Ali Trust Other related party N/A
Tri-Pack Films Limited Other related party N/A
Bulleh Shah Packaging Limited Other related party N/A
Omypack Private Limited Other related party N/A
Packages Lanka Other related party N/A
Syed Hyder Al Key management personnel 6.1%
Perwin Babar Ali Other related party 2.4%
Syeda Henna Babar Ali Other related party 4.2%
Chaudhry Tahir Masaud Key management personnel N/A
Amina Hyder Ali Other related party 0.2%
S.C.Johsons & Son of Pakistan (Private) Limited Associate 45%

OPERATING SEGMENT

The

Group’s business is organised and managed separately according to the nature of services

provided with the following segments:

Non-Life Insurance (Conventional and Takaful)

Fire and property insurance provides coverage against damages caused by fire, riot and strike,
explosion, earthquake, atmospheric damage, flood, electric fluctuation and other related perils.

Marine, aviation and transport insurance provides coverage against cargo risk, war risk, damages
occurring in inland transit and other related perils.

Motor insurance provides comprehensive car coverage, indemnity against third party loss and
other related coverage.

Accident and health insurance provides coverage against personal accident, hospitalisation and
other medical benefits.

Miscellaneous insurance provides coverage against burglary, loss of cash in safe and cash in
transit, engineering losses, travel and other coverage.

Life Insurance

The Life (participating) segment provides life insurance coverage to individuals under individual
life policies that are entitled to share in the surplus earnings of the statutory fund to which they are
referable.

The Life (non-participating) segment provides life insurance coverage to individuals under individual
life policies that are not entitled to share in the surplus earnings of the statutory fund to which they
are referable.
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The Life (non-participating) Group segment provides life insurance coverage to employer-employee
(and similar) groups of employees / members under a single life policy issued to the employer.
The Group policy is not entitled to share in the surplus earnings of the statutory fund to which it is
referable.

The Investment Linked business segment provides life insurance coverage to individuals, whereby
the benefits are expressed in terms of units, the value of which is related to the market value of
specified assets.

The Accident and Health - Individual segment provides fixed pecuniary benefits or benefits in the
nature of indemnity or a combination of both in case of accident or sickness to individuals.

The Accident and Health - Group segment provides fixed pecuniary benefits or benefits in the
nature of indemnity or a combination of both in case of accident or sickness to employer-employee
(and similar) groups of employees / members under a single policy issued to the employer.

The Pension Fund segment provides coverage for the purposes of a pension or a retirement
scheme with or without the payments being guaranteed for a minimum period.

Family Takaful

The individual family takaful business segment provides family takaful coverage to individuals
under unit-linked policies issued by the Group.

The Group Family Takaful business segments provides family takaful coverage to members of
business enterprises, corporate entities and common interest groups under group family takaful
scheme operated by the Group.

The Group Health Takaful provides fixed pecuniary benefits or benefits in the nature of indemnity or
a combination of both in case of accident or sickness to employer-employee (and similar) groups of
employees / members under a single policy issued to the employer.

Brokerage business

The brokerage business segment deals in shares and commodities brokerage, money market and
foreign exchange brokerage and advisory and consulting services.

Investments business

The investment segment pertains to the operating results of IGI Investments in which strategic
investments of the Group are held.

33.2  Assets and liabilities, wherever possible, have been assigned to the following segments based on
specific identification or allocated on the basis of gross premium written by the segments.
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(Rupees in ‘000)

34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY Note

Financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets
Loans and receivables - amortised cost

Cash and bank balances and term deposits

Cash and other equivalents 1,206 1,896
Current and other accounts 1,258,236 658,393
Deposits maturing within 12 months 1,101,600 1,852,607
2,361,042 2,512,896
Insurance / takaful / reinsurance / retakaful receivables 2,080,974 1,885,290
Accrued income 107,205 478,341
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 2,165,642 1,012,984
Wakalah fees receivable 57,326 119,261
Loans secured against life insurance policies 171,811 167,965
Deposits, loans, advances and other receivables 1,188,175 1,001,166
5,771,133 4,665,007
Long-term deposits 17,498 17,168
Investments - held to maturity - 322,219
Investments - fair value through profit or loss 2,903,720 2,529,301
Investments - fair value through other comprehensive income 33,874,491 38,401,194
Investments - available for sale 17,916,306 15,818,831
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR) 3,273,288 2,096,866
Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers 1,651,448 1,379,652
Current portion of long term loans and liabilities
against right-of-use assets 539,528 702,805
Trade and other payables 2,351,086 2,107,745
Short term loans 2,800,696 2,614,278
Long term loans 300,000 766,665
Unclaimed dividend 30,879 30,611
Lease liabilities against right-of-use assets 226,179 158,546
11,173,104 9,857,168
35 RISK MANAGEMENT
35.1 Risk management framework

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk
(including interest / mark-up rate risk and price risk). The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the financial performance. Overall, risks arising from the Group’s financial assets and liabilities are
limited. The Group consistently manages its exposure to financial risk without any material change
from previous period in the manner described in notes below. The Board of Directors has overall
responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Group’s risk management framework. The Board
is also responsible for developing the Group’s risk management policies.
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35.1.1

35.1.2

Insurance risk - General Insurance

The Group accepts the insurance risk through its insurance contracts where it assumes the risk
of loss from persons or organisations that are directly subject to the underlying loss. The Group is
exposed to the uncertainty surrounding the timing, frequency and severity of claims under these
contracts. The Group manages its risk via its underwriting and reinsurance strategy within an overall
risk management framework. Exposures are managed by having documented underwriting limits and
criteria. Reinsurance is purchased to mitigate the effect of potential loss to the Group from individual
large or catastrophic events and also to provide access to specialist risks and to assist in managing
capital. Reinsurance policies are written with approved reinsurers on either a proportional or excess
of loss treaty basis.

Further, the Group adopts strict claim review policies including active management and prompt
pursuing of the claims, regular detailed review of claim handling procedures and frequent investigation
of possible false claims to reduce the insurance risk.

Concentration of insurance risk - General Insurance

A concentration of risk may also arise from a single insurance contract issued to a particular
demographic type of policyholder, within a geographical location or to types of commercial businesses.
The Group minimises its exposure to significant losses by obtaining reinsurance from a number of
reinsurers, who are dispersed over several geographical regions.

To optimise benefits from the principle of average and law of large numbers, geographical spread of
risk is of extreme importance. There are a number of parameters which are significant in assessing
the accumulation of risks with reference to the geographical location, the most important of which is
risk survey.

Risk surveys are carried out on a regular basis for the evaluation of physical hazards associated with
the commercial / industrial / residential occupation of the insured. Details regarding the fire separation
|/ segregation with respect to the manufacturing processes, storage, utilities, etc. are extracted from
the layout plan of the insured facility. Such details are formed part of the reports which are made
available to the underwriters / reinsurance personnel for their evaluation. Reference is made to the
standard construction specifications as laid down by IAP (Insurance Association of Pakistan). For
instance, the presence of Perfect Party Walls, Double Fire Proof Iron Doors and physical separation
between the buildings within a insured’s premises. It is basically the property contained within an
area which is separated by another property by sufficient distance to confine insured damage from
uncontrolled fire and explosion under the most adverse conditions to that one area.

Address look-up and decoding is the essential field of the policy data interphase of IT systems. It
provides instant location which is dependent on data collection provided under the policy schedule.
All critical underwriting information is punched into the IT system/application through which a number
of MIS reports can be generated to assess the concentration of risk.

The ability to manage catastrophic risk is tied to managing the density of risk within a particular area.
For catastrophic aggregates, the IT system also assigns precise geographic CRESTA (Catastrophe
Risk Evaluating and Standardising Target Accumulations) codes with reference to the accumulation
of sums insured in force at any particular location against natural perils. A risk management solution
is implemented to help assess and plan for risk in catastrophic scenarios. It provides a way to better
visualize the risk exposures so the Group determines the appropriate amount of reinsurance coverage
to protect the business portfolio.

For Marine risks, complete underwriting details, besides sums insured and premiums, like vessel
identification, voyage input (sea / air / inland transit), sailing dates, origin and destination of the
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shipments, per carry limits, etc. are fed into the IT system. The reinsurance module of the IT system
is designed to satisfy the requirements as laid down in the proportional treaty agreement. Shipment
declarations are also endorsed on the policies. Respective reinsurance cessions are automatically
made upon the posting of policy documents.

The voyage cards so maintained for the particular set of policies for a single vessel voyage are
automatically logged into the system showing actual gross, treaty and net exposure, both in terms of
sums insured and premiums.

35.1.3 Reinsurance Arrangements

Keeping in view the maximum exposure in respect of key zone aggregates, a number of proportional
and non-proportional reinsurance arrangements are in place to protect the net account in case of
a major catastrophe. Apart from the adequate event limit which is a multiple of the treaty capacity
or the primary recovery from the proportional treaty, accumulated losses on net account can also
be recovered from the non-proportional treaty which is very much in line with the risk management
philosophy of the Group.

In compliance of the regulatory requirement, the reinsurance agreements are duly submitted with
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan on an annual basis.

35.2 Risk management framework - Life Insurance

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both. This section
summarises these risks and the way the Group manages them.

35.2.1 Life Insurance risk
35.2.1.1Individual Life (Unit Linked Policies, Universal Life Policies and Traditional Policies)

This section discusses the exposure of insurance risk to the Group under Life Participating, Life
Non-participating and Investment Linked statutory funds and the process adopted by the Group to
manage these risks.

The risk underwritten is mainly death and sometimes disability and/or critical iliness. The risk of death
and disability will vary from region to region. The Group may get exposed to poor risks due to:

- Unexpected experience in terms of claim severity or frequency. This can be a result of anti-selection,
fraudulent claims, a catastrophe or poor persistency.

- Additionally, the risk of poor persistency may result in the Group being unable to recover expenses
incurred at policy acquisition.

The Group manages these risks through its:

- Pricing:
All products of this nature are designed by the Actuarial Department along with input from relevant
sales team members. Profit testing is conducted for all new products and it is also reviewed by
the Appointed Actuary. Embedded value analysis is conducted on a quarterly basis to ensure
reasonableness of premiums charged. Additionally, the Group reserves the right to review the
charges deductible under the contracts, thus limiting the risk of under-pricing.

- Underwriting:
Adequate underwriting policies and controls have been put in place which cover various aspects like
health, location, nature of work of the insured etc. before issuance of policy. Appropriate underwriting
authority limits have been assigned to individual underwriters by the underwriting committee.
Furthermore, Underwriting & Reinsurance Committee reviews the underwriting performance of the
Group on a quarterly basis.
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- Reinsurance:
The Group has entered into both excess of loss and quota share reinsurance agreements covering
its individual life products and supplementary riders. Since the Group has liaison with the reputed
reinsurers in the world, it does not only limit the insurance risks but also the credit risk associated
with them. Underwriting & Reinsurance Committee reviews, every quarter, the performance of the
treaties to ensure that sound reinsurance arrangements are in place.

- Claims handling policy:
The Group through its claims-handling policies has procedures and controls in place to ensure that
payment of any fraudulent claims is avoided. Detailed investigation of all apparently doubtful claims
(particularly of high amounts) is conducted. Moreover, Claims committee has assigned claims
process authority limits for processing of claims. Claims committee meets on a quarterly basis to
review the claims departments’ performance and ensures that adequate claims controls are in place.

- Persistency:
The Group applies controls to curb mis-selling to customers. Persistency for each product, branch
and partner bank is closely monitored by the Group and remedial actions are taken immediately upon
identifying when persistency level for a distribution channel drops below a certain threshold. Continuous
efforts are made to increase and/or maintain the persistency levels for all distribution channels.

- Concentration Risk:
The Group has a good spread of business throughout the country thereby ensuring diversification
of geographical risks.

a) Frequency and severity of claims

The Group measures concentration of risk by its exposure to catastrophic events. Concentration
of risk as a result of geographical area is not a factor of concern due to spread of risks across
different parts of the country. To mitigate risk accumulation resulting from catastrophic events, the
Group maintains a catastrophe reinsurance cover which ensures that the Group’s liability in respect
of catastrophic events remains within reasonable limits.

In order to cover it's mortality risk, the Group makes adequate deductions from the insurance
contracts. The Group manages these risks through its systematic underwriting processes and
adequate reinsurance arrangements.

The table below presents the concentration of insured benefits across five bands of insured benefits
per individual life assured. The benefit insured figures are shown gross and net of the reinsurance
contracts described above.

The amounts presented are showing total exposure of the Group including exposure in respect of
riders attached to the main policies.

Individual Life Participating

Benefits assured per life

Assured at the end of 2020
Total benefits assured

Before reinsurance After reinsurance

Rupees (Rupees in ‘000) % (Rupees in ‘000) %

0 -200,000 74,437 1.54% 73,987 2.10%
200,001 - 400,000 227,589 4.71% 226,876 6.44%
400,001 - 800,000 541,592 11.21% 517,403 14.70%
800,001 - 1,000,000 308,023 6.37% 278,346 7.91%
More than 1,000,000 3,680,459 76.17% 2,423,753 68.85%
Total 4,832,100 100.00% 3,520,365 100.00%
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Benefits assured per life

Assured at the end of 2019
Total benefits assured

Before reinsurance After reinsurance

Rupees (Rupees in ‘000) % (Rupees in ‘000) %

0 -200,000 83,577 1.53% 83,527 2.10%
200,001 - 400,000 254,887 4.66% 254,365 6.38%
400,001 - 800,000 590,152 10.79% 565,158 14.19%
800,001 - 1,000,000 340,224 6.22% 308,472 7.74%
More than 1,000,000 4,199,969 76.80% 2,772,312 69.59%
Total 5,468,809 100.00% 3,983,834 100.00%

Individual Life Non - Participating

Benefits assured per life
Assured at the end of 2020
Total benefits assured

Before reinsurance After reinsurance

Rupees (Rupees in ‘000) % (Rupees in ‘000) %

0 -200,000 253,647 1.21% 250,948 1.87%
200,001 - 400,000 1,029,936 4.90% 1,025,352 7.65%
400,001 - 800,000 2,978,057 14.17% 2,918,606 21.79%
800,001 - 1,000,000 1,637,651 7.79% 1,471,629 10.99%
More than 1,000,000 15,122,050 71.93% 7,729,166 57.70%
Total 21,021,341 100.00% 13,395,701 100.00%

Benefits assured per life

Assured at the end of 2019
Total benefits assured

Before reinsurance After reinsurance

Rupees (Rupees in ‘000) % (Rupees in ‘000) %

0-200,000 274,158 1.21% 273,822 1.91%
200,001 - 400,000 1,109,473 4.89% 1,105,694 7.71%
400,001 - 800,000 3,099,765 13.66% 3,041,516 21.20%
800,001 - 1,000,000 1,545,420 6.81% 1,461,131 10.19%
More than 1,000,000 16,668,773 73.44% 8,462,314 58.99%
Total 22,697,589 100.00% 14,344,477 100.00%

Investment Linked

Benefits assured per life

Assured at the end of 2020
Total benefits assured

Before reinsurance After reinsurance

Rupees (Rupees in ‘000) % (Rupees in ‘000) %

0-200,000 490,903 2.40% 486,172 5.38%
200,001 - 400,000 821,675 4.03% 800,492 8.86%
400,001 - 800,000 2,022,761 9.91% 1,811,462 20.05%
800,001 - 1,000,000 1,130,560 5.54% 816,591 9.04%
More than 1,000,000 15,947,291 78.12% 5,122,171 56.67%
Total 20,413,190 100.00% 9,036,888 100.00%
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Benefits assured per life

Assured at the end of 2019
Total benefits assured

Before reinsurance After reinsurance

Ru pees (Rupees in ‘000) % (Rupees in ‘000) %

0 - 200,000 326,101 1.71% 324,129 4.02%
200,001 - 400,000 610,021 3.20% 602,774 7.48%
400,001 - 800,000 1,698,788 8.91% 1,547,748 19.21%
800,001 - 1,000,000 966,078 5.07% 723,230 8.98%
More than 1,000,000 15,458,103 81.11% 4,857,480 60.30%
Total 19,059,091 100.00% 8,055,361 100.00%

b) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium receipts

Uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium receipts for long - term unit
linked and universal life insurance contracts arises from the unpredictability of long-term changes in
overall levels of mortality and variability in policyholder’s behavior (this impacts primarily persistency).

Process used to decide on assumptions

Mortality: The expected mortality is assumed at 85% of 1975-80 US SOA Select and Ultimate
Mortality Table.

Persistency: A periodic analysis of the Group’s recent and historic experience is performed and
persistency is calculated by applying statistical methods. Persistency rates vary by products and
more importantly the sales distribution channel.

Expense levels and inflation: A periodic study is conducted on the Group’s current business
expenses and future projections to calculate per policy expenses. Expense inflation is assumed
in line with assumed investment return.

Investment returns: The investment returns assumptions are based on assets backing the portfolio.

d) Change in assumptions

There has been no change in assumptions.

35.2.1.2Group Life

The main risk written by the Group under the Group Life business is mortality. The Group is exposed
to the risk of unexpected claim severity or frequency. This can be a result of writing business with
higher than expected mortality (such as mining or other hazardous industries), writing high cover
amounts without adequate underwriting, and difficulty of verification of claims, fraudulent claims or
a catastrophe. The Group also faces risk such as that of under-pricing to acquire business in a
competitive environment and of non-receipt of premium in due time.

The Group manages these risks through its:

Pricing and Underwriting:

All products of this nature are prepared by the Group’s Underwriting Department along with input
from relevant sales team members which is then reviewed by the Appointed Actuary.

Pricing is done in line with the actual experience of the Group. The premium charged takes into
account the actual historical experience as well as the future expected mortality, considering
various characteristics of the client.
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At the same time, due caution is applied in writing business in areas of high probability of terrorism.
The Group ensures writing business with good geographical spread and tries to maintain a
controlled exposure to large groups which generally have poor exposure.

Also, Underwriting and Reinsurance Committee reviews the underwriting performance on a
quarterly basis and tracks the adequacy of premium charged.

- Reinsurance:

Reinsurance agreements are in place to limit the mortality risk exposure. The Group also has
a catastrophe cover reinsurance agreement covering group life business. Underwriting and
Reinsurance Committee reviews every quarter the performance of the treaties.

- Claims handling policy:

The Group through its claims-handling policies has procedures and controls in place to ensure
that payment of any fraudulent claims is avoided. Detailed investigation of all material and doubtful
claims is conducted. Moreover, Claims committee has assigned claims process authority limits
for processing of claims. Claims committee meets on a quarterly basis to review the claims
departments’ performance and ensures that adequate claims controls are in place.

- Concentration Risk:

The Group has a good spread of business throughout the country thereby ensuring diversification
of geographical risks.

a) Frequency and severity of claims

The Group measures concentration of risk by its exposure to catastrophic events. Concentration of
risk arising from geographical area is not a factor of concern due to spread of risks across various
parts of the country. To mitigate risk accumulation resulting from catastrophic events, the Group
maintains a catastrophe excess of loss reinsurance cover which ensures that the Group’s liability in
respect of catastrophic events remains within reasonable limits.

The following table presents the concentration of insured benefits across five bands of insured benefits
per individual life assured. The benefit insured figures are shown gross and net of the reinsurance
contracts described above. At year-end, none of these insurance contracts had triggered a recovery
under the reinsurance held by the Group.

The amounts presented are showing total exposure of the Group including exposure in respect of
riders attached to the main policies.

Group Life

Benefits assured per life

Assured at the end of 2020
Total benefits assured

Before reinsurance After reinsurance

Rupees (Rupees in ‘000) % (Rupees in ‘000) %

0-500,000 39,287,298 5.82% 37,885,337 7.10%
500,001-1,000,000 49,750,410 7.37% 47,975,074 8.99%
1,000,001-1,500,000 82,557,329 12.23% 79,611,284 14.92%
1,500,001-2,000,000 50,695,466 7.51% 48,886,406 9.16%
2,000,001-2,500,000 41,852,448 6.20% 40,358,950 7.56%
More than 2,500,000 410,896,536 60.87% 278,968,633 52.27%
Total 675,039,487 100.00% 533,685,684 100.00%
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Benefits assured per life

Assured at the end of 2019
Total benefits assured

Before reinsurance After reinsurance

Rupees (Rupees in ‘000) % (Rupees in ‘000) %

0-500,000 19,650,233 5.82% 19,650,233 7.09%
500,001-1,000,000 24,883,542 7.37% 24,883,542 8.98%
1,000,001-1,500,000 41,292,499 12.23% 41,292,499 14.90%
1,500,001-2,000,000 25,356,228 7.51% 25,356,228 9.15%
2,000,001-2,500,000 20,933,238 6.20% 20,933,238 7.55%
More than 2,500,000 205,517,124 60.87% 144,987,085 52.32%
Total 337,632,864 100.00% 277,102,825 100.00%

b) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future benefits payments and premium receipts

Other than conducting a liability adequacy for unearned premium reserve, there is no need to
estimate mortality for future years because of the short duration of the contracts.

c) Process used to decide on assumptions

Where data is sufficient to be statistically credible, the statistics generated by the data is assigned
appropriate credibility factors to account for the Group’s experience.

d) Changes in assumptions
There has been no material change in assumptions.
e) Sensitivity analysis
The table below shows the level of respective variation in liabilities for change in each assumption
while holding all other assumptions constant.
Change in Increase in
variable Liability 2020

(Rupees in ‘000)

Worsening of mortality rates for risk policies 10% 5,252,004
Increase in reporting lag 10% 5,252,004

35.2.1.3Accident & Health
The products in this fund provide cover against accidental death, disability, sickness and critical illness
and are mainly offered as yearly renewable plans. The Group may be exposed to the risk of unexpected
claim severity or frequency. This can be a result of fraudulent claims and catastrophic event.
The Group manages these risks through its:

- Pricing and Underwriting:

Products of this nature are prepared by the Actuarial department along with input from relevant
sales team members which is then reviewed by the Appointed Actuary.

Pricing is done after analysing the actual experience of the group as well as future expectations.
The rates are certified by the Appointed Actuary.

Also, Underwriting Committee reviews the underwriting performance of the Group on a quarterly basis.
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- Claims handling policy:

The Group has procedures in place to ensure that payment of any fraudulent claims is avoided.
Detailed investigation of all material and apparently doubtful claims is conducted.

- Reinsurance:

The Group has reinsurance arrangement in place covering A&H business; the treaty’s results are
reviewed by the Underwriting and Reinsurance Committee on a quarterly basis.

- Concentration Risk:

The Group has a good spread of business throughout the country thereby ensuring diversification
of geographical risks.

a) Frequency and severity of claims

The Group measures concentration of risk by its exposure to catastrophic events. Concentration
of risk arising from geographical area is not a factor of concern due to spread of risks across
various parts of the country.

The following table presents the concentration of insured benefits across five bands of insured
benefits. The benefit insured figures are shown gross and net of the reinsurance contracts
described above.

The amounts presented are showing total exposure of the Group including exposure in respect
of riders attached to the main policies.

Individual Accident and Health

Benefits assured per life
Assured at the end of 2020

Total benefits assured

Before reinsurance After reinsurance

Rupees (Rupees in ‘000) % (Rupees in ‘000) %

0 -200,000 1,242 0.01% 1,242 0.01%
200,001 - 400,000 610,905 3.24% 610,905 4.20%
400,001 - 800,000 1,406,150 7.45% 1,406,150 9.67%
800,001 - 1,000,000 721,820 3.82% 721,320 4.96%
More than 1,000,000 16,140,257 85.48% 11,805,769 81.16%
Total 18,880,374 100.00% 14,545,386 100.00%

Benefits assured per life
Assured at the end of 2019

Total benefits assured

Before reinsurance After reinsurance

Rupees (Rupees in ‘000) % (Rupees in ‘000) %

0-200,000 1,269 0.02% 1,269 0.02%
200,001 - 400,000 897,855 11.35% 897,605 14.32%
400,001 - 800,000 676,320 8.55% 677,820 10.82%
800,001 - 1,000,000 541,900 6.85% 1,020,900 16.29%
More than 1,000,000 5,796,036 73.24% 3,669,768 58.55%
Total 7,913,380 100.00% 6,267,362 100.00%
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b) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future benefits payments and premium receipts

Other than conducting a liability adequacy for Unexpired Risk Reserves (URR), there is no need
to estimate mortality for future years because of the short duration of the contracts.

c) Process used to decide on assumptions

The assumptions are set using the data available.

d) Changes in assumptions
There has been no material change in the assumptions.
35.2.1.4Management of takaful risk and financial risk

The Group is responsible for managing contracts that result in the transfer of Takaful and Financial Risk
from the Participant to the respective PTF. This section summarizes the risks and the way the Group
manages them, as part of the Group’s Window Takaful Operations.

Takaful Risk
The PTF issues Takaful contracts that are classified in the following segments:

- Individual Family Takaful
- Group Family Takaful
- Group Health Takaful

35.2.1.4.1Individual Family Takaful

These risks are managed along similar lines as explained for individual life unit linked and universal life
policies.

a) Frequency and severity of claims

Concentration of risk is not a factor of concern due to spread of risks across various parts of
the country. However, undue concentration by amounts could have an impact on the severity
of benefit payments on a portfolio basis. However, a risk of concentration of risk on any one
Participant of the PTF still exists. The Group caters to this risk by entering into suitable Retakaful
arrangements. The Group charges for mortality risk (credited to the PTF) on a monthly basis for
all Takaful contracts without fixed term.

Moreover, the Group manages these risks through its underwriting strategy and the results are
revised quarterly by the Underwriting and Reinsurance Committee.

The table below presents the concentration of covered benefits across five bands of benefits covered.
The benefit covered figures are shown gross and net of the retakaful contracts described above.

The amounts presented are showing total exposure of the PTF including exposure in respect of
riders attached to the main policies.
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Benefits assured per life
Assured at the end of 2020

Total benefits assured

Before reinsurance After reinsurance

Rupees (Rupees in ‘000) % (Rupees in ‘000) %

0 -200,000 229,888 0.97% 229,870 2.36%
200,001 - 400,000 1,389,555 5.88% 1,388,080 14.27%
400,001 - 800,000 2,929,269 12.38% 2,769,298 28.47%
800,001 - 1,000,000 2,457,890 10.39% 1,457,406 14.98%
More than 1,000,000 16,645,219 70.38% 3,884,077 39.92%
Total 23,651,821 100.00% 9,728,731 100.00%

Benefits assured per life
Assured at the end of 2019

Total benefits assured

Before reinsurance After reinsurance

Rupees (Rupees in ‘000) % (Rupees in ‘000) %

0-200,000 126,596 1.00% 126,596 2.35%
200,001 - 400,000 641,834 5.05% 641,834 11.92%
400,001 - 800,000 1,527,514 12.03% 3,000,283 55.73%
800,001 - 1,000,000 1,634,911 12.88% 1,365,321 25.36%
More than 1,000,000 8,766,307 69.04% 250,012 4.64%
Total 12,697,162 100.00% 5,384,046 100.00%

b) Source of uncertainty in the estimate of future benefits payments and contributions receipts
Uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and contribution receipts for long term
takaful contracts arises from the unpredictability of long-term changes in overall levels of mortality
and variability in participants’ behavior (this primarily impacts persistency).

c) Process used to decide on assumptions

- Mortality: The expected mortality is assumed at 85% of 1975-80 US SOA Select and Ultimate
Mortality Table.

- Persistency: A periodic analysis of the Group’s recent and historic experience is performed
and persistency is calculated every month. Persistency rates vary by products and more
importantly the sales distribution channel.

- Expense levels and inflation: A periodic study is conducted on the Group’s current business
expenses and future projections to calculate per membership expenses. Expense inflation is
assumed in line with assumed investment return.

- Investment returns: The investment returns assumptions are based on the assets backing
the portfolio.

d) Changes in assumptions
There has been no change in assumptions.
e) Sensitivity analysis

The size of the fund is not material enough to enable a credible sensitivity analysis due to this
immateriality, sensitivity analysis is not conducted.
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35.2.1.4.2 Group Life Family Takaful

The main risk written by the Group is mortality. The Group may be exposed to the risk of unexpected claim
severity or frequency. This can be a result of writing business with higher than expected mortality (such
as mining or other hazardous industries), writing high cover amounts without adequate underwriting,
and difficulty of verification of claims, fraudulent claims or a catastrophe. The Group also faces risk
such as that of under-pricing to acquire business in a competitive environment and of non-receipt of
contribution in due time.

The Group manages these risks through its:
a) Pricing and Underwriting:

All products of this nature are prepared by the Group Underwriting Department along with input
from relevant sales team members which is then reviewed by the Appointed Actuary.

Pricing is done in line with the actual experience of the Group. The contribution charged takes into
account the actual experience of the client and the nature of mortality exposure the group faces.

Atthe same time, due caution is applied in writing business in areas of high probability of terrorism.
The Group ensures writing business with good geographical spread and tries to maintain a
controlled exposure to large groups which generally have poor exposure.

Furthermore, the Group also maintains various MIS that are shared with relevant management
to track the adequacy of the contribution charged.

Also, Underwriting & Reinsurance Committee reviews the underwriting performance on a
quarterly basis.

b) Retakaful:

Retakaful agreements are in place to limit the mortality exposure. Underwriting & Reinsurance
Committee reviews every quarter the performance of the treaties to ensure that adequate
retakaful coverage is in place.

c) Claims handling policy:

The Group has procedures in place to ensure that payment of any fraudulent claims is avoided.
Detailed investigation of all material and apparently doubtful claims is conducted. Moreover,
Claims committee has assigned claims process authority limits for processing of claims. Claims
committee meets on a quarterly basis to review the claims department’s performance and to
make sure that adequate claims controls are in place.

d) Frequency and severity of claims:

The Group measures concentration of risk by its exposure to catastrophic events. Concentration
of risk arising from geographical area is not a factor of concern due to spread of risks across
various parts of the country. To mitigate risk accumulation resulting from catastrophic events, the
Group maintains a catastrophe excess of loss retakaful agreement which protects the waqf fund
from exposure to the catastrophic events.
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Covered at the end of 2020

Total takaful benefits

e)

9)

h)

Worsening of mortality rates 10%

Increase in reporting lag 10%
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Before retakaful After retakaful

Rupees (Rupees in ‘000) % (Rupees in ‘000) %
0-500,000 19,536,800 35.22% 19,536,800 51.27%
500,001-1.000,000 15,408,750 27.78% 10,597,000 27.81%
1,000,001-1,500,000 5,055,647 9.11% 2,747,132 7.21%
1,500,001-2,000,000 6,572,719 11.85% 2,465,236 6.47%
2,000,001-2,500,000 3,287,343 5.93% 1,540,450 4.04%
More than 2,500,000 5,612,590 10.11% 1,220,920 3.20%
55,473,849 100.00% 38,107,538 100.00%

Before retakaful After retakaful

Rupees (Rupees in ‘000) % (Rupees in ‘000) %
0-500,000 807,575 6.59% 807,575 6.71%
500,001-1.000,000 59,504 0.49% 52,004 0.43%
1,000,001-1,500,000 1,243,401 10.15% 1,243,401 10.33%
1,500,001-2,000,000 1,467,182 11.98% 1,371,182 11.40%
2,000,001-2,500,000 2,015,003 16.45% 1,926,503 16.01%
More than 2,500,000 6,657,619 54.35% 6,631,119 55.11%
12,250,284 100.00% 12,031,784 100.00%

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future benefits payments and contribution
receipts:

Other than conducting a liability adequacy for unearned contribution reserve, there is no need to
estimate mortality for future years because of the short duration of the contracts.

Process used to decide on assumptions

Where data is sufficient to be statistically credible, the statistics generated by the data is assigned
appropriate credibility factors to account for the group’s experience.

Changes in assumptions
There has been no material change in assumptions.
Sensitivity analysis
The table below shows the level of respective variation in liabilities for change in each assumption
while holding all other assumptions constant.
Change in Increase in
variable Liability 2020
(Rupees in ‘000)

559,118
559,118
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35.2.1.4.3 Group Health Takaful

The main risk written by the Group is morbidity. The Group may be exposed to the risk of unexpected
claim severity or frequency. This can be a result of high exposure in a particular geographical region,
medical expense inflation, fraudulent claims and catastrophic event. The Group potentially faces the risk
of lack of adequate claims control (such as for very large groups). The Group also faces a risk of under-
pricing to acquire business in a competitive environment and of non-receipt of contribution in due time.

The Group manages these risks through its:
a) Pricing and Underwriting:

Products of this nature are prepared by Group Underwriting Department along with input from relevant
sales team members and Actuarial Department which is then reviewed by the Appointed Actuary.

Pricing is done in line with the actual experience of the Group. The contribution charged takes
into account the actual experience of the client and the nature of mortality and morbidity exposure
the group faces. The rates are certified by the Appointed Actuary for large groups.

At the same time, due caution is applied in writing business in areas of high probability of terrorism.
The Group ensures writing business with good geographical spread and tries to maintain a
controlled exposure to large groups which generally have poor exposure.

Furthermore, the Group also maintains various MIS that are shared with relevant management
to track the adequacy of the contribution charged.

Also, Underwriting & Reinsurance Committee reviews the underwriting performance of the Group
on a quarterly basis.

b) Claims handling policy:

The Group has procedures in place to ensure that payment of any fraudulent claims is avoided.
Detailed investigation of all apparently doubtful claims (particularly of high amounts) is conducted.
Also, the claims are reviewed and managed by technical staff and doctors while an on-site
monitoring and checking is performed.

The Group has pre-determined charges for certain illnesses with its panel hospitals, and to keep
a check on medical inflation, it continues to negotiate these rates. The portfolio has a spread
across various geographical regions. On the claims handling side, the Group ensures that
payment of any fraudulent claims is avoided.

Moreover, Claims committee has assigned claims process authority limits for processing of claims.
Claims committee meets on a quarterly basis to review the claims department’s performance and
make sure that adequate claims controls are in place.

c) Concentration Risk:

The Group has a good spread of business throughout the country thereby ensuring diversification
across geographical regions.

d) Frequency and severity of claims

The Group measures concentration of risk by its exposure to catastrophic events. Concentration
of risk arising from geographical area is not a factor of concern due to spread of risks across
various parts of the country.

Increase in claims severity due to medical inflation is a risk which is being strictly monitored
by the Group through annual claims studies and trend analysis. Such trend analysis is also
incorporated in Group Health takaful pricing.
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e) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future benefits payments and contribution receipts

Other than conducting a liability adequacy for unearned contribution reserve, there is no need to
estimate mortality for future years because of the short duration of the contracts.

f) Process used to decide on assumptions

Where data is sufficient to be statistically credible, the statistics generated by the data is assigned
appropriate credibility factors to account for the group’s experience.

An investigation into group’s experience is performed periodically, and statistical methods are
used to adjust the rates to a best estimate of morbidity. Where data is sufficient to be statistically
credible, the statistics generated by the data are assigned appropriate credibility factors to
account for the group’s experience.

g) Changes in assumptions
There has been no material change in assumptions.
35.2.1.4.4 Concentration of insurance risk

A concentration of risk may arise from a single insurance contract issued to a particular type of
policyholder, within a geographical location or to types of commercial business. The Group minimises
its exposure to significant losses by obtaining reinsurance from foreign reinsurers.

To optimise benefits from the principle of average and law of large numbers, geographical spread of
risk is of extreme importance. There are a number of parameters which are significant in assessing
the accumulation of risks e.g. financial underwriting ensuring a reasonable relationship between
the income and insurance amount of insured, determination of insurance amount through some
mechanism which precludes individual choices and anti-selection.

The concentration of risk by type of contracts is summarised below by reference to liabilities.

Gross sum insured Reinsurance / Retakaful

(Rupees in million)

Life (participating) 4,832 5,469 1,312 1,485 3,520 3,984
Life (non-participating) — Individual 21,021 22,698 7,625 8,354 13,396 14,344
Life (non-participating) — Group 675,039 337,633 141,353 60,530 533,686 277,103
Investment Linked 20,413 19,059 11,376 11,004 9,037 8,055
Accident & Health — Individual 18,880 7,913 4,335 1,645 14,545 6,268
Family Takaful - Individual 23,652 12,697 13,923 7,313 9,729 5,384
Family Takaful - Group 55,474 12,250 17,366 218 38,108 12,032
Fire and property damage 43,085 132,651 42,878 132,206 207 445
Marine, aviation and transport 19,437 19,711 15,550 11,826 3,887 7,885
Motor 58,000 645 57,995 95 5 550
Health 3,188 2,504 - - 3,188 2,504
Miscellaneous 45172 16,704 45,136 16,687 36 17
Window Takaful Operations

- Fire and property damage 8,744 3,474 8,569 1,189 175 2,285
Window Takaful Operations

- Marine, aviation and transport 8,000 1,800 7,200 90 800 1,710
Window Takaful Operations - Motor 52 44 47 39 5 5
Window Takaful Operations - Health 670 1,889 - - 670 1,889
Window Takaful Operations

- Miscellaneous 2,716 552 2,711 175 5 377

1,008,375 597,693 377,376 252,856 630,999 344,837

180 |IGI Holdings Limited



For The Year Ended December 31, 2020

35.2.1.4.5The table below sets out the concentration of insurance contract liabilities by type of contract for the Group:

Gross liabilities Gross assets Net liabilities / (assets)

(Rupees in million)

Fire and property damage 2,799,138 1,782,434 2,693,783 1,686,029 105,355 96,405
Marine, aviation and transport 603,310 458,270 491,379 354,835 111,931 103,435
Motor 1,367,163 1,300,780 783,352 602,623 583,811 698,157
Health 369,016 335,926 153,746 103,967 215270 231,959
Miscellaneous 1,218,375 990,930 1,105,416 841,032 112,959 149,898
Life participating 1,828,222 1,985,066 2,321,048 1,985,066  (492,826) -
Life non-participating (individual) 6,039,716 6,651,618 6,259,975 6,651,618  (220,259) -
Life non-participating (group) 508,705 476,296 511,011 476,296 (2,306) -
Investment linked business 6,973,693 6,063,115 6,815,239 6,063,115 158,454 -
Accident and health

business (individual) 38,372 34,632 45,282 34,632 (6,910) -
Accident and health business (group) 295,050 423,452 318,638 423,452 (23,588) -
Pension business fund 178,490 154,271 186,812 154,271 (8,322) -
Family Takaful - individual 3,087,111 2,248,967 2,792,129 2,248,967 294,982 -
Family Takaful - accident

& health individual 2,443 - 1,915 - 528 -
Family Takaful - group 11,055 39,250 24,739 39,250 (13,684) -
Family Takaful - health (17,720) 55,584 26,011 55,584  (43,731)

25,302,139 23,000,591 24,530,475 21,720,737 771,664 1,279,854

35.2.1.4.6 Unclaimed insurance benefit

35.2.2

Circular 11 of 2014 dated May 19, 2014 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) has established requirement for all insurers to disclose age wise break up of unclaimed
insurance benefits in accordance with format prescribed in the annexure to the said circular.

The unclaimed benefits is described in the circular as the amounts which have become payable in
accordance with the terms and conditions of an insurance policy but have not been claimed by the
policyholders or their beneficiaries. Such unclaimed amounts may fall into the following categories:

Age-wise Breakup
Total 7to12 Beyond 36
Amount months months
(Rupees in ‘000)
Unclaimed maturity benefits 2,932 772 615 952 397 196
Unclaimed death benefits - - = - 5 -

Unclaimed disability benefits - - - - - -
Claims not encashed 47,052 5,747 5,586 12,637 5,939 17,143

Other unclaimed benefits - - 5 - - .
Total 49,984 6,519 6,201 13,589 6,336 17,339

Uncertainty in the estimation of future claims payment

Claims on general insurance contracts are payable on a claim occurrence basis. The Group is liable for
all insured events that occur during the term of the insurance contract.

An estimated amount of the claim is recorded immediately on intimation to the Group. The estimation of
the amount is based on the amount notified by the policy holder, management judgment or preliminary
assessment by the independent surveyor appointed for this purpose. The initial estimates include
expected settlement cost of the claims. For the estimation of provision of claims incurred but not reported
(IBNR), the Group uses historical experience factor based on analysis of the past years claim reporting
pattern.
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35.2.3

35.24

There are several variable factors which affect the amount and timing of recognized claim liabilities.
However, the management considers that uncertainty about the amount and timing of claim payments
is generally resolved within a year. The Group takes all reasonable measures to mitigate the factors
affecting the amount and timing of claim settlements. However, uncertainty prevails with estimated
claim liabilities and it is likely that final settlement of these liabilities may be different from recognised
amounts.

Key assumptions

The principal assumption underlying the liability estimation of IBNR and premium / contribution
deficiency reserve is that the Group’s future claim development will follow similar historical pattern for
occurrence and reporting. The management uses qualitative judgment to assess the extent to which
past occurrence and reporting pattern will not apply in future. The judgment includes external factors
e.g. treatment of one-off occurrence claims, changes in market factors, economic conditions, etc.

Sensitivities
Non-life insurance

As the Group enters into short term insurance contracts, it does not assume any significant impact of
changes in market conditions on unexpired risks. However, some results of sensitivity testing are set
out below:

Effect of 10% Effect of 10%
increase in claims decrease in claims

Consolidated Consolidated
statement of Equity statement of Equity
profit or loss profit or loss

(Rupees in ‘000)

Fire and property damage (6,943) (6,943) 6,943 6,943
Marine, aviation and transport (7,974) (7,974) 7,974 7974
Motor (38,120) (38,120) 38,120 38,120
Health (21,540) (21,540) 21,540 21,540
Miscellaneous (3,295) (3,295) 3,295 3,295
Window Takaful Operations (26,094) (26,094) 26,094 26,094

(103,966) (103,966) 103,966 103,966

Life insurance

The liabilities under Universal Life, Unit Linked, Group Life, Group Accident and Health, Individual
Accident and Health and Pension business are not dependent on assumptions related to mortality,
persistency, expense or interest rates because the liabilities under these lines of business are either
based on actual account values or unearned premium reserve. For the traditional endowment plans,
no sensitivity testing is carried out because the liability basis prescribed by the regulations are too
conservative and the liability under these plans are less than 5% of total liabilities.

Claims development tables

The following table shows the development of fire claims over a period of time. The disclosure goes
back to the period when the earliest material claim arose for which there is still uncertainty about the
amount and timing of the claims payments. For other classes of business the uncertainty about the
amount and timings of claims payment is usually resolved within a year.
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Analysis on gross basis

2017 i 2|02c?_ Total
Accident year (If'lltéﬂRlng

R in ‘000
Estimate of ultimate claims cost: (Rupees in 000)

At end of accident year 332,103 363,401 575,330 462,385 1,593,639 3,326,858
One year later 358,703 330,493 364,402 468,609 - 1,522,207
Two years later 303,642 305,808 356,781 - - 966,231

Three years later 371,478 303,591 - - - 675,069
Four years later 371,488 - - - - 371,488
Estimate of cumulative claims 371,488 303,591 356,781 468,609 1,593,639 3,094,108
Cumulative payments to date (367,966)  (278,468)  (327,922) (293,727)  (532,125) (1,800,208)

Liability recognised in the
consolidated statement of
financial position 3,522 25123 28,859 174,882 1,061,514 1,293,900

The above effects have been worked out on the assumption that increase / decrease in net claims
expense pertains to individual segment in isolation.

The following table shows the development of claims over a period of time on gross basis for group life
and individual life business:

Accident Year 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019 | 2020

(Rupees in ‘000)

Group Life
Estimate of Ultimate Claims Costs:
At the end of the year 25,326 67,216 79,587 86,210 548,677
1 year later 30,345 79,738 90,509 176,576 -
2 years later 30,345 80,238 90,509 - -
3 years later 30,345 80,238 - - -
4 years later 30,345 - - - -
Current estimates of cumulative claim 30,345 80,238 90,509 176,576 548,677
Cumulative payments to date 29,215 74,720 77,603 144,917 290,141
Liability recognized in statement of

financial position 1,130 5,518 12,906 31,658 258,536
Individual Life
Estimate of Ultimate Claims Costs:
At the end of the year 107,332 107,381 62,297 108,538 195,184
1 year later 125,586 136,827 101,800 122,332 -
2 years later 126,667 141,881 101,800 - -
3 years later 126,679 142,843 - - -
4 years later 126,679 - - - -
Current estimates of cumulative claim 126,679 142,843 101,800 122,332 195,184
Cumulative payments to date 120,942 134,200 78,953 88,264 99,003

Liability recognised in statement of
financial position 5,736 8,643 22,847 34,068 96,181
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35.3 Financial risk
(i) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to
changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and market prices.

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to interest / mark-up rate risk in respect of the following:

Interest / mark-up bearing Non-interest / mark-up bearing

[IGEEESY  Maturity — Maturity Maturity ~ Maturity
Rates uptoone afterone  Subtotal uptoone afterone  Sub total
year year year year

(Rupees in ‘000)

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances 300%1012.75% | 1,205,171 - 1,205,171 54,271 - 54271 1,269,442
Investments 6.00%1t06.75% | 11,842,570 4219104 16,121,674 33874491 | 39674443 73,548,934 55,796,117
Loans secured against life

insurance policies 9.00% - 11.00% 17,811 - 17,811 - - 17,811
Long-term deposits - - 17498 17498 17498
Insurance / takaful / reinsurance

| retakaful receivables - - - 2,080,974 - 2,080,974 2080974
Accrued income on investments

and deposits - - - 107,205 - 107,205 107,205
Reinsurance recoveries against

outstanding claims - - - 2,165,642 - 2,165,642 2,165,642
\Wakalah fees receivable - - - 57,326 - 57,326 57,326
L oans, advances and

other receivables 1,188,175 1,188,175 1,188,175

13,219,552 4279104 17,498,656 39,528,084 39,691,941 79,220,025 62,844,190
Financial liabilities

Provision for outstanding

claims [including IBNR] - - - 3,273,288 - 3,273,288 3,273,288
Amounts due to other

insurers / reinsurers - - - 1,651,448 - 1,651,448 1,651,448
Trade and other payables - - - 2,351,086 - 2,351,086 2,351,086
Short term loans 7.3%t07.65% 2,800,696 - 2,800,696 - - - 2,800,696
Long term loan 7.28%107.67% - 300,000 300,000 - - - 300,000
Current portion of long

termloan and
lease liabilties against

right-of-use assets 539,528 - 539,528 - - - 530,528
Unclaimed dividend - - - 30,879 - 30879 30,879
Lease liabilities against

right-of-use assets 7.85%108.00% - 226,179 226,179 - - - 226,179

3,340,224 526,179 3,866,403 7,306,701 - 7,306,701 11,173,104

9,879,328 3,752,926 13,632,253 32221383 39,691,941 71913324 51,671,086
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Interest
Rates

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances 5%-12.75%
Investments 8.25%-13.50%
Loans secured against Iife

insurance policies 9.00%- 11.00%
Long term deposits

Insurance / takaful / reinsurance
[ retakaful receivables
Accrued income on
investments and deposits
Reinsurance recoveries
against outstanding claims
Wakalah fee receivable
Loans, advances
and other receivables

Financial liabilities

Provision for outstanding
claims [including IBNR]

Amounts due to other
insurers / reinsurers

Trade and other payables

Short term loan

Long termloan

Current portion of long
ferm loan and

lease liabiliies against
right-of-use assets

Unclaimed dividend

Lease liabilties against
right-of-use assets

13.89% 0 14.16%
11.36%to 12.47%

10.55% - 12.80%

Sensitivity analysis

Interest / mark-up bearing Non-interest / mark-up bearing

Maturity ~ Maturity Maturity ~ Maturity
uptoone afterone Subtotal uptoone afterone  Sub total
year year year year
(Rupees in ‘000)

607,998 - 607,998 52,201 - 52,291 660,289
6,795,657 8,069,159 14,864,816 38401194 || 44,059,336 82,460,530 58,924,152
167,965 167,965 - - 167,965
- - 17,168 17,168 17,168
1,885,290 1,885,290 1,885,290
478,341 478341 478,341
1,012,984 1,012,984 1,012,984
119,261 119,261 119,261
- - - 1,001,166 - 1,001,166 1,001,166
7,571,620 8,069,159 15,640,779 42950527 44,076,504 87,027,031 64,266,616
2,096,866 2,096,866 2,096,866
1,379,652 1,379,652 1,379,652
- - 2,107,745 2,107,745 2,107,745
2614218 - 2614218 - - 2614218
766,665 766,665 766,665
702,805 702,805 - - 702,805
- - 30,61 30611 30611
- 158,546 158,546 - - 158,546
3,317,083 925,211 4,242,294 5,614,874 5614874 9,857,168
4,254 537 7143948 11,398,485 37335653 44,076,504 81412157 54,409,448

Interest / mark-up rate risk is the risk that value of a financial instrument or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the market interest/mark-up rates. Sensitivity to
interest / mark up rate risk arises from mismatches of financial assets and liabilities that mature or re-
price in a given period. The Group manages these mismatches through risk management strategies
where significant changes in gap position can be adjusted. Borrowing arrangements have variable rate
pricing that is dependent on the Karachi Inter Bank Offer Rate (KIBOR) as indicated in respective notes.
The table below summarises the Group’s interest rate risk as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and
shows the effects of a hypothetical 1% increase and a 1% decrease in interest rates as at the year end.
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Impact on consolidated
statement of profit or loss

As at December 31, 2020 (Rupees in 000)
Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate financial liabilities (38,664) 38,664
Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate financial assets 174,987 (174,987)

As at December 31, 2019

Cas
Cas

(b)

(c)
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h flow sensitivity - variable rate financial liabilities (42,423) 42,423
h flow sensitivity - variable rate financial assets 161,191 (161,191)
Foreign currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset or liability will fluctuate due to changes
in foreign currency rates. Foreign exchange risk arises mainly where receivables and payables
exist due to transactions in foreign currencies. As of the balance sheet date, the Group does not
have material assets or liabilities which are exposed to foreign currency risk.

Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in the market prices (other than those arising from interest / mark up rate risk or currency
risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument
or its issuer, or factors affecting all or similar financial instruments traded in the market. Group
is exposed to price risk since it has investments in quoted equity securities and mutual funds
amounting to Rs. 38,228 million (2019: Rs. 41,808 million) at the reporting date.

The Group’s strategy is to hold its strategic investments for long period of time. Thus, Group’s
management is not concerned with short term price fluctuations with respect to its strategic
investments provided that the underlying business, economic and management characteristics
of the investee remain favorable. The Group strives to maintain above average levels of
shareholders’ capital to provide a margin of safety against short term price volatility. The Group
manages price risk by monitoring exposure in quoted equity and debt securities and implementing
the strict discipline in internal risk management and investment policies.

The carrying value of investments subject to price risk are based on quoted market prices as of
the reporting date except for investments in associates which are carried under equity method of
accounting.

Market prices are subject to fluctuation and consequently the amount realised in the subsequent
sale of an investment may significantly differ from the reported market value. Furthermore,
amount realised in the sale of a particular security may be affected by the relative quantity of the
security being sold. The Group has no significant concentration of price risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The table below summarises the Group’s price risk as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 and
shows the effects of a hypothetical 10% increase and a 10% decrease in market prices as at
the year end. The selected hypothetical change does not reflect what could be considered to be
the best or worst case scenarios. Indeed, results could be worse in Group’s investment portfolio
because of the nature of markets. The impact of hypothetical change would be as follows:

Estimated Hypothetical Hypothetical
Fair value Hypothetical fair value after  |increase/(decrease) | increase(decrease)
price change hypothetical in shareholders’ in profit/ (loss)
change in prices equity before tax

2020 54,694,517 10% increase 60,163,969 5,469,452 5,469,452
10% decrease 49,225,065 (5469,452)  (5,469,452)

2019 56,749,326 10% increase 62,424,259 5,674,933 5,674,933
10% decrease 51,074,393 (5,674,933)  (5,674,933)
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(ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with its financial liabilities. To guard against the risk, the Group maintains balance of cash and
other equivalents and readily marketable securities. The maturity profile of assets and liabilities
are also monitored to ensure adequate liquidity is maintained. All financial liabilities of the Group
are short term in nature.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources
to settle its obligations in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially
disadvantageous.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date on an undiscounted

cash flow basis.

Carryin Contractual More than
amgc.mfl cash flow Upto one year one year
(Rupees in ‘000)
Provision for outstanding
claims [including IBNR] 3,273,288 3,273,288 3,273,288 -
Amount due to other insurers / reinsurers 1,651,448 1,651,448 1,651,448 -
Trade and other payables 2,351,086 2,351,086 2,351,086 -
Short term loans 2,800,696 2,800,696 2,800,696 -
Long term loans 300,000 300,000 - 300,000
Current portion of long term
loan and lease liabilities
against right-of-use assets 539,528 539,528 539,528 -
Unclaimed dividend 30,879 30,879 30,879 -
Lease liabilities against right-of-use assets 226,179 226,179 - 226,179
11,173,104 11,173,104 10,646,925 526,179
2019 |
Carryin Contractual More than
am:)}:m? cash flow Upto one year one year
(Rupees in ‘000)
Provision for outstanding claims 2,096,866 2,096,866 2,096,866
Amount due to other insurers / reinsurers 1,379,652 1,379,652 1,379,652
Trade and other payables 2,107,745 2,107,745 2,107,745
Short term loan 2,614,278 2,614,278 2,614,278 -
Long term loan 766,665 766,665 - 766,665
Current portion of long term loan and liabilities
against right-of-use assets 702,805 702,805 702,805
Unclaimed dividend 30,611 30,611 30,611 -
Lease liabilities against right-of-use assets 158,546 158,546 - 158,546
9,857,168 9,857,168 8,931,957 925,211

(iii) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail
to discharge its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Group attempts
to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures by undertaking transactions with a large
number of counterparties in various industries and by continually assessing the credit worthiness
of counterparties.

Concentration of credit risk occurs when a number of counterparties have a similar type of
business activities. As a result, any change in economic, political or other conditions would effect
their ability to meet contractual obligations in similar manner. The Group’s credit risk exposure
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is not significantly different from that reflected in the financial statements. The management
monitors and limits the Group’s exposure to credit risk through monitoring of client's exposure
and conservative estimates of provisions for doubtful assets, if any. The management is of the
view that it is not exposed to significant concentration of credit risk as its financial assets are
adequately diversified in entities of sound financial standing, covering various industrial sectors.

(Rupees in ‘000)

Cash and bank balances 1,259,442 660,289
Investments 5,484,510 5,531,745
Loans secured against life insurance policies 171,811 167,965
Long-term deposits 17,498 17,168
Amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers - unsecured 2,080,974 1,885,290
Accrued income on investments and deposits 107,205 478,341
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 2,165,642 1,012,984
Wakala fees receivable 57,326 119,261
Loans, advances and other receivables 1,188,175 1,001,166

12,532,583 10,874,209

The Group did not hold any collateral against the above during the year. The management
continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the policyholders and other insurers /
reinsurers and makes provision against those balances considered doubtful of recovery. The
movement in the provision for doubtful receivables account is shown in notes 8.2 and 8.3. The
remaining past due balances were not impaired as they relate to a number of policy holders and
other insurers / reinsurers for whom there is no recent history of default.

The credit quality of Group’s bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit
ratings as follows:

Bank deposits Egaélr:‘(g(

Short Term Long Term

Albaraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited VIS A-1 A+
Allied Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AAA
Bank Alfalah Limited VIS A-1+ AA+
Bank Al-Habib Limited PACRA A1+ AA+
Banklslami Pakistan Limited PACRA A1 A+
Bank of Punjab PACRA A1+ AA
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited VIS A-1 AA
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA
FINCA Microfinance Bank Limited PACRA A1 A
Habib Bank Limited VIS A1+ AAA
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA+
JS Bank Limited PACRA A1+ AA-
Khushali Microfinance Bank Limited VIS A1 A+
MCB Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AAA
MCB Islamic Bank Limited PACRA A-1 A
Meezan Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AA+
Mobilink Microfinance Bank Limited PACRA A1 A
National Bank of Pakistan PACRA A1+ AAA
NRSP Microfinance Bank Limited PACRA A1 A
Samba Bank Limited VIS A1 AA
Silk Bank Limited VIS A-2 A-
Soneri Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA-
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited PACRA A1+ AAA
Summit Bank Limited VIS  Not rated Not rated
Telenor Microfinance Bank Limited PACRA A-1 A
The First Microfinance Bank Limited VIS A-1 A+
U Microfinance Bank Limited VIS A1 A
United Bank Limited VIS A1+ AAA

*%

The age analysis of premiums / contributions due but unpaid, amounts due from other insurers /
reinsurers / other takaful companies / re-takaful operators and receivable from clients securities
and commodity contracts against purchase of marketable is as follows:
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(Rupees in ‘000)

Upto 1 year 1,740,670 1,604,459
1-2 years 239,476 199,174
2-3 years 122,094 58,699
Over 3 years 249,961 204,573

2,352,201 2,066,905

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors affect the group
of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Group’s total
credit exposure. The Group’s portfolio of financial assets subject to credit risk is broadly diversified
and transactions are entered into with diverse credit worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any
significant concentration of credit risk.

Sector wise analysis of premiums due but unpaid
(Rupees in ‘000)

Foods and beverages 27,093 44 295
Financial services 62,788 178,654
Pharmaceuticals 36,646 76,227
Textile and composites 77,814 160,094
Plastic industries 2,548 24,710
Engineering, Technology and Communication 68,069 83,910
Other manufacturing 424,164 159,168
Miscellaneous 428,326 386,789

1,127,448 1,113,847

The credit quality of amount due from other insurers and reinsurers can be assessed with reference
to external credit ratings as follows:

Reinsurance
recoveries
against
outstanding
claims

Prepaid
reinsurance
premium
ceded

Amount due
from other

insurers /
reinsurers

(Rupees in ‘000)

A- or above

(including PRCL) 1,034,403 1,951,034 902,471 3,887,908 2,267,444
BBB and B+ 37,772 78,341 36,237 152,350 111,977
Others 65,701 136,267 63,032 265,000 379,474
Total 1,137,876 2,165,642 1,001,740 4,305,258 2,758,895

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

International Financial Reporting Standard 13, ‘Fair Value Measurement’ requires the Group to
classify assets using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making
the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Fair value measurements using quoted price (unadjusted) in an active market for identical assets
or liabilities.

- Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

- Fair value measurement using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).
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As at December 31, 2020, the Group held the following financial instruments measured at fair value:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(Rupees in ‘000)
Assets carried at fair value

Available-for-sale investments 43,143 17,873,163 -
Fair value through other comprehensive income 33,679,732 194,759

Fair value through profit or loss - 2,903,720 -

2019 |
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets carried at fair value ez L Uy
Available-for-sale investments 86,130 15,732,701 -
Fair value through other comprehensive income 38,196,583 204,611

Fair value through profit or loss - 2,529,301 -

37 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Holding Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Holding Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefit for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Holding Company may adjust the amount of dividend
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

38 IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The World Health Organisation declared COVID-19 a global pandemic in March 2020. Like other
parts of the world, Pakistan also went into lockdown which impacted the economies and businesses in
different facets globally. After the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group had invoked necessary measures
to ensure the safety and health of its staff and an uninterrupted service to its clients. These include
implementing mandatory adherence to the recommended standard operating procedures within the
Group. The remote work capabilities for critical staff have been assessed to make sure they are fully
protected using virtual private network (“VPN”) connections. Further, the Group has also ensured that
its remote access systems are sufficiently resilient to any unwanted cyber-attacks.

The Group has made an assessment in order to evaluate the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the
business, operations and profitability of the Group as well as on the going concern assessment of the
Group. The result of evaluation is as follows:

- The Investment Business segment of the Group will not be impacted significantly as the major
investments of the Group are strategic investments. The investment portfolio is subject to risks
of impairment and non-payment of dividend in case COVID-19 pandemic impacts operations,
profitability and liquidity profile of the investee companies. The management continuously
monitors these investments. As a result of a high-level assessment, the management has not
identified any material adverse impact on the business continuity of the investee companies due
to COVID-19 pandemic situation.

- The management has evaluated that it does not foresee any going concern risk in Life and Non-
Life Insurance segment due to the pandemic and they believe that segment’s operations, financial
position and results will not be impacted significantly as the operations are gradually returning
to normal and the market is still showing a positive outlook and upward trend subsequent to the
financial year-end.
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- In Brokerage Business segment, segment’s operations were not disrupted as it continued its
client dealings through telephone and IT platforms. Further, following decline in PSX index
significantly towards the end of March 2020, Pakistan’s stock market saw a significant growth of
around 60.47% which significantly improved the segment’s operations due to increased activity
by its clients. The positive momentum in the stock market has resulted in an increase in segment
earnings. We have been informed by the management that it has performed an evaluation and it
does not foresee any going concern risk due to the pandemic and they believe that the segment’s
operations, financial position and results will not be impacted significantly as the market is still
showing a positive outlook and upward trend subsequent to the financial year-end.

Based on above evaluation, the Group management does not foresee any going concern risk in
the Group due to the pandemic and they believe that the Group’s operations, financial position and
results will not be impacted significantly as the operations are gradually returning to normal and the
market is still showing a positive outlook and upward trend subsequent to the financial year-end.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures has been rearranged or reclassified, wherever necessary. There has been no
significant reclassification during the year.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on March 18, 2021 by the Board
of Directors of the Holding Company.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company has proposed a final dividend out of its profits for the
year ended December 31, 2020 of Rs. 5.00 per share (2019: Rs. 3.00 per share), amounting to Rs.
713.153 million (2019: Rs 427.892 million) in its meeting held on Mrach 18, 2021 for the approval of
the members at the annual general meeting to be held on April 29,2021. The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 do not include the effect of these appropriations
which will be accounted for in the consolidated financial statements for the year ending December
31, 2021.

S by

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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Notice of the Annual General Meeting
of IGI Holdings Limited

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 67th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of IGI Holdings Limited (the Company) will
be held on Thursday, the 29th day of April, 2021 at 12:30 p.m. via video-link facility.

Please note that due to the recent surge in COVID-19 reported cases and in order to control the spread of the virus, the
Company shall hold its AGM only through video-link facility. Members are requested to attend the meeting through video-
link facility managed by the Company as per the instructions given below in the notes section.

Following business will be transacted at the meeting:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To confirm the minutes of the AGM of the Company held on May 21, 2020.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31,
2020 together with the Chairman’s Review Report and Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon.

3. To consider and approve the payment of cash dividend of Rs. 5/- (50%) per share for the financial year ended
December 31, 2020 as recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company to the shareholders of the Company.

4. To appoint external auditors for the financial year 2021 and to fix their remuneration. The retiring auditors, M/s A.F.
Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants have consented to be reappointed as auditors for the financial year 2021 and
the Board of Directors has recommended their appointment.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
5. To consider and transact any other business with the permission of the Chairman.

By Order of the Board

Karachi Igra Sajjad
April 08, 2021 Company Secretary

PARTICIPATION IN THE 67th AGM PROCEEDINGS VIA VIDEO-LINK FACILITY:

To ensure wellbeing of our members and keeping in view the current COVID-19 situation, the AGM proceedings shall be
held via video-link facility only. To attend through video-link, members can download the app/software through https://zoom.
us/download and login via video-link to participate in the AGM proceedings.

The members/proxies registering to connect through video-link facility to participate in the meeting are required to mention
their Name, Folio Number and CNIC Number in an email to agm.igiholdings@igi.com.pk with subject ‘Registration for IGI
Holdings AGM 2021’. Video-link and login credentials will be shared with the members/proxies whose email containing all
the required particulars as mentioned above is received at the given email address before 03:00 p.m. on April 27, 2021. The
same email address can be used by the members to provide their comments and questions on agenda items of the AGM.

Other Notes:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from April 22, 2021 to April 29, 2021 (both days inclusive).

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint another person as a proxy to attend and vote
instead of him/her. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. The proxy forms duly completed and signed by the
member(s) appointing the proxy must be deposited with the Company’s Share Registrar, FAMCO Associates (Private)
Limited, 8F, next to Hotel Faran, Nursery Block 6, P.E.C.H.S., Sharah-e-Faisal, Karachi, not later than forty-eight (48)
hours before the time appointed for the AGM.

3. In accordance with the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018, for any agenda item subject to the requirements
of Section 143 and 144 of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act), shareholders will be allowed to exercise their right of
vote through postal ballot i.e. by post or e-voting, in the manner and subject to the conditions contained in the aforesaid
regulations.

4. Any individual beneficial owner having an account or sub-account with the Central Depository Company (“CDC”),
entitled to vote at this AGM, must provide Computerized/Smart National Identity Card (CNIC/SNIC) to prove his/
her identity, and in case of proxy must enclose an attested copy of his/her CNIC/SNIC. The representatives of
corporate bodies should provide attested copies of their board of directors’ resolution/power of attorney and/or all
such documents as are required under Circular No.1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for the purpose.
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Members (Non-CDC) are requested to promptly notify the Company’s Share Registrar of any change in their particulars
including IBAN details and postal and email address.

5. Pursuant to Section 223(7) of the Act, the financial statements and the reports accompanying them have been placed on
website of the Company and can be accessed on htips://www.igi.com.pk/holdings

6. Members are hereby informed that pursuant to SECP’s S.R.O. 787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014 and the Act,
companies have been allowed to circulate the Annual Report to members through email. The Company shall, how-
ever additionally provide hard copies of the annual report to members on request, free of cost. For this purpose, we
have attached the request form in the Annual Report and have also uploaded the same on our Company’s website
https://www.igi.com.pk/holdings

7. Further, in accordance with S.R.O. 470(1)/2016 dated May 31, 2016, through which SECP has allowed companies to
circulate the annual audited accounts to its members through CD/DVD/USB instead of transmitting the hard copies at their
registered addresses, subject to consent of shareholders and compliance with certain other conditions, the Company has
obtained shareholders’ consent for the same in the Extraordinary General Meeting held on October 8, 2018.

8. In accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Act, it is mandatory for a listed company to pay cash dividend
to shareholders only through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders.
In order to receive dividends directly into bank account, members are requested to complete the particulars in e-Credit
Dividend Mandate Form. This form has been attached with the Annual Report and is also available on our Company’s
website https://www.igi.com.pk/holdings

In case of shares held in the CDC, the same information should be provided to the CDS participants for updating and
forwarding to the Company. In absence of members’ valid bank account details and/or IBAN, the Company will be
constrained to withhold the payment of dividend to such members till provision of prescribed details.

9. Shareholders, who for any reason, could not claim their dividend/physical/bonus shares are advised to contact our
Share Registrar at the address mentioned above.

10. In compliance with Section 150 read with Division | of Part lll of the First Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
and Section 100BA read with the Tenth Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, withholding tax on dividend
income will be deducted as follows:

For shareholders whose names appear in the Active Taxpayers List (ATL):  15%
For shareholders whose names do not appear in the ATL: 30%

To enable the Company to withhold tax at 15%, all shareholders are advised to ensure that their names appear in the
latest available ATL on FBR website, otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be deducted at 30%.

Withholding tax exemption from dividend income shall only be allowed to a corporate shareholder if a copy of valid tax
exemption certificate is made available to the Share Registrar of the Company by the first day of book closure.

11. The FBR has clarified that in case of joint account, each holder is to be treated individually as either a filer or non-filer
and tax will be deducted on the basis of shareholding of each joint holder as may be notified by the shareholder, in
writing as follows, to the Company’s Share Registrar. Otherwise it will be assumed that the shares are equally held by
the joint shareholders:

c?‘l“;m“y :gé?u/nct:?‘lg. SL?raels Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder

Name and Shareholding Name and Shareholding
CNIC No. Proportion CNIC No. Proportion
(No. of Shares) (No. of Shares)

12. Shareholders are advised to ensure that they have provided their passport/NTN/CNIC/SNIC/valid tax exemption
certificates (for tax exemption, where applicable) and valid Zakat declaration under Zakat & Ushr Ordinance, 1980
(for Zakat exemption) to their respective Participant/CDC Investor Account Services/Company’s Share Registrar.

13. Members holding shares in physical form are encouraged to convert their physical shares into Book-Entry-Form
(CDC) pursuant to the requirements of Section 72 of the Act.

For any query/problem/information, the members/investors may contact the Company and/or the Share Registrar at the
following phone numbers and email addresses:

Contact Persons:

Taha Naqvi (Financial Controller) Salman Rauf (Share Registrar)
Phone: 111-308-308 Phone : 92-21-34380101-5
Email: taha.naqvi@igi.com.pk Email: salman.rauf@famco.com.pk
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The Company Secretary
IGI Holdings Limited

7th Floor, The Forum, Suite No. 701-713, Form of Proxy
G-20, Block-9, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton,

Karachi-75600, Pakistan 67th Annual General Meeting

I/We

of being member(s) of

IGI Holdings Limited and holder of

Ordinary Shares as per Share Register Folio and/or CDC Participant I.D. No. and

Sub Account No. hereby appoint of

or failing him / her

of as my/our proxy in my/our absence to attend and vote for me/us on
my/our behalf at the Sixty-Seventh Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, the 29th
day of April 2021, at 12:30 p.m. through video link facility and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2021.
1. Witness
Signature:
Name: :
Signature Please afﬂx
Address: Rupees five
revenue
stamp
CNIC or
Passport No.
(Signature should agree
. with the specimen signature
2. Witness registered with the Company)
Signature:
Name:
Address:
CNIC or
Passport No.

Note: Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received by the Share Registrar of the Company not less than
48 hours before the meeting.

CDC Shareholders and their proxies are each requested to attach an attested photocopy of their Computerized
National Identity Card or Passport with this proxy form before submission to the Company.

The shareholders having shares deposited with the Central Depository Company (CDC) are requested to
send their original Computerized National Identity Cards and CDC account number for verification.
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IGI Holdings Limited

7th Floor, The Forum,

Suite No. 701-713, G-20,
Block-9, Khayaban-e-Jami,Clifton
Karachi-75600, Pakistan

I The Company Secretary
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Request for Annual Report and Notices Through Post

The Share Registrar

FAMCO Associates (Pvt.) Limited
8-F, Next to Hotel Faran,
Block-6, Nursery, P.E.C.H.S.,
Shahrah-e-Faisal,

Karachi-74000

Dear Sir,

I hereby request you to send me the Annual Report of IGI Holdings Limited for the year ended December 31,
2020 and all notices under the Companies Act, 2017 at my postal address given below:

(Postal address of the shareholder)
The above address will be recorded in the members register maintained under Section 119 of the Companies
Act, 2017. | will inform the Company and its Share Registrar about any change in my postal address

immediately.

Regards,

(Signature)
Name of the Shareholder

Folio No:
(In case of physical shareholding)

CDC Account No.:
Note: Individual CDC Account holders should submit copy of their Computerized National Identity Card
(CNIC) alongwith this request form.

Annual Report 2020

197



IGI Holdings Limited

7th Floor, The Forum,

Suite No. 701-713, G-20,
Block-9, Khayaban-e-Jami,Clifton
Karachi-75600, Pakistan

I The Company Secretary
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Electronic Credit Mandate Form

Dear Shareholder,

We wish to inform you that in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is
mandatory for a listed company to pay cash dividend to shareholders only through electronic mode directly
into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders.

In order to receive your dividends directly into your bank account, please complete the particulars as mentioned
below and return this letter duly signed along with a copy of your Computerized / Smart National Identity Card
(CNIC/SNIC) to the Share Registrar of the Company, M/s FAMCO Associates (Pvt.) Limited, 8-F, Near Hotel
Faran, Nursery, Block 6, P.E.C.H.S., Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

CDC shareholders are requested to submit their Dividend Mandate Form and CNIC/SNIC directly to their broker
(participant)/CDC.

Yours faithfully
For IGI Holdings Limited

(Igra Sajjad)
Company Secretary

SHAREHOLDERS’S SECTION:
| hereby communicate to receive my future dividends directly in my Bank account as per details given below:
Name of shareholder:

Folio Number / CDC Account No.:

Contact number of shareholder:

Title of bank account of shareholder:

IBAN Number (see below Note No.1):

Name of Bank:

Bank branch & full mailing address:

CNIC/SNIC No. (Copy attached):

NTN (in case of corporate entity):

It is stated that the above particulars given by me are correct and to the best of my knowledge. | shall keep
the Company/broker (participant)/CDC informed in case of any changes in the said particulars in future.

Shareholder’s Signature CNIC/SNIC No.
(Copy attached)

Date:

Note:

1. Please provide complete International Bank Account Number (IBAN), after checking with your concerned branch to
enable electronic credit directly into your bank account.

2. Please provide declaration for non-deduction of Zakat, if applicable.

3. The payment of cash dividend will be processed based on the bank account number alone. The Company is entitled to
rely on the account number as per your instructions. The Company shall not be responsible for any loss, damage, liability
or claim arising, directly or indirectly, from any error, delay, or failure in performance of any of its obligations hereunder
which is caused by incorrect payment instructions and /or due to any event beyond the control of the Company.
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Block-9, Khayaban-e-Jami,Clifton
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I The Company Secretary
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Suite No. 701-713, G-20,
Block-9, Khayaban-e-Jami,Clifton
Karachi-75600, Pakistan

I The Company Secretary
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Karachi-75600, Pakistan

I The Company Secretary
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I The Company Secretary
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IGI Holdings Limited

Registered &

Head Office

7th Floor, The Forum,
Suite 701-713, G-20,
Block 9, Khayaban-eJami,
Clifton, Karachi - 75600,
Pakistan.

Phone: 111-308-308
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